
Kermit Williams, District 7 
President · 
Randy Carter, District 4 
President Pro Tem 

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

Patrice Waterman, District 1 
Don Woodward, District 2 
Mary Pietila, District 3 
Gloria Miller, District 5 
Dr. Doris Taylor Burks, District 6 

It is this Council's mission "To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life 
for its residents,fostering the vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play." 

Call to order 

Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers 

FORMAL MEETING 
August 20, 2019 

6:00P.M. 
111 th Session of the 10th Council 

Amendment to and Approval of the Agenda 

Approval of the Minutes 
1. August 13, 2019 

Subcommittee Reports 
2. Finance-August 13, 2019 

Recognition of Elected Officials 

Agenda Address 

Special Presentations (Presentations are limited to 10 minutes.) 
3. Enhanced Code Enforcement and Nuisance Abatement Report -

Presentation Presenter: Patrick Brzozowski, Code Enforcement Manager 

4. City of Pontiac Retired Employees Association (CPREA) Settlement Update 
Presentation Presenter: Mayor Waterman 

Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A. 
Interim City Clerk 

5. Pontiac Youth Recreation and Enrichment Center (PYREC) Update and Youth Summit Report 
Presentation Presenters: Robert Burch, Interim PYREC Manager and Jeremiah Wilson, Pontiac Student 

6. Pontiac Urban Institute League 
Presentation Presenter: Bill Maxey 



Communication 
7. Memorandum on Community Benefits Ordinances 

Ordinances 
8. Adoption of an Ordinance to amend Chapter 42, "Community Development," to add Article VII entitled 

"Community Benefit Agreements." 

9. Adoption of an Ordinance to amend Chapter 42, "Community Development", to add Article VII entitled 
"Community Benefits Agreements". (Amended Language) 

10. Adoption of an Ordinance to amend Chapter 42, "Community Development", to add Atticle VII entitled 
"Provisioning Center Community Benefits Agreements". 

Resolutions 
City Council 

11. Resolution to designate Hidden River Park as an ente1tainment space and not as a park. 

Department of Public Works/City Engineering 
12. Resolution to authorize Mayor to sign easement for the property located at 31 N. Saginaw. 

13. Resolution to adopt the Michigan Local Pavement Wairnnty Program and accompanying documents in 
accordance with the requirements ofMCL 247.633 

14. Resolution to implement the Local Agency Payment Warranty Program and annually report in accordance with 
the law. 

15. Resolution to authorize the Mayor to sign contract with PK Contracting for Road Striping. 

Public Comment 

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments 

Adjournment 



#1 
MINUTES 



August 13, 2019 Study 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

110th Session of the Tenth Council 

A Study Session of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Tuesday, 
August 13, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Members Present: Carter, Miller, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams: 
Members Absent: Pietila and Woodward. 
Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

19-403 Excuse Councilperson Mary Pietila and Don Woodward for personal reasons. 
Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Wate1man. 

Ayes: Miller, Taylor-Burks; Waterman, Williams and Caiter 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

19-404 Amendment to add the Provisional Center Community Benefits Agreement to the 
agenda. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Miller. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Caiter and Miller 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

19-405 Motion to move item #3 (resolution to go into closed session) before item #2 
(resolution to authorize Mayor to conduct preliminary due diligence for potential purchase of 235 
Wesson Street). Move by Councilperson Wate1man and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter and Miller 
No:None'· 
Motion Carried .. 

19-406 Approval of agenda as amended. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by 
Councilperson Waterman. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

1 



August 13, 2019 Study 

19-407 Approve meeting minutes for August 6, 2019. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks 
and second by Councilperson Carter. 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Tylor-Burks and Wate1man 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-408 Resolution to go into Closed Session to discuss a.n attorney-client privileged 
memorandum regarding the following items: consider the pifrcb,se ofreal property located at 235 
Wesson Street, and to discuss memorandum regarding 1:'hoenix Center Settlement, information 
exempt from disclosure by statute, specifically an attorney-i:Uent privileged memorandum exempt 
from disclosure pursuant to MCL 15.243 (l)(g), Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by 
Councilperson Miller. 

Whereas, Michigan Open Meetings Act Section S(h), MCL 15.268(h), allows a public body to go 
into closed session to consider material exempt from c.li~cussion br disclosui'e by state or federal 
statute; and · · 
Whereas, Michigan Freedom of information Act Section l 3(g) exempts from disclosure records 
subject to the attorney-client privilege; · 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved by the Pontiac City Council that itrecess into closed session to 
discuss an attorney-client privileged memorandum regarding the following items: 

1. To consider the purchase of real prope1ty lo.cated at 235 Wesson Street. 

2. To discuss the memorandum regarding Phoenix Center Settlement, infonnation exempt 
from disclosure by statute, specifically an attorney-client privileged memorandum 
exempt from disclosure pursuant to MCL 15.243(l)(g). 

Ayes: Carter, MiUer, Taylor,Burks, Wate1man and Williams 
No:None 
Motion Carded. 

19-409 Motion to come out of Closed Session. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and 
second by Councilperson Wate1man. • 

19-410 
Waterman. 

Ayes: Caiter, Miller, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, and Williams 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson 

2 



August 13, 2019 Study 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Catier 
No: Miller 
Motion Carried. 

19-411 Resolution to authorize the Mayor to conduct preliminary due diligence regarding 
the potential purchase of 235 Wesson Street and to negotiate terms and conditions of sale. Moved by 
Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac has been presented with a Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement for the 
prope1iy located at 235 Wesson Street, and 
Whereas, The City Council Real Estate Subcommittee referred the matter to the Executive Office for 
fmiher review. 
Now, Therefore Be It Resolved, that the Mayor is hereby authorized to cot1duct preliminary due diligence · 
regarding the potential purchase of 235 Wes son Street, arid negotiate terms and condition of sale and 
obtain the following due diligence items: 

Title Work (No charge), 
Phase I Environmental site assessment, 
Phase II Environmental site assessment, 
Baseline Environmental site assessment, 
Survey, 
Appraisal, 
And related legal fees, all for a cost not to exceed $45,000 and to be completed within 60 days from the 
date of this resolution. · · 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman and WiHiams 
No: Carter and Miller 
Resolution Failed, 

Thi1ieen (13) individuals addressed the body during public comment. 

Discussion- Designation of Hidden River Park as a City Park and Possible Measurements 
Discrepancies between Ordinance 2357(B) and Ordinance 2363 

The Council asked the City Attorney to prepare a resolution to designate Hidden River Park as an 
entertainment space and not ~s a park. 

As it relates to the measurement discrepancies between the ordinances, City Attorney Chubb stated that 
the Zoning Enabling Act allows any zoning ordinance adopted under the enabling act to preempt any 
other ordinance that may be inconsistent with the zoning ordinance. 

3 



August 13, 2019 Study 

Ordinances 
First reading- Adoption of an Ordinance to amend Chapter 42, "Community Development". To 
acid Article VII entitled "Community Benefit Agreements" Ordinance attached as exhibit A. 

Revised Community Benefits Ordinances 

Memorandum from Matthew Neale, Esq.- Medical Marihuana Application Professional Expe1i to the City 
Clerk. Attorney Neale explains that he has drafted a revised Community Benefits Ordinance titled 
"Pontiac Provisioning Center Community Benefits Ordinance", is meant to assist the City Clerk in 
scming and ranking provisioning center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B); by allowing 
developers to make pledges as part of their provisioning center applicatjon that identify community 
benefits to the City to help rectify negative aspects of theiJ: development. Any such pledges would be 
incorporated into a binding Community Benefits Agreement with the City offontiac. 

As compared to the prior proposed community beftefits ordinance, the Pontiac Provisioning Center 
Community Benefits Ordinance is intended to be specifically used for the scoring and ranking of 
provisioning center applications under City Ordinance 2357(B). Anyreferences to medic~! marijuana, Tier 
1 or City Ordinance 2357(B) were thus iem{)ved from the prior proposed community benefits ordinance. 
Memorandum and ordinances attached ;is exhibit B. 

First reading- Adoption of an Ordinance to amend Chapter 42, "Community Development", to add 
Article VII entitled "Provisioning Center Coirlmunity Benefits Agreements" Ordinance attached as 
exhibit C. . 

Communication from the City Clerk 
Communication from the Office of the City Clerk Office infonning the City Council that the office has 
begun receiving Medical Marihua.na applications for growers, processors, secure transpmiers and safety 
compliance. ·· · 

The Clerk informed the Mayor and City Council that in order to ensure that we review applications in a 
timely manner, the Clerk is requesting that the tasks below be completed within the next 30 days. 

• The Mayor appoints the Medical Marihuana Commission and the Commission meets to establish 
its rules. · 

• The City Council approves the Rules of the Medical Marihuana Commission. 
• The City issue a RFP.for a Professional Expe1i- Financial Advisor to the City Clerk to assist the 

Clerk with the financial review of the applications. 
• The City issue a RFP for a Hearing Officer. 
• All staff involved in the review of applications complete and sign the conflict of 

interest/disclosure statement. The form is attached as exhibit D. 

The Council requested that the task items be brought back in two (2) weeks for status update. 

4 



August 13, 2019 Study 

19-412 Suspend the mies to vote on items #7, 8 and 9. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks 
and second by Councilperson Carter. 

Ayes: Tylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-413 Resolution for Roosevelt Frank (Bones) Russell. Moved by Councilperson Wate1man 
and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

WHEREAS, The Pontiac City Council celebrates the gift of life and those who have lived life abundantly 
and whose lives exemplify the highest ideals of humanity; and, · 
WHEREAS, Roosevelt Frank Russell has been married to Mary Page Russell for over 50 years and this 
union produced five children, nineteen grandchildren, and five great-grandchildren; and, 
WHEREAS, Roosevelt Frank Russell's rich career in public service spans over seven decades, from 
1968, when he started working as a Parks and Recreation Assistant with the City ofPcmtiac to 2019, and 
in addition, Roosevelt Frank Russel remarkably embarked on his thirty-three year tenui·e with the 
Oakland County Human Resources Department in June of 1985, as the Community Specialist 
Recrnitment & EEO; and, 
WHEREAS, Roosevelt Frank Russell was an integral link to the citizens of Pontiac, Oakland County and 
throughout the State of Michigan in his position of Recruitment Specialist, Human Resources Analyst and 
especially as Chairperson of the Oakland County Employment Diversity Council; and 
WHEREAS, Roosevelt Frank Russell while working for Oakland County, was instrnmental in the 
recrnitment and employment of many 'qualified individuals whom have served the county in an exemplary 
fashion within the various departments in Oakland County goverrnnent, 
WHEREAS, Roosevelt Frank Russell is trnly a trail-blazer, as he was responsible for increasing the 
number of qualified minorities that were placed on The Oakland County Human Resources Departments 
various Employment Eligibility Lists and served as an invaluable resource to all of the Oakland County 
Commissioners that represented the City of Pontiac sinc.e 1985; and, 
WHEREAS, Roosevelt FrankRussell is distinguished by his numerous accomplishments, some include, 
receiving many unsolicited letters of appreciation from citizens throughout Oakland County and the State 
of Michigan, accepting the Employee of theMopth Award from the late Oakland County Executive L. 
Brooks Patterson in 2005, recipient of the Regional Diversity Champion Award in 2011, developing and 
implementing the Oakland County Employment Diversity Council (OCEDC), founder of the Oakland 
County All-Star Basketball Clinic in 1969-1980, Campy Russell-Terry Furlow Fundamental Basketball 
Camp 1977-1979, Youth Advisor Pontiac Police Depaiiment 1974-1978, Founder and President of the 
Youth Development Institute,Inc.1983-2019, the Pontiac News, Inc. Publisher and Editor 2007-present 
and the Oakland and Regional News 2014-present; and, 
WHEREAS, Roosevelt Frank Russell's innate qualities of insight, knowledge and wisdom, propelled 
him to serve as a mentor, advisor and counselor too many young men and women, many of whom have 
advanced in their careers and are making valuable contributions to their communities. 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that we the members of the Pontiac City Council and on 
behalf of the citizens of Pontiac, recognize with great pride and dignity, Roosevelt Frank (Bones) Russell, 
as he is recognized on August 17, 2019 for the blessing that he has been to his family and friends for 70 

5 



August 13, 2019 Study 

years of life and for seven decades of outstanding contributions ofleadership, selflessness and 
connnitment to the community. "Happy Bhihday Mr. Roosevelt Frank (Bones) Russell and 
Congratulations on your retirement." 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller and Taylor-Burks 
No:None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-414 Resolution in support of Inspirational Spectrum Heroes. Moved by Councilperson 
Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the members of the Pontia~ City Council to endorse, recognize and 
support organizations that exemplify a sincere dedication of leadership, selflessness and commitment to 
uplifting and empowering our community; and, · 
WHEREAS, the Inspirational Spectrum Heroes is a 501 (c) 3, a non-profit organization established in 
2018, and the mission of the organization is to promote·awareness of autism; and, 
WHEREAS, the Inspirational Spectrum Heroes is hosting its first Annual Autism Walk on Saturday, 
September 14, 2019 at Wisner Stadium .. 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the members of the Pontiac City Council, on behalf of 
the citizens of Pontiac, recognize and graci6usly endorse the Inspirational Spectrum Heroes for enriching 
the lives of families and individuals in our community. 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No:None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-415 Resolution for Harrison Lorenza "Pal" Gilmore. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-
Burks and second by Councilperson Watennan. 

WHEREAS, it is the sense of this legislative body to pay proper tribute to individuals ofremarkable 
character and whose lives have beeon dedicated to uplifting and inspiring the community; and; 
WHEREAS, it is feelings of the deepest regret that the Pontiac City Council mourns the passing of 
Harrison Lorenza Gilmore, a giving and devoted member of this community; and, 
WHEREAS, HatTison Lorenza Gihnqre was born on June 7, 1947, was the son of the late Flossie Mae 
and James Andrew Gilmore, loving husband to Sheila R. Gilmore and the father of Stephanie Grandbeny; 
and, 
WHEREAS, HatTison Lorenza Gilmore had a passion for billiards; and, 
WHEREAS, HatTison Lorenza Gilmore a talented sports enthusiast and a distinguished billiards player, 
consistently displayed his talents; and, 
WHEREAS, in 2012, Hanison Lorenza Gihnore, along with other members of his softball team, 
received championship rings from the World Senior Games in Utah; and, 
WHEREAS, Hanison Lorenza Gilmore also participated in the Huntsman World Senior Games in St. 
George, Utah, a qualifying competition for the Senior Olympics, 50 years and older; and, 

6 



August 13, 2019 Study 

WHEREAS, Ha1Tison Lorenza Gilmore was the first place winner in Billiards during the Winter 
Michigan Senior Olympics (age 65-69) three years in a row, 2015, 2016 and 2017; and, 
WHEREAS, Ha1Tison Lorenza Gilmore despite having an illness, never let his love for baseball waiver, 
as he pursued and engaged in another sport, pickle ball and in 2018, entered the Michigan Senior 
Olympics for Pickle Ball and Billiards (age 70-74) and won second place in Billiards; and, 
WHEREAS, Harrison Lorenza Gilmore truly a legend in Billiards, in 2019, won third place (age 70-74) 
in Billiards. 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council and members of this great 
community will greatly miss Harrison Lorenza "Pal" Gilmore, as his kindhearted soul will long endure 
the passage of time and will remain as a comforting memory to all those whose lives he touched; we give 
our sincerest condolences to the family and friends of Harrison Loi"enza "Pal" Gilmore. ·, 

Ayes: Caiter, Miller, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams. 
No: None · 
Resolution Passed. 

Mayoral Reports 

Special Rep01t: Road Kill Wrap-up and Dreaiu Crnise Update 
Presented by James Johnson, Community Relations Specialist 

Monthly Check Register 
(The weekly check register for June 28, 2019; July 5, 12, 19 and 26, 2019 have not been posted on 
the website.) · 

Monthly Staff Changes Report 
(The June and July repo1is were not submitted.) 

City Credit Card Statement 
(The June and July reports were not submitted.) 

Council President Kermit Williams Adjourned meeting at 8:55 p.m. 

7 

GARLAND S. DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERK 



Exhibit A 

ORDINANCE NO. 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 42, "COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT", TO 
ADD ARTICLE VII, ENTITLED "COMMUNITY BENEFIT AGREEMENTS". 

Section 1. Short Title; Purpose. 

(a) This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the "Pontiac Community Benefit 
Ordinance". 

(b) This Ordinance shall require developers of certain types of developments, herein referred 
to as "Qualified Developments", to enter into agreements, herein referred to as 
"Community Benefit Agreements", that identify potential negative aspects of 
developments and identify proportional community benefits to the City of Pontiac to rectify 
those negative aspects as a condition for development subsidies and other considerations 
by the City of Pontiac. 

Section 2. Definitions 
As used in the Chapter 42, Article VII, the following words and phrases shall mean the following: 

(a) Community Benefit Agreement: An Agreement between the City of Pontiac and 
Developer providing mutual consideration intended to rectify mutually acknowledged 
potential negative aspects associated with the proposed Qualified Development. 

(b) Developer: The person, firm, partnership, company, corporation, cooperative, or any 
other entity that is the recipient of a Development Subsidy. 

(c) Development Subsidies: Any economic incentives of value granted on a discretionary 
basis by the City of Pontiac to attract or retain a Qualified Development or jobs associated 
therewith; may include federal, state, or local economic incentives; and include but are not 
limited to economic incentives associated with, as amended: the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Financing Act, Commercial Development Act, Commercial Rehabilitation 
Act, Con-idor Improvement Authority Act, Historical neighborhood Tax Increment 
Financing Act, Local Development Financing Act, Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial 
Development Districts Act, Principal Shopping Districts and Business Improvement 
Districts Act. Additionally, the lease or transfer of a city-owned building or property shall 
constitute a Development Subsidy. 

( d) Qualified Development: Shall be classified as either a Tier I or Tier 2. Tier 1 
Qualified Developments shall be those developments granted license to operate under City 
Ordinance 2357(B). Tier 2 Qualified Developments shall be those developments being 

1 



granted Development Subsidies by the City of Pontiac with a total economic incentive, as 
dete1mined in the sole discretion of the City of Pontiac, of greater than $50,000.00. 

Section 3, Community Benefits 
A Community Benefit agreed upon by the Developer of the Qualified Development amHhe City 
of Pontiac is a benefit confe1Ted up011 the community of the City of Pontiac intended to ameliorate 
the potential negative aspects imposed upon the City of Pontiac by the Qualified Development. 
Although Community Benefits may differ based upon the Qualified Development, and this is not 
intended to be an exhaustive list, the City of Pontiac recognizes amenities, benefits, or 
commitments for the following purposes as Community Benefits, by Tier of Qualified 
Development: 

Tier 1: Infrastructure, Police and Fire Services, Job Training, Health Initiative Education, Parks 

Tier 2: Designated Projects, Infrastructure, Police and Fire Services, Parks 

Section 4. Community Benefits Agreement 
The Community Benefits Agreement shall be entered into between the City of Pontiac and the 
Developer of the Qualified Development. 

The Community Benefits Agreement shall set forth the Community Benefit proposed by the 
Developer of the Qualified Development and, if applicable, the interval of such Community 
Benefit. 

Community Benefit Agreements shall be timely recorded on the deed, and shall run with the land, 
on Qualified Developments for the duration of the Community Benefit Agreement. 

The te1m of a Community Benefit Agreement for a Tier 1 Qualified Development shall be not less 
than the term of its License to operate under City Ordinance 2357(B), including any extension or 
renewal thereof. The term of a Community Benefit Agreement for a Tier 2 Qualified Development 
shall be not less that the length of the Development Subsidy, including any extension or renewal 
thereof. 

Community Benefits Agreements are not transferrable by the Developer without approval through 
a City Council Resolution. 

Section 5. Community Benefits Agreement Required for Every Qualified Development 
All Qualified Developments are subject to a Community Benefit Agreement. All Qualified 
Developments must be approved by the Mayor and City Council, and such approval may only be 
subject to the execution of a valid Community Benefits Agreement with the Developer of that 
Qualified Development. 

2 



Section 6. Exemptions Application 
If a Qualified Development and/or Developer believe they should be exempt from a Community 
Development Agreement, they may file an exemption application with the City Clerk. An 
Exemption requires approval of the Mayor and City Council. 

Section 7. Annual Reporting and Compliance 
A Developer shall provide a comprehensive, audited report detailing compliance with obligations 
under its Community Benefit Agreement for the prior year (or partial year) by January 1 of each 
year. The rep01i shall include backup documentation for all donations made or funds expended 
related to the Community Development Agreement. 

Section 8. Breach of Community Benefits Agreement; Termination; Appeal 
If the City Department of Economic Development finds a Qualified Development and/or its 
Developer to be in breach of its (their) Community Development Agreement, it shall send a written 
Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement to the Qualified Development and its 
Developer by ce1iified mail. If the Breach of Community Benefits Agreement is not cured within 
fourteen (14) days after the date the Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement was sent, 
the Mayor may tenninate the Agreement. 

If the Qualified Development and/or Developer believe that the tennination was made in e1Tor, it 
(they) may Appeal in writing to the City Council within thirty (30) days after the date the Notice 
of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement was sent. The City Council, by Resolution, shall 
only ove1ium a decision of the Mayor if it finds the decision was arbitra1y or capricious. The 
determination of the City Council may only be reviewed by the Comi of competent jurisdiction 
within the state of Michigan. 

Te1mination of the Community Benefits Agreement through this process shall result in the 
suspension of the underlying 2357(B) facility license for Tier 1 Qualified Developments; and the 
suspension of any economic incentives granted to a Tier 2 Qualified Development; pending the 
any such administrative, legislative, or judicial appeal of that termination. Upon the exhaustion of 
further appeals creating a final dete1mination that the termination was proper, the 2357(B) facility 
license or economic incentive granted to a Tier 2 Qualified Development shall be pe1manently 
revoked, subject to any fu1iher statutory appeal process for those licenses or economic incentives. 

Section 9. Severability. 
This ordinance and the various parts, sections, and clauses are hereby declared severable. If any 
clause, sentence, or paragraph or pmi of this ordinance shall, for any reason, be adjudged or 
decreed to be invalid by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment or decree shall not 
effect, impair, or invalidate the remainder of this ordinance, but such judgment or decree shall be 
confined in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, or pmi thereof, directly involved in the 
controversy in which such judgment or decrees shall have been entered. 

Section 10. Repealer. 

3 



That all ordinances or parts of ordinances, of the City of Pontiac in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

Section 11, Publication, 
The Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation prior to its effective 
date. 

Section 12. Effective Date, 
This Ordinance shall be effective ten days after date of adoption. 

I hereby certify this ordinance was brought for a first reading at a meeting of the City Council of 
the City of Pontiac on the ___ day of _______ , 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I further hereby certify this ordinance was adopted at a second reading of the ordinance by the City 
Council of the City of Pontiac on the ___ day of , 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I further hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the Ordinance as passed by the City 
Council and was published verbatim in a publication of general circulation on the ___ day of 

-------' 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

4 



TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

DATE: 

LLER 
IELD 

MEMORANDUM 

Garland S. Doyle, Interim Pontiac City Clerk 

Matthew Neale, Esq. 

Revised Community Benefits Ordinance 

August 12, 2019 

As requested, the revised Community Benefits Ordinance, titled "Pontiac Provisioning Center 
Community Benefits Ordinance", is meant to assist the City Clerk in scoring and ranking 
provisioning center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B); by allowing developers to 
make pledges as part of theil' provisioning center application that identify community benefits to 
the City to help rectify negative aspects of their development. Any such pledges would be 
incorporated into a binding Community Benefits Agreement with the City of Pontiac. · 

Pursuant to Section 9(£) of City Ordinance 2357(B), "[i]n its application assessment, evaluation, 
scoring, ranking, and deliberations related to permits to operate a provisioning center .... ", the 
City Clerk "shall assess, evaluate, score, and rank each application based upon a scoring and 
ranking procedure developed by the clerk consistent with the requirements, conditions, and 
provisions .... " of City Ordinance 2357(B) in certain specified categories. 

Of those categories specified in such Section 9(£), certain of the categories relate to community 
benefits. If an applicant, as part of its application for a provisioning center pe1mit, makes pledges 
of community benefits to the City of Pontiac, then, based on the City Clerk's assessment and 
evaluation of such benefits, such applicant will get points for such pledges. Such points will be 
used in the provisioning center scoring. However, before an applicant will receive a pe1mit, the 
applicant must enter into a Community Benefits Agreement with the City incorporating such 
pledged benefits. The amount of points for different pledges will be based on the commitment, 
quality, duration, community support and amount of the pledged community benefits, 

If an applicant breaches a Community Benefits Agreement with the City, pursuant to Section 15 
of City Ordinance 2357(B) and other applicable Sections and laws, the City Clerk may revoke or 
suspend a provisioning center permit or not renew a provisioning center pe1mit (subject to any 
notice and/or hearing rights of an applicant). 

As compared to the prior proposed community benefits ordinance, the Pontiac Provisioning 
Center Community Benefits Ordinance is intended to be specifically used for the scoring and 
ranking of provisioning center applications imder City Ordinance 2357(B). Any references to 
medical marijuana, Tier l or City Ordinance 2357(B) were thus removed from the prior 
proposed community benefits ordi)lance. · 

34195273. [\[58235-0000[ 

Exhibit B 



ORDINANCE NO. 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 42, "COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT", TO ADD 
ARTICLE VII, ENTITLED "PROVISIONING CENTER COMMUNITY BENEFITS 
AGREEMENTS". 

Section 1. Short Title; Purpose. 

(a) This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the "Pontiac Provisioning Center 
Community Benefits Ordinance", 

(b) This Ordinance shall allow developers of provisioning centers, herein refell'ed to as 
"Qualified Developments", to enter into agreements, herein referred to as "Commimity 
Benefits Agreements", that identify potential negative aspects of such developments and 
identify proportional community benefits to the City of Pontiac to rectify those negative 
aspects. The pledges of community benefits that would be incorporated into Community 
Benefits Agreements will be used in part to assist the City Clerk with the scoring and rauking 
of provisioning center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B). 

Section 2. Definitions 
As used in the Chapter 42, Article VII, the following words and phrases shall mean the following: 

(a) Community Benefits Agreement: An agreement between the City of Pontiac and Developer 
providing mutual consideration intended to rectify mutually acknowledged potential negative 
aspects associated with the proposed Qualified Development, 

(b) Developer: Any person, firm, paiinersbip, company, corporation, cooperative, or any other 
entity (other than the City of Pontiac) that is a party to a Commt!nity Benefits Agreement. 

(c) Qualified Development: Persons or entities submitting an application for a provisioning center 
permit during the 21-day period for provisioning center applications pursuant to City 
Ordinance 2357(B). 

Section 3. Community Benefits; Pledged Community Benefits 
A community benefit agreed upon by the Developer of the Qualified Development and the City of 
Pontiac is a benefit confen·ed upon the community of the City of Pontiac intended to ameliorate the 
potential negative aspects imposed upon the City of Pontiac by the Qualified Development. 
Although community benefits may differ based upon the Qualified Development, and this is not 
intended to be an exhaustive list, the City of Pontiac recognizes amenities, benefits, or commitments 
for the following purposes as community benefits: 

(a) Roads; Infrastructure; Road Repair; Potholes; Road Matching 

1 



(b) Parks; Park Safety (cameras); Law Enforcement 

(c) High School Pool; Hawthorne Park (Water Park); Neighborhood Revitalization Plan 

( d) Job Training and Employment; Transitional Programs (previously incarcerated) 

(e) Library and Literacy; Health Initiative Education 

(f) Business Development Fund (to assist City of Pontiac residents with funding for businesses 
and with starting and growing businesses) 

As part of its scoring and ranking of provisioning center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 
2357(B), the City Clerk may consider those community benefits pledged to the City of P.oritiac as part 
of such application, Any such pledges would be incorporated into a binding Community Benefits 
Agreement with tlie City of Pontiac. 

It is preferred; and the City Clerk may require, that applicants show that t11ere is a reasonable amount 
of support in the community for an applicant's pledged community benefits, It is the applicant's 
responsibility to show community support for its pledged community benefits. 

In using pledged community benefits as part of its scoring and ranking of provisioning center 
applications pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B), the City Clerk -will evaluate the commitment, 
quality, duration, community support and amount of the pledged community benefits, If an applicant 
does not pledge community benefits, such applicant will receive a zero (0) score in certain key 
segments of the provisioning center application scoring, 

If an applicant has pledged community benefits as part of its provisioning center application, before 
receiving a provisioning center permit, such applicant must enter into a Community Benefits 
Agreement with the City incorporating such pledged community benefits, The negotiation and 
completion of such Community Benefits Agreements may occur after the 21-day submission period 
for provisioning center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B). The Mayor may negotiate 
such Community Benefits Agreements (incorporating the pledged community benefits therein) on 
behalf of the City of Pontiac, All final Community Benefits Agreements must be approved by the 
City Council to be effective. 

Section 4. Community Benefits Agreement 
The Community Benefits Agreement would be entered into between the City of Pontiac and the 
Developer of the Qualified Development. 

The Community Benefits Agreement would set forth the community benefit proposed by the 
Developer of the Qualified Development and, if applicable, the interval of such community benefit. 

Community Benefits Agreements shall be timely · recorded on the deed for the real property 
applicable to the Qualified Development, and shall run with tile land, on Qualified Developments for 
the duration of the Community Benefits Agreement. 

2 



The term of a Community Benefits Agreement shall be not less than the term of the permit to operate 
under City Ordinance 2357(B), including any extension or renewal thereof. 

If a Developer is in breach 01· violation of a Community Benefits Agreement, such breach or violation 
shall constitute a breach of applicable law for purposes of City Ordinance 2357(8). If such breach or 
violation occurs, the City may exercise all rights and remedies against such Developer. available 
under applicable law (subject to any notice and/or heaiing rights of such Developer), including any 
rights and remedies pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B) (including in relation to the suspension, 
revocation or renewal of a. provisioning center pe1mit), including Section 15 of City Ordinance 
2357(B). 

Community Benefits Agreements are not transferrable by the Developer without approval through a 
City Council Resolution. 

Section 5. Community Benefits Agreement Approval 
All Community Benefits Agreements must be approved by the City Council to be effective. 

Section 6, Exemptions Application 
If a Qualified Development and/or Developer believe they should be exempt from a Community 
Development Agreement, they may filo an exemption application with the City Clerk ("Exemption"). 
An Exemption requires approval of the City. Council and may be approved or denied by the City · 
Council in its sole discretion. 

Section 7. Annual Reporting and Compliance 
A Developer shall provide a comprehensive, audited report detailing compliance with obligations 
under its Community Benefits Agreement for the prior year ( or partial year) by January 1 of each 
year. Further, prior to any extension or renewal of a pe1mit to operate under City Ordinance 2357(B), 
a Developer shall provide a comprehensive, . audited report detailing compliance with obligations 
under its Community Benefits Agreement. Each report shall include backup documentation for all 
donations made or funds expended related to the Conmrnnity Development Agreement. 

Section 8. Breach of Community Benefits Agreement; Termination; Appeal 
If the City Clerk finds a Qualified Development and/or its Developer to be in breach of its (their) 
Community Development Agreement (including if discovered as part of the City Clerk's review of 
the Qualified Development and/or Developer for purposes of a permit renewal), it may send a written 
Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement to the Developer by certified mail. If the 
Breach of Community Benefits Agreement is not cured within fourteen (14) days after the date the 
Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement was sent, the City Clerk, after a hearing (as 
necessary), may suspend or te1minate the Co1mnunity Development Agreeme.nt. 

If the Developer believes that the suspension or termination was made in error, the_ Developer may 
appeal such decision in accordance with its appeals tights under City Ordinance 2357(B): 

3 



Te1mination of the Community Benefits Agreement through this process shall result in the 
suspension of the underlying City Ordinance 2357(B) provisioning center permit; subject to µny 
pennitted administrative, legislative or judicial appeal of that termination. Upon the exhaustion of 
any appeals through the City of Pontiac creating a final dctc1mination that the tennination of the 
Community Benefits Agreement was proper, the City Ordinance 2357(B) provisioning center pe1mit 
shall be permanently revoked, subject to any farther statutory appeal process for such permit outside. 
of the City of Pontiac . 

. Section 9. Severability. 
This Ordinance and the varioi1s pa1ts, sections, and clauses are hereby declared severable. If any 
clause, sentence, or paragraph or part of this Ordinance shall, for any reason, be adjudged or decreed 
to be invalid by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment or decree shall not effect, impair, 
or invalidate the remainder of this Ordinance, but such judgment or decree shall be confined in its 
operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, or part thereof, directly involved in the controversy in 
which such judgment or decrees shall have been entered. 

Section 10. Repealer. 
That all ordinances or parts of ordinances, of the City of Pontiac in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed, as permitted by law. 

Section 11, Publication, 
The Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in a newspapei· of general circulation prior to its effective 
dat.e. 

Section 12, Effective Date, . 
This Ordinance shall be effective ten days after date of adoption. 

I hereby certify this ordinance was brought for a first reading at a meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Pontiac on the ___ day of ______ ~2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I filtiher hereby certify this ordinance was adopted at a second reading of the ordinance by the City 
Council of the City of Pontiac on the __ ~day of ______ ~2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I futiher hereby ce1iify that the foregoing is a tiue copy of the Ordinance as passed by the City 
Council and was published verbatim in a publication of general circulation on the ___ day of 

2019. ------~ 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

34091421.3\158235·00001 

4 



Proposed Community Benefits Ordinance 

ORDINANCE NO. 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 42, "COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT", TO 
ADD ARTICLE VII, ENTITLED "COMMUNITY BENEFIT AGREEMENTS". 

Section 1. Short Title; Purpose. 

(a) This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the "Pontiac Community Benefit 
Ordinance". 

(b) This Ordinance shall require developers of certain types of developments, herein refeJTed 
to as "Qualified Developments", to enter into agreements, herein refeJTed to as 
"Community Benefit Agreements", that identify potential negative aspects of 
developments and identify proportional community benefits to the City of Pontiac to rectify 
those negative aspects as a condition for development subsidies and other considerations 
by the City of Pontiac. 

Section 2. Definitions 
As used in the Chapter 42, Article VII, the following words and phrases shall mean the following: 

(a) Community Benefit Agreement: An Agreement between the City of Pontiac and 
Developer providing mutual consideration intended to rectify mutually acknowledged 
potential negative aspects associated with the proposed Qualified Development. 

(b) Developer: The person, firm, partnership, company, corporation, cooperative, or any 
other entity that is the recipient of a Development Subsidy. 

( c) Development Subsidies: Any economic incentives of value granted on a discretionary 
basis by the City of Pontiac to attract or retain a Qualified Development or jobs associated 
therewith; may include federal, state, or local economic incentives; and include but are not 
limited to economic incentives associated with, as amended: the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Financing Act, Commercial Development Act, Commercial Rehabilitation 
Act, Comdor Improvement Authority Act, Historical neighborhood Tax Increment 
Financing Act, Local Development Financing Act, Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial 
Development Districts Act, Principal Shopping Districts and Business Improvement 
Districts Act. Additionally, the lease or transfer of a city-owned building or property shall 
constitute a Development Subsidy. 

( d) Qualified Development: Shall lie elassified as either a Tier I 0r Tier 2. Tier 1 
Qualified De,cel0pments shall lie these devel0pments granted lieense t0 0perate under City 
Ordinanee 2357(B). Tier 2 Qualified Devel0pments shall lie those developments being 

1 



Proposed Community Benefits Ordinance 

granted Development Subsidies by the City of Pontiac with a total economic incentive, as 
determined in the sole discretion of the City of Pontiac, of greater than $50,000.00. 

Section 3. Community Benefits 
A Community Benefit agreed upon by the Developer of the Qualified Development and the City 
of Pontiac is a benefit confe1Ted upon the community of the City of Pontiac intended to ameliorate 
the potential negative aspects imposed upon the City of Pontiac by the Qualified Development. 
Although Community Benefits may differ based upon the Qualified Development, and this is not 
intended to be an exhaustive list, the City of Pontiac recognizes amenities, benefits, or 
commitments for the following purposes as Community Benefits, by Tier of Qualified 
Development: 

Tier 1 : Infrastnicture, Police and Fire Services, Job Training, Health Initiative Education, Parks 

Tier 2: Designated Projects, Infrastructure, Police and Fire Services, Parks 

Section 4. Community Benefits Agreement 
The Community Benefits Agreement shall be entered into between the City of Pontiac and the 
Developer of the Qualified Development. 

The Community Benefits Agreement shall set forth the Community Benefit proposed by the 
Developer of the Qualified Development and, if applicable, the interval of such Community 
Benefit. 

Community Benefit Agreements shall be timely recorded on the deed, and shall run with the land, 
on Qualified Developments for the duration of the Community Benefit Agreement. 

The term of a Community Benefit Agreement for a Tier 1 Qualified Development shall be not less 
than the tenn of its License to operate under City Ordinance 23 57(B), ineludiRg any extension or 
renewal thereof. The term ofa Community Benefit Agreement fur a Tier 2 Qualified Development 
shall be not less that the length of the Development Subsidy, including any extension or renewal 
thereof. 

Community Benefits Agreements are not transferrable by the Developer without approval through 
a City Council Resolution. 

Section 5. Community Benefits Agreement Required for Every Qualified Development 
All Qualified Developments are subject to a Community Benefit Agreement. All Qualified 
Developments must be approved by the Mayor and City Council, and such approval may only be 
subject to the execution of a valid Community Benefits Agreement with the Developer of that 
Qualified Development. 

Section 6. Exemptions Application 

2 



Proposed Community Benefits Ordinance 

If a Qualified Development and/or Developer believe they should be exempt from a Community 
Development Agreement, they may file an exemption application with the City Clerk. An 
Exemption requires approval of the Mayor and City Council. 

Section 7. Annual Reporting and Compliance 
A Developer shall provide a comprehensive, audited report detailing compliance with obligations 
under its Community Benefit Agreement for the prior year (or partial year) by January 1 of each 
year. The report shall include backup documentation for all donations made or funds expended 
related to the Community Development Agreement. 

Section 8. Breach of Community Benefits Agreement; Termination; Appeal 
If the City Department of Economic Development finds a Qualified Development and/or its 
Developer to be in breach of its (their) Community Development Agreement, it shall send a written 
Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement to the Qualified Development and its 
Developer by certified mail. If the Breach of Community Benefits Agreement is not cured within 
fourteen (14) days after the date the Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement was sent, 
the Mayor may terminate the Agreement. 

If the Qualified Development and/or Developer believe that the termination was made in error, it 
(they) may Appeal in writing to the City Council within thitty (30) days after the date the Notice 
of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement was sent. The City Council, by Resolution, shall 
only overturn a decision of the Mayor if it finds the decision was arbitrary or capricious. The 
determination of the City Council may only be reviewed by the Court of competent jurisdiction 
within the state of Michigan. 

Te1mination of the Community Benefits Agreement through this process shall result in the 
suspension of the ,mderlying 2357(B) facility license for Tier I Qualified Developments; and the 
st1Sf1ension of any economic incentives granted to a Tier 2 Qualified Development; pending the 
any-sooit administrative, legislative, or judicial appeal of that termination. Upon the exhaustion of 
fu1ther appeals creating a final dete1mination that the termination was proper, the 23 57(B) facility 
license or economic incentive granted to a Tier 2 Qualified Development shall be permanently 
revoked, subject to any fu1ther statutory appeal process for those licenses or economic incentives. 

Section 9. Severability. 
This ordinance and the various parts, sections, and clauses are hereby declared severable. If any 
clause, sentence, or paragraph or pait of this ordinance shall, for any reason, be adjudged or 
decreed to be invalid by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment or decree shall not 
effect, impair, or invalidate the remainder of this ordinance, but such judgment or decree shall be 
confined in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, or pmt thereof, directly involved in the 
controversy in which such judgment or decrees shall have been entered. 

Section 10. Repealer. 
That all ordinances or pmts of ordinances, of the City of Pontiac in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

3 



Proposed Community Benefits Ordinance 

Section 11. Publication. 
The Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation prior to its effective 
date. 

Section 12. Effective Date. 
This Ordinance shall be effective ten days after date of adoption. 

I hereby certify this ordinance was brought for a first reading at a meeting of the City Council of 
the City of Pontiac on the ___ day of _______ ., 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I finiher hereby ce1iify this ordinance was adopted at a second reading of the ordinance by the City 
Council of the City of Po1itiac on the ___ day of _______ ., 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I finiher hereby ce1iify that the foregoing is a true copy of the Ordinance as passed by the City 
Council and was published verbatim in a publication of general circulation on the ___ day of 
______ ,2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

4 



Exhibit C 

ORDINANCE NO. 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 42, "COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT", TO ADD 
ARTICLE VII, ENTITLED "PROVISIONING CENTER COMMUNITY BENEFITS 
AGREEMENTS". 

Section 1. Short Title; Purpose. 

(a) · This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the "Pontiac Provisioning Center 
Community Benefits Ordinance". 

(b) This Ordinance shall allow developers of provisioning centers, herein referred to as "Qualified 
Developments", to enter into agreements, herein referred to as "Community Benefits 
Agreements", that identify potential negative aspects of such developments and identify 
proportional community benefits to the City of Pontiac to rectify those negative aspects. The 
pledges of community benefits that would be incorporated into Community Benefits 
Agreements will be used in part to assist the City Clerk with the scoring and ranking of 
provisioning center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B). 

Section 2. Definitions 
As used in the Chapter 42, Atiicle VII, the following words and phrases shall mean the following: 

(a) Community Benefits Agreement: An agreement between the City of Pontiac and Developer 
providing mutual consideration intended to rectify mutually acknowledged potential negative 
aspects associated with the proposed Qualified Development. 

(b) Developer: Any person, film, partnership, company, corporation, cooperative, or any other 
entity ( other than the City of Pontiac) that is a party to a Community Benefits Agreement. 

(c) Qualified Development: Persons or entities submitting an application for a provisioning center 
permit during the 21-day petiod for provisioning center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 
2357(B). 

Section 3. Community Benefits; Pledged Community Benefits 
A community benefit agreed upon by the Developer of the Qualified Development and the City of 
Pontiac is a benefit confened upon the community of the City of Pontiac intended to ameliorate the 
potential negative aspects imposed upon the City of Pontiac by the Qualified Development. Although 
community benefits may differ based upon the Qualified Development, and this is not intended to be 
an exhaustive list, the City of Pontiac recognizes amenities, benefits, or commitments for the following 
purposes as community benefits: 

(a) Roads; Infrastrncture; Road Repair; Potholes; Road Matching 

1 



(b) Parks; Park Safety (cameras); Law Enforcement 

(c) High School Pool; Hawthorne Park (Water Park); Neighborhood Revitalization Plan 

( d) Job Training and Employment; Transitional Programs (previously incarcerated) 

(e) Library and Literacy; Health Initiative Education 

. (f) Business Development Fund (to assist City of Pontiac residents with funding for businesses and 
with starting and growing businesses) 

As pati of its scoring and ranking of provisioning center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 
2357(B), the City Clerk may consider those community benefits pledged to the City of Pontiac as part 
of such application. Any such pledges would be incorporated into a binding Community Benefits 
Agreement with the City of Pontiac. 

It is preferred, and the City Clerk may require, that applicants show that there is a reasonable amount 
of suppoti in the community for an applicant's pledged community benefits. It is the applicant's 
responsibility to show community suppoti for its pledged community benefits. 

In using pledged community benefits as part of its scoring and ranking of provisioning center 
applications pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B), the City Clerk will evaluate the commitment, quality, 
duration, community suppoti and amount of the pledged community benefits. If an applicant does not 
pledge community benefits, such applicant will receive a zero (0) score in certain key segments of the 
provisioning center application scoring. 

If an applicant has pledged community benefits as pait of its provisioning center application, before 
receiving a provisioning center permit, such applicant must enter into a Community Benefits 
Agreement with the City incorporating such pledged community benefits. The negotiation and 
completion of such Community Benefits Agreements may occur after the 21-day submission period 
for provisioning center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B). The Mayor may negotiate 
such Community Benefits Agreements (incorporating the pledged community benefits therein) on 
behalf of the City of Pontiac. All final Community Benefits Agreements must be approved by the City 
Council to be effective. 

Section 4. Community Benefits Agreement 
The Community Benefits Agreement would be entered into between the City of Pontiac and the 
Developer of the Qualified Development. 

The Community Benefits Agreement would set forth the community benefit proposed by the Developer 
of the Qualified Development and, if applicable, the interval of such community benefit. 

Community Benefits Agreements shall be timely recorded on the deed for the real property applicable 
to the Qualified Development, and shall run with the land, on Qualified Developments for the duration 
of the Community Benefits Agreement. 

2 



The te1m of a Community Benefits Agreement shall be not less than the term of the permit to operate 
under City Ordinance 2357(B), including any extension or renewal thereof. 

If a Developer is in breach or violation of a Community Benefits Agreement, such breach or violation 
shall constitute a breach of applicable law for purposes of City Ordinance 2357(B). If such breach or 
violation occurs, the City may exercise all rights and remedies against such Developer available under 
applicable law (subject to any notice and/or hearing rights of such Developer), including any rights and 
remedies pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B) (including inrelation to the suspension, revocation or 
renewal of a provisioning center permit), including Section 15 of City Ordinance 2357(B). 

Community Benefits Agreements are not transferrable by the Developer without approval through a 
City Council Resolution. 

Section 5. Community Benefits Agreement Approval 
All Community Benefits Agreements must be approved by the City Council to be effective. 

Section 6. Exemptions Application 
If a Qualified Development and/or Developer believe they should be exempt from a Community 
Development Agreement, they may file an exemption application with the City Clerk ("Exemption"). 
An Exemption requires approval of the City Council and may be approved or denied by the City 
Council in its sole discretion. 

Section 7. Annual Reporting and Compliance 
A Developer shall provide a comprehensive, audited report detailing compliance with obligations under 
its Community Benefits Agreement for the prior year (or partial year) by January 1 of each year. 
Fmther, prior to any extension or renewal of a pe1mit to operate under City Ordinance 2357(B), a 
Developer shall provide a comprehensive, audited report detailing compliance with obligations under 
its Community Benefits Agreement. Each report shall include backup documentation for all donations 
made or funds expended related to the Community Development Agreement. 

Section 8. Breach of Community Benefits Agreement; Termination; Appeal 
If the City Clerk finds a Qualified Development and/or its Developer to be in breach of its (their) 
Community Development Agreement (including if discovered as part of the City Clerk's review of the 
Qualified Development and/or Developer for purposes of a pe1mit renewal), it may send a written 
Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement to the Developer by certified mail. If the Breach 
of Community Benefits Agreement is not cured within fomteen (14) days after the date the Notice of 
Breach of Community Benefits Agreement was sent, the City Clerk, after a hearing (as necessary), may 
suspend or te1minate the Community Development Agreement. 

If the Developer believes that the suspension or termination was made in error, the Developer may 
appeal such decision in accordance with its appeals rights under City Ordinance 2357(B). 

Te1mination of the Community Benefits Agreement tlu-ough this process shall result in the suspension 
of the underlying City Ordinance 2357(B) provisioning center permit; subject to any permitted 

3 



administrative, legislative or judicial appeal of that te1mination. Upon the exhaustion of any appeals 
through the City of Pontiac creating a final dete1mination that the termination of the Community 

· Benefits Agreement was proper, the City Ordinance 2357(B) provisioning center pe1mit shall be 
pe1manently revoked, subject to any further statutory appeal process for such permit outside of the City 
of Pontiac. 

Section 9. Severability. 
This Ordinance and the various parts, sections, and clauses are hereby declared severable. If any clause, 
sentence, or paragraph or part of this Ordinance shall, for any reason, be adjudged or decreed to be 
invalid by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment or decree shall not effect, impair, or 
invalidate the remainder of this Ordinance, but such judgment or decree shall be confined in its 
operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, or part thereof, directly involved in the controversy in 
which such judgment or decrees shall have been entered. 

Section 10. Repealer. 
That all ordinances or parts of ordinances, of the City of Pontiac in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed, as pe1mitted by law. 

Section 11. Publication. 
The Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation prior to its effective date. 

Section 12. Effective Date. 
This Ordinance shall be effective ten days after date of adoption. 

I hereby certify this ordinance was brought for a first reading at a meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Pontiac on the ___ day of _______ , 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I further hereby certify this ordinance was adopted at a second reading of the ordinance by the City 
Council of the City of Pontiac on the ___ day of _______ , 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I further hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the Ordinance as passed by the City Council 
and was published verbatim in a publication of general circulation on the ___ day of 

-------, 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

3409l 42L3\l 58235-0000 l 

4 



Exhibit D 

Pontiac City Council Resolution 

19-64 Resolution Adopting a Conflict of Interest Policy for the Review of Medical 
Marihuana Permit Applications. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson 

Pietila. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has adopted Ordinance 2357B ("City of Pontiac Medical Marihuana 
Facilities Ordinance") ("Ordinance") to allow medical marihuana facilities to operate in the City of 
Pontiac; 
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac City Clerk is responsible for administering the medical marihuana 
facility pennit application process pursuant to the Ordinance; 
WHEREAS, upon receipt of a completed medical marihuana facility permit application ("Medical 
Marihuana Application") the City Clerk is responsible for forwarding the Medical Marihuana Application 
to the Fire, Building and Safety, and Planning Departments/Divisions, and the City Clerk may fonvard 
the Medical Marihuana Application or certain parts thereof to any other relevant department/division of 
the City (including contractors of the City) to review the Medical Marihuana Application for compliance 
with certain requirements of the Ordinance; 
WHEREAS, any employees, agents or contractors in such departments or divisions asked to review a 
Medical Marihuana Application or any part thereof will be required to disclose any conflict of interest to 
the City Clerk in accordance with the conflict of interest policy in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto 
("Conflict of Interest Policy"): 
NOW BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, that the City of Pontiac adopts the Conflict of Interest Policy in 
relation to the review of Medical Marihuana Applications. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No:None 
Resolution Passed. 

I, Garland S. Doyle, Interim City Clerk of the City of Pontiac, hereby certify that the above Resolution 
is a true and accurate copy of the Resolution passed by the City Council of the City of Pontiac on Februa1y 

26, 2019. _ ~\ 

cd+=:r ___ , _v - '·-------

Dated: August 9, 2019 



EXHIBIT A 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

MEDICAL MARIHUANA PERMIT REVIEWER CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 

Purpose 

The City of Pontiac· (the "City") has approved an ordinance to allow medical marihuana facilities to 
operate in the City. After receipt of a completed application, the Pontiac City Clerk is responsible for f01warding 
the application to the Fire, Building and Safety, and Planning Departments/Divisions, and the Pontiac City Clerk 
may f01ward the application or certain parts thereof to any other relevant department/division of the City 
(including contractors of the City) to confirni compliance with certain requirements of the City of Pontiac 
Medical Marihuana Facilities Ordinance ("Ordinance"). 

The City provides this Conflict of Interest Policy to ensure that there is full disclosure in connection with 
approval/review of any medical marihuana facility permit application ("Medical Marihuana Application") or 
inspection of any proposed medical marihuana facility that may provide an economic or other personal benefit 
to an employee, agent or contractor, or to any person or entity with whom they are related or have a financial 
interest. This will help to ensure that decisions are based entirely on merit. This policy is intended to supplement 
but not replace any applicable City, state or federal laws relating to conflicts of interest. 

Definitions 

1. Interested Person. An "Interested Person" is an individual who is in a position to review, inspect and/or 
approve components of an applicant's Medical Mmihuana Application or proposed medical marihuana facility 
on behalf of the Fire, Building and Safety, or Planning Departments/Divisions or any other relevant 
department/division of the City (including contractors of the City) tasked with reviewing, inspecting and/or 
approving any components of Medical Marihuana Applications or proposed medical maiihuana facilities. 

2. Family Member. A "Family Member" includes: the spouse of, or a brother, sister, in-law, ancestor 
(including parents and grandparents), child, grandchild or great grandchild of an Interested Person, or the spouse 
of any child, grandchild, or great grandchild of an Interested Person. 

3. Financial Interest. An Interested Person has a "Financial Interest" if: 

(a) · such Interested Person, or any Family Member or Related Entity of such Interested Person, is 
directly or indirectly involved in any transaction or exchange with an entity or individual that has submitted or 
plans to submit a Medical Marihuana Application to operate a medical marihuana facility in the City ( other than 
retail purchases of medical marihuana at a provisioning center in compliance with applicable laws); or 

(b) such Interested Person, or any Family Member or Related Entity of such Interested Person, has 
a compensation mrnngement or a potential compensation anangement of any form, direct or indirect, with any 
entity or individual that has submitted or plans to submit a Medical Marihuana Application to operate a medical 
marihuana facility in the City. 



4. Related Entity. A "Related Entity'' means: any corporation, partnership, limited liability company, 
estate, trust or other entity or organization in which any Interested Person or any Family Member of such 
Interested Person, directly or indirectly, owns or controls or is negotiating to own or control (including through 
other entities or organizations) 1 % or more of the voting power, 1 % or more of the profits or economic interest 
or 1 % or more of the ownership interest of such entity or organization. 

Acceptance of Benefit 

Employees, agents and contractors reviewing, inspecting and/or approving components of an applicant's 
Medical Marihuana Application or proposed medical marihuana facility ( and their Family Members and Related 
Entities) shall not solicit, accept or retain any direct or indirect gift, gratuity, compensation, payment or other 
benefit ( collectively, "Benefit") from any individual or entity operating or seeking to operate a medical 
marihuana facility in the City. 

Procedures for Conflicts oflnterest 

1. Duty to Disclose. Each year, promptly after the release of the Medical Marihuana Application by the 
City Clerk and on each anniversary thereafter (and in any case prior to any review by such Interested Person of 
any Medical Marihuana Application), each Interested Person shall complete and submit to the City Clerk the 
Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement/ Affidavit For Medical Marihuana Facility Pennit Applications 
attached hereto ("Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement"). Even if an Interested Person has completed a 
Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement, if the Interested Person receives a Medical Marihuana Application in 
which such Interested Person has a Financial Interest or other actual or potential conflict of interest, before such 
Interested Person may review the Medic.al Marihuana Application, such Interested Person shall disclose to the 
City Clerk the existence of such Financial Interest or conflict together with a statement of facts that describe and 
explain such Financial Interest or conflict. 

2. Reappointment. Upon receipt of the Interested Persons' disclosure of Financial Interest or other actual 
or potential conflict ( or any other discovery of the same), the City Clerk shall report such Financial Interest or 
conflict to the respective head of the department or division and another employee, agent or contractor shall be 
assigned to the paiiicular Medical Marihuana Application. 

3. Violations. 

( a) If the City Clerk or head of the respective depa11ment or division has reasonable cause to believe 
that an Interested Person has failed to disclose any actual or potential conflict of interest (including without 
limitation any Financial Interest) or has directly or indirectly solicited, accepted or retained a Benefit from any 
individual or entity operating or seeking to operate a medical marihuana facility in the City, the City Clerk or 
such depaiiment/division head shall inform the Interested Person of the basis for such belief and afford him/her 
an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose or explain the improper Benefit. 

. (b) If, after hearing the response of the Interested Person and making such fmiher investigation as 
may be wa1rnnted under the circumstances, the City Clerk or respective depaiiment/division head dete1mines 
-that the Interested Person has in fact failed to disclose an actual or potential conflict of interest or directly or 
indirectly solicited, accepted or retained a Benefit, the City Clerk or respective department/division head shall 
take appropriate disciplinary and co11'ective action, and may forward the matter to the appropriate law 
enforcement agency to investigate. 

Approved by City of Pontiac: 
Date 



CITY OF PONTIAC ("CITY") 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT/AFFIDAVIT 
FOR MEDICAL MARIHUANA FACILITY PERMIT APPLICATIONS 

Name: __________________ (Interested Person) 

I. As an Interested Person, please list any Related Entity ( as defined in the City's Conflict of Interest 
Policy) that has or plans to submit an application to the City to operate a medical marihuana facility . 

Date .cxm Person Involved 
Entity Percentage Interest From To (relationship) 

2. As an Interested Person, please list any organization or entity (profit or nonprofit) that you or a Family 
Member (as defined in the City's Conflict of Interest Policy) or Related Entity cmTently (or plan to) 
serve as an employee, contractor, agent, manager, director, officer or similar position or receive or are 
entitled to any form of compensation, that has or plans to submit an application to the City to operate a 
medical marihuana facility. 

Person Involved 
Organization/Business Position/Involvement (Relationship) 



3. As an Interested Person, please list any other organization, entity, involvement, relationship, conditions 
or circumstances that place or may place you in a conflict or potential conflict regarding the review, 
inspection or approval of any medical marihuana facility pennit application for the City, including 
without limitation any Financial Interest (as defined in the City's Conflict of Interest Policy). · 

Ore:anization or Circumstance Conflict or Potential Conflict 

4. Neither myself nor any of my Family Members or Related Entities have solicited, accepted or retained 
any direct or indirect gift, gratuity, compensation, payment or other benefit from any individual or entity 
operating or seeking to operate a medical marihuana facility in the City. 

Under penalties of pe1jury, I declare that: (i) I have completed this Disclosure Statement/ Affidavit and 
that to the best of my knowledge and belief it is flue, coJTect and complete; and (ii) I will update this Disclosure 
Statement/ Affidavit within one (I) business day after any relevant circumstances change by notifying the City 
Clerk of such change. 

Signature: _______________ _ Date: ---------

STATE OF -------

COUNTY OF -------

) 
)SS 
) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of ______ _ 
201_,by __________ _ 

----------~ Notary Public 
_________ County, Michigan 
My commission expires: ______ _ 

32895 l 77.4\l 58235-0000 l 



#2 

SUB 

COMMITTEE 
REPORT 



FINANCE SUBCOMMITTEE NOTES 

August 13, 2019 

In attendance: 
Council members: Chahperson Patrice \Vaterman, Council President Kermit Williams and Gloria Iv1iller 
Mayor: Deirdre Waterman 
Hughey Newsome 
Community Relations Specialist: James Johnson 

Start time: 4:00 p.m. 
AGENDA 

I. New Business 

Cash Summary by fund as of 6/30/2019 

Items of interest: 

• The total cash and investments in all funds for the City a& of 6/30/2019 was $47,632,014. The General fund 
portion of the total amount of cash is $16,443,521. TI1e net increase in the balance compared to the previous 
month is as the result of increased income tax collection. 

• Income tax collections for the current fiscal year vs prior fiscal year. Revenue is over $ lmillion greater at 
6/30/2019 compared to 6/30/2018. 

• Property tax collections as of 8/13/2019 show a total amount of City millages collected as $11,079,397.09 vs 
$12,559,699.81 billed, which is approximately 88% 

•As of 6/30/2019, total appropriations in the Ccmcte1y Fund (Fund 209) have exceeded its budget for FY 
18/19. Currently, the fund is over budget by approximately $60,000. This was due to necessary repairs and 
maintenance that were not budgeted. For financial statement purposes, we are planning on folding this fund 
into the General Govemment function within the General Fund. 

• The Building Inspection Fund (Fund 249) is also over budget for FY18/19, however no action is needed 
since this fund is a non major fund and also has plenty of fund balance to cover th_e amount over budget 
(currently about $18,000). As of 6/30/2019, revenue is exceeding expenditures by approximately $486,000. 

General Fund Balance review: 

Fund balance as of7-1-18 
Phoenix Center Settlement Payment 
Non-Spendable Fund Balance 
Committed for Youth Center purchase 
Net revenue over expenditures 

$17,359,202.00 
($3,550,000.00) 
($15,278.00) 
($3,200,000.00) 
($822,741.62) 

• The Insurance Fund is currently negative as tl1e police and fire VEBA hasn't been paid back yet. 
• The Phoenh: Center is a prepaid expense $15,278.00 

II. Requests from the Chair 

• What or where are we on implementing the DPU unit for extra Sheriffs on the street? What would be the 
cost to move fo1ward? 

1 



The Administration has not reached a conclusion on whether or not to fund the DPU. The proposal 
provided by the Sherriff's Office reflects: 

Year 2019: 
1 Patrol Sergeant at a contracted rate of $150,805 
4 Deputy II (no-fill) at a rate of$132,996 for a total of$531,984 

Total: $682,789 

Year 2020: 
6 Deputy II (no-fill) at a contracted rate of $136,878 

Total: $821,268 

• How will the funds from the medical marijuana application fees be placed in the budget? Will it be a separate 
line item that will apply to community benefits only? · , 

In the budget adopted by Council in June, the revenue from Medical Marihuana fees is shown as 100k 
for this fiscal year. This money flows into the General Fund as a whole, account 101-000-478.001. 

• As it relates to Fed Ex, is anything being done about the 1 million dollars for the residents for improvements 
passed by Council? 

The Administration has limited visibility, but will discuss with DPW and other entities, 

• \'('hat is the amount of donations received from Roadkill to the City this year? 

The administration is able to·present the Road Kill and Dream Cruise (Pontiac Power Week) events 
by raising money from sponsorships. 

• A closed session will be requested regarding an update on the IRS retirement insurance, 

• What can be done about the condition of the roads in the condo's off Golf Drive as the streets are in 
deplorable condition? 

This was out of the scope of Finance and will be referred to DPW 

• 1be request to make a full-time employee part-time at the Sheriffs department needs to be addressed, 

• A request was made for a report as to the status of the Bloomfield Park Project, more specifically, $2million 
dollars was to be allocated for each phase, · 

A report cannot be given as the Administration is short staffed. 

*235 Wesson Street to be discussed in closed session. The issue of feasibility, the use of millage funds, 
capital improvements, a cost analysis of buying and selling the senior centers will have to be 
investigated, 

Adjourned: 4:30 pm 

2 



#7 
COMMUNICATION 



TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

DATE: 

MJEMO.RANDUM 

Garland S. Doyle, Interim Pontiac City Clerk 

Matthew Neale, Esq. 

Revised Community Benefits Ordinance 

August 12, 2019 

As requested, the revised Community Benefits Ordinance, titled "Pontiac Provisioning Center 
Community Benefits Ordinance", is meant to assist the City Clerk in scoring and ranking 
provisioning center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B); by allowing developers to 
make pledges as part of their provisioning center application that identify community benefits to 
the City to help rectify negative aspects of their development. Any such pledges would be 
incorporated into a binding Community Benefits Agreement with the City of Pontiac. 

Pursuant to Section 9(1) of City Ordinance 2357(B), "[i]n its application assessment, evaluation, 
scoring, ranking, and deliberations related to permits to operate a provisioning center .... ", the 
City Clerk "shall assess, evaluate, score, and rank each application based upon a scoring and 
ranking procedure· developed by the clerk consistent with the requirements, conditions, and 
provisions .... " of City Ordinance 2357(B) in certain specified categories. 

Of those categories specified in such Section 9(1), certain of the categories relate to community 
benefits. If an applicant, as part of its application for a provisioning center permit, makes pledges 
of community benefits to the City of Pontiac, then, based on the City Clerk's assessment and 
evaluation of such benefits, such applicant will get points for such pledges. Such points will be 
used in the provisioning center scoring. However, before an applicant will receive a permit, the 
applicant must enter into a Community Benefits Agreement with the City incorporating such 
pledged benefits. The amount of points for different pledges will be based on the commitment, 
quality, duration, community support and amount of the pledged community benefits. 

If an applicant breaches a Community Benefits Agreement with the City, pursuant to Section 15 
of City Ordinance 2357(B) and other applicable Sections and laws, the City Clerk may revoke or 
suspend a provisioning center permit or not renew a provisioning center permit (subject to any 
notice and/or hearing rights of an applicant). 

As compared to the prior proposed community benefits ordinance, the Pontiac Provisioning 
Center Community Benefits Ordinance is intended to be specifically used for the scoring and 
ranking of provisioning center applications under City Ordinance 2357(B). Any references to 
medical marijuana, Tfor 1 or City Ordinance 2357(B) were thus removed from the prior 
proposed community benefits ordinance. 

34195273. l \158235-0000 I 



ORDINANCE NO. 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 42, "COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT", TO AIDlD 
ARTICLE VU, ENTITLED "PROVJ[SIONING CENTER COMMUNITY BENEFITS 
AGREEMENTS". 

Section 1. Short Title; Purpose. 

(a) This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the "Pontiac Provisioning Center 
Community Benefits Ordinance". 

(b) This Ordinance shall allow developers of provisioning centers, herein referred to as 
"Qualified Developments", to enter into agreements, herein referred to as "Community 
Benefits Agreements", that identify potential negative aspects of such developments and 
identify proportional community benefits to the City of Pontiac to rectify those negative 
aspects. The pledges of community benefits that would be incorporated into Community 
Benefits Agreements will be used in part to assist the City Clerk with the scoring and ranking 
of provisioning center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B). 

Section 2. Definitions 
As used in the Chapter 42, Article VII, the following words and phrases shall mean the following: 

(a) Community Benefits Agreement: An agreement between the City of Pontiac and Developer 
providing mutual consideration intended to rectify mutually acknowledged potential negative 
aspects associated with the proposed Qualified Development. 

(b) Developer: Any person, fum, partnership, company, corporation, cooperative, or any other 
entity (other than the City of Pontiac) that is a party to a Community Benefits Agreement. 

( c) Qualified Development: Persons or entities submitting an application for a provisioning center 
permit during the 21-day period for provisioning center applications pursuant to City 
Ordinance 2357(B). 

Section 3. Community Benefits; Pledged Community Benefits 
A community benefit agreed upon by the Developer of the Qualified Development and the City of 
Pontiac is a benefit conferred upon the community of the City of Pontiac intended to ameliorate the 
potential negative aspects imposed upon the City of Pontiac by the Qualified Development. 
Although 'connnunity benefits may differ based upon the Qualified Development, and this is not 
intended to be an exhaustive list, the City of Pontiac recognizes amenities, benefits, or commitments 
for the following purposes as community benefits: 

(a)' Roads; Infrastructure; Road Repair; Potholes; Road Matching 

1 



(b) Parks; Park Safety (cameras); Law Enforcement 

( c) High School Pool; Hawthorne Park (Water Park); Neighborhood Revitalization Plan 

(d) Job Training and Employment; Transitional Programs (previously incarcerated) 

( e) Library and Literacy; Health Initiative Education 

(f) Business Development Fund (to assist City of Pontiac residents with funding for businesses 
and with starting and growing businesses) 

As part of its scoring and ranking of provisioning center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 
2357(B), the City Clerk may consider those community benefits pledged to the City of Pontiac as part 
of such application. Any such pledges would be incorporated into a binding Community Benefits 
Agreement with the City of Pontiac. 

It is preferred; and the City Clerk may require, that applicants show that there is a reasonable amount 
of support in the community for an applicant's pledged community benefits. It is the applicant's 
responsibility to show community support for its pledged community benefits. 

In using pledged community benefits as part of its scoring and ranking of provisioning center 
applications pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B), the City Clerk will evaluate the commitment, 
quality, duration, community support and amount of the pledged community benefits. If an applicant 
does not pledge community benefits, such applicant will receive a zero (0) score in certain key 
segments of the provisioning center application scoring. 

If an applicant has pledged community benefits as part of its provisioning center application, before 
receiving a provisioning center permit, snch applicant must enter into a Community Benefits 
Agreement with the City incorporating such pledged community benefits. The negotiation and 
completion of such Community Benefits Agreements may occur after the 21-day submission period 
for provisioning center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B). The Mayor may negotiate 
such Community Benefits Agreements (incorporating the pledged community benefits therein) on 
behalf of the City of Pontiac. All final Community Benefits Agreements must be approved by the 
City Council to be effective. 

Section 4; Community Benefits Agreement 
The Community Benefits Agreement would be entered. into between the City of Pontiac and the 
Developer of the Qualified Development. 

The Community Benefits Agreement would set forth the community benefit proposed by the 
Developer of the Qualified Development and, if applicable, the interval of such community benefit. 

Community Benefits Agreements shall be timely · recorded on the deed for the real property 
applicable to the Qualified Development, and shall run with the land, on Qualified Developments for 
the duration of the Community Benefits Agreement. 

2 



The term of a Community Benefits Agreement shall be not less than the term of the permit to operate 
under City Ordinance 2357(B), including any extension or renewal thereof. 

If a Developer is in breach or violation of a Community Benefits Agreement, such breach or violation 
shall constitute a breach of applicable law for purposes of City Ordinance 2357(B). If such breach or 
violation occurs, the City may exercise all rights and remedies against such Developer available 
under applicable law (subject to any notice and/or hearing rights of such Developer), including any 
rights and remedies pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B) (including in relation to the suspension, 
revocation or renewal of a provisioning center permit), including Section 15 of City Ordinance 
2357(B). 

Community Benefits Agreements are not transferrable by the Developer without approval through a 
City Council Resolution. 

Section 5. Community Benefits Agreement Approval 
All Community Benefits Agreements must be approved by the City Council to be effective. 

Section 6. Exemptions Application 
If a Qualified Development and/or Developer believe they should be exempt from a Community 
Development Agreement, they may file an exemption application with the City Clerk ("Exemption"). 
An Exemption requires approval of the City Council and may be approved or denied by the City 
Council in its sole discretion. 

Section 7. Annual Reporting and Compliance 
A Developer shall provide a comprehensive, audited report detailing compliance with obligations 
under its Community Benefits Agreement for the prior year (or partial year) by January 1 of each 
year. Further, prior to any extension or renewal of a pe1mit to operate under City Ordinance 2357(B), 
a Developer shall provide a comprehensive, audited report detailing compliance with obligations 
under its Community Benefits Agreement. Each rep01t shall include backup documentation for all 
donations made or funds expended related to the Community Development Agreement. 

Section 8. Breach of Community Benefits Agreement; Termination; Appeal 
If the City Clerk finds a Qualified Development and/or its Developer to be in breach of its (their) 
Community Development Agreement (including if discovered as part of the City Clerk's review of 
the Qualified Development and/or Developer for purposes of a permit renewal), it may send a written 
Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement to the Developer by certified mail. If the 
Breach of Community Benefits Agreement is not cured within fourteen (14) days after the date the 
Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement was sent, the City Clerk, after a hearing (as 
necessary), may suspend or terminate the Community Development Agreement. 

If the Developer believes that the suspension or termination was made in error, the_ Developer may 
appeal such decision in accordance with its appeals rights under City Ordinance 2357(B): 

3 



Termination of the Community Benefits Agreement through this process shall result in the 
suspension of the underlying City Ordinance 2357(B) provisioning center permit; subject to any 
permitted administrative, legislative or judicial appeal of that termination. Upon the exhaustion of 
any appeals through the City of Pontiac creating a final determination that the termination of the 
Community Benefits Agreement was proper, the City Ordinance 2357(B) provisioning center permit 
shall be permanently revoked, subject to any further statutory appeal process for such permit outside. 

of the City of Pontiac . 

. Section 9. Severability. 
This Ordinance and the various parts, sections, and clauses are hereby declared severable. If any 
clause, sentence, or paragraph or part of this Ordinance shall, for any reason, be adjudged or decreed 
to be invalid by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment or decree shall not effect, impair, 
or invalidate the remainder of this Ordinance, but such judgment or decree shall be confined in its 
operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, or part thereof, directly involved in the controversy in 
which such judgment or decrees shall have been entered. 

Section 10. Repealer, 
That all ordinances or parts of ordinances, of the City of Pontiac in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed, as permitted by law. 

Section 11. Publication. 
The Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation prior to its effective 
date. 

Section 12. Effective Date. 
This Ordinance shall be effective ten days after date of adoption. 

I hereby certify this ordinance was brought for a first reading at a meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Pontiac on the ___ day of _______ ,, 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I further hereby certify this ordinance was adopted at a second reading of the ordinance by the City 
Council of the City of Pontiac on the ___ day of ______ __, 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I further hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the Ordinance as passed by the City 
Council and was published verbatim in a publication of general circulation on the ___ day of 

-------' 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

34091421.3\158235-0000 I 

4 



City Attorney Draft Ordinance 

OllIDINANCE NO. 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC OllIDAINS: 

AN ORDINANCE TO AM:JEND CHAPTJEJR 42, "COMMUl\']['fY ]IJIEVELOPMENT", TO 
ADD ARTICLE VU, ENTITLED "COMMUNITY BENEFIT AGREEMENTS". 

Section 1. · Short Title; Purpose. 

(a) Thfa Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the "Pontiac Community Benefit 

Ordinance". 

(b) This Ordinance shall require developers of certain types of developments, herein referred 
to as "Qualified Developments", to enter into agreements, herein referred to as 
"Community Benefit Agreements", that identify potential negative aspects of 
developments and identify proportional community benefits to the City of Pontiac to rectify 
those negative aspects as a condition for development subsidies and other considerations 

by the City of Pontiac. 

Section 2. Definitions 
As used in the Chapter 42, Article VII, the following words and phrases shall mean the following: 

(a) Community Benefit Agreement: An Agreement between the City of Pontiac and 
Developer providing mutual consideration intended to rectify mutually acknowledged 
potential negative aspects associated with the proposed Qualified Development. 

(b) Developer: The person, firm, partnership, company, corporation, cooperative, or any 
other entity that is the recipient of a Development Subsidy. 

( c) Development Subsidies: Any economic incentives of value granted on a discretionary 
basis by the City of Pontiac to attract or retain a Qualified Development or jobs associated 
therewith; may include federal, state, or local economic incentives; and include but are not 
limited to economic incentives associated with, as amended: the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Financing Act, Commercial Development Act, Commercial Rehabilitation 
Act, Corridor Improvement Authority Act, Historical neighborhood Tax Inc:rement 
Financing Act, Local Development Financing Act, Plant Rehabilitation and Indushial 
Development Districts Act, Principal Shopping Districts and Business Improvement 
Districts Act. Additionally, the lease or transfer of a city-owned building or property shall 

constitute a Development Subsidy. 

( d) Qualified Development: 8hall be classified as either a Tier I or Tier 2. Tier I 
Qualified Developments shall be those developments granted lieoose to operate under City 
Ordinanee 23 57(B). Tier 2 Qualified Developments shall be those developments being 

1 



City Attorney Draft Ordinance 

granted Development Subsidies by the City of Pontiac with a total economic incentive, as 
determined in the sole discretion of the City of Pontiac, of greater than $50,000.00. 

Section 3. Community Benefits 
A Community Benefit agreed upon by the Developer of the Qualified Development and the City 
of Pontiac is a benefit conferred upon the community of the City of Pontiac intended to ameliorate 
the potential negative aspects imposed upon the City of Pontiac by the Qualified Development. 
Although Community Benefits may differ based upon the Qualified Development, and this is not 
intended to be an exhaustive list, the City of Pontiac recognizes amenities, benefits, or 
commitments for the following . pmposes as Community Benefits, by Tier of Qualified 
Development: 

Tier 1: Infrastruome, Police and Fire 8ervioes, Job Training, Health Initiative Education, Parks 

Tier 2: Designated Projects, Infrastructme, Police and Fire Services, Parks 

Section 4. Community Benefits Agreement 
The Community Benefits Agreement shall be entered into between the City of Pontiac and the 
Developer of the Qualified Development. 

The Community Benefits Agreement shall set fotih the Community Benefit proposed by the 
Developer of the Qualified Development and, if applicable, the interval of such Community 
Benefit. 

Community Benefit Agreements shall be timely recorded on the deed, and shall run with the land, 
on Qualified Developments for the duration of the Community Benefit Agreement. 

The term of a Community Benefit Agreement for a Tier 1 Qualified Developmeat s!Jall be not less 
than the term of its Lieease to operate uader City Ordinaaee 2357(B), iacluding any exteasion or 
reaewal thereof. The tom, ofa Community Beaefit f,greemORt fer a Tier 2 Qualified Development 
shall be not less that the length of the Development Snbsidy, including any extension or renewal 
thereof. 

Community Benefits Agreements are not transferrable by the Developer withont approval through 
a City Council Resolution. 

Section 5. Commumity_Benefits Agreement Required for Every Qualified Development 
All Qualified Developments are subject to a Community Benefit Agreement. All Qualified 
Developments must be approved by the Mayor and City Council, and such approval may only be 
subject to the execution of a valid Community Benefits Agreement with the Developer of that 
Qualified Development. 

Section 6. Exemptions Application 

2 



City Attorney Draft Ordinance 

If a Qualified Development and/or Developer believe they should be exempt from a Community 
Development Agreement, they may file an exemption application with the City Clerk. An 
Exemption requires approval of the Mayor and City Council. 

Section 7. Annual Reporting and Compliance 
A Developer shall provide a comprehensive, audited report detailing compliance with obligations 
under its Community Benefit Agreement for the prior year (or partial year) by January 1 of each 
year. The report shall include backup documentation for all donations made or funds expended 
related to the Community Development Agreement. 

Section 8. Breach of Commwtlty Benefits Agreement; Termination; Appeal 
If the City Department of Economic Development finds a Qualified Development and/or its 
Developer to be in breach of its (their) Community Development Agreement, it shall send a written 
Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement to the Qualified Development and its 
Developer by certified mail. If the B,reach of Community Benefits Agreement is not cured within 
fourteen (14) days after the date the Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement was sent, 
the Mayor may terminate the Agreement. 

If the Qualified Development and/or Developer believe that the termination was made in en-or, it 
(they) may Appeal in writing to the City Council within thitiy (30) days after the date the Notice 
of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement was sent. The City Council, by Resolution, shall 
only overturn a decision of the Mayor if it finds the decision was arbitraiy or capricious. The 
determination of the City Council may only be reviewed by the Court of competent jurisdiction 
within the state of Michigan. 

Termination of the Community Benefits Agreement through this process shall result in the 
suspension of the underlying 2357(B) facility license for Tier 1 Qualified Developments; and the 
suspension of any economic incentives granted to a Tier 2 Qualified ,Development; pending the 
any-.sueh administrative, legislative, or judicial appeal of that termination. Upon the exhaustion of 
further appeals creating a final determination that the termination was proper, the 2357(B) facility 
license or economic incentive granted to a Tier 2 Qualified Development shall be permanently 

. revoked, subject to any' further statutory appeal process for those licenses or economic incentives. 

Section 9. Severability. 
This ordinance and the various parts, sections, and clauses are hereby declared severable. If any 
clause, sentence,. or paragraph or patt of this ordinance shall, for any reason, be adjudged or 
decreed to be invalid by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment or decree shall not 
effect, impair, or invalidate the remainder of this ordinance, but such judgment or decree shall be 
confined in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, or part thereof, directly involved in the 
controversy in which such judgment or decrees shall have been entered. · 

Section 10. Repealer. . 
That all ordinances or parts of ordinances, of the City of Pontiac in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

3 



City Attorney Draft Ordinance 

Section 11. Publication. 
The Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation prior fo its effective 
date. 

Section 12. Effective Date. 
This Ordinance shall be effective ten days after date of adoption. 

I hereby certify this ordinance was brought for a first reading at a meeting of the City Council of 
the City of Pontiac on the ___ day of _______ , 2019. · 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I further hereby certify this ordinance was adopted at a second reading of the ordinance by the City 
Council of the City of Pontiac on the ___ day of _______ , 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I further hereby ce1iify that the foregoing is a true copy of the Ordinance as passed by the City 
Council and was published verbatim in a publication of general circulation on the ___ day of 
------' 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

4 



#8 

ORDINANCE 



ORDINANCE NO. 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 42, "COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT", TO 
ADD ARTICLE VII, ENTITLED "COMMUNITY BENEFIT AGREEMENTS". 

Section 1. Short Title; Purpose. 

(a) This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the "Pontiac Community Benefit 
Ordinance". 

(b) This Ordinance shall require developers of certain types of developments, herein refen-ed 
to as "Qualified Developments", to enter into agreements, herein referred to as 
"Community Benefit Agreements", that identify potential negative aspects of 
developments and identify proportional community benefits to the City of Pontiac to rectify 
those negative aspects as a condition for development subsidies and other considerations 
by the City of Pontiac. 

Section 2. Definitions 
As used in the Chapter 42, Article VII, the following words and phrases shall mean the following: 

(a) Community Benefit Agreement: An Agreement between the City of Pontiac and 
Developer providing mutual consideration intended to rectify mutually acknowledged 
potential negative aspects associated with the proposed Qualified Development. 

(b) Developer: The person, firm, partnership, company, corporation, cooperative, or any 
other entity that is the recipient of a Development Subsidy. 

( c) Development Subsidies: Any economic incentives of value granted on a discretionary 
basis by the City of Pontiac to attract or retain a Qualified Development or jobs associated 
therewith; may include federal, state, or local economic incentives; and include but are not 
limited to economic incentives associated with, as amended: the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Financing Act, Commercial Development Act, Commercial Rehabilitation 
Act, Comdor Improvement Authority Act, Historical neighborhood Tax Increment 
Financing Act, Local Development Financing Act, Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial 
Development Districts Act, Principal Shopping Districts and Business Improvement 
Districts Act. Additionally, the lease or transfer of a city-owned building or property shall 
constitute a Development Subsidy. 

( d) Qualified Development: Shall be classified as either a Tier 1 or Tier 2. . Tier 1 
Qualified Developments shall be those developments granted license to operate under City· 
Ordinance 2357(B). Tier 2 Qualified Developments shall be those developments being 

1 



granted Development Subsidies by the City of Pontiac with a total economic incentive, as 
detennined in the sole discretion of the City of Pontiac, of greater than $50,000.00. 

Section 3. Community Benefits 
A Community Benefit agreed upon by the Developer of the Qualified Development and the City 
of Pontiac is a benefit conferred upon the community of the City of Pontiac intended to ameliorate 
the potential negative aspects imposed upon the City of Pontiac by the Qualified Development. 
Although Community Benefits may differ based upon the Qualified Development, and this is not 
intended· to be an exhaustive list, the City of Pontiac recognizes amenities, benefits, or 
commitments for the following purposes as Community Benefits, by Tier of Qualified 
Development: 

Tier 1: Infrastructure, Police and Fire Services, Job Training, Health Initiative Education, Parks 

Tier 2: Designated Projects, Infrastructure, Police and Fire Services, Parks 

Section 4. Community Benefits Agreement 
The Community Benefits Agreement shall be entered into between the City of Pontiac and the 
Developer of the Qualified Development. 

The Community Benefits Agreement shall set fo11h the Community Benefit proposed by the 
Developer of the Qualified Development and, if applicable, the intei-val of such Community 
Benefit. 

Cormnunity Benefit Agreements shall be timely recorded on the deed, and shall run with the land, 
on Qualified Developments for the duration of the Community Benefit Agreement. 

The te1m of a Community Benefit Agreement for a Tier 1 Qualified Development shall be not less 
than the tenn of its License to operate under City Ordinance 2357(B), including any extension or 
renewal thereof. The te1m of a Community Benefit Agreement for a Tier 2 Qualified Development 
shall be not less that the length of the Development Subsidy, including any extension or renewal 
thereof. 

Community Benefits Agreements are not transferrable by the Developer without approval through 
a City Council Resolution. 

Section 5. Community Benefits Agreement Required for Every Qualified Development 
All Qualified Developments are subject to a Community Benefit Agreement. All Qualified 
Developments must be approved by the Mayor and City Council, and such approval may only be 
subject to the execution of a valid Community Benefits Agreement with the Developer of that 
Qualified Development. 

2 



Section 6. Exemptions Application 
If a Qualified Development and/or Developer believe they should be exempt from a Community 
Development Agreement, they may file an exemption application with the City Clerk. An 
Exemption requires approval of the Mayor and City Council. 

Section 7. Annual Reporting and Compliance 
A Developer shall provide a comprehensive, audited report detailing compliance with obligations 
under its Community Benefit Agreement for the prior year ( or partial year) by January I of each 
year. The report shall include backup documentation for all donations made or funds expended 
related to the Community Development Agreement. 

Section 8. Breach of Community Benefits Agreement; Termination; Appeal 
If the City Department of Economic Development finds a Qualified Development and/or its 
Developer to be in breach ofits (their) Community Development Agreement, it shall send a written 
Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement to the Qualified Development and its 
Developer by ce1iified mail. If the Breach of Community Benefits Agreement is not cured within 
fourteen (14) days after the date tlie Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement was sent, 
the Mayor may terminate the Agreement. 

If the Qualified Development and/or Developer believe that the termination was made in error, it 
(they) may Appeal in writing to the City Council within thirty (30) days after the date the Notice 
of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement was sent. The City Council, by Resolution, shall 
only overturn a decision of the Mayor if it finds the decision was arbitrary or capricious. The 
determination of the City Council may only be reviewed by the Comi of competent jmisdiction 
within the state of Michigan. 

Tennination of the Community Benefits Agreement through this process shall result in the 
suspension of the underlying 2357(B) facility license for Tier 1 Qualified Developments; and the 
suspension of any economic incentives granted to a Tier 2 Qualified Development; pending the 
any such administrative, legislative, or judicial appeal of that termination. Upon the exhaustion of 
further appeals creating a final determination that the te1mination was proper, the 2357(B) facility 
license or economic incentive granted to a Tier 2 Qualified Development shall be pe1manently 
revoked, subject to any further statutory appeal process for those licenses or economic incentives. 

Section 9. Severability. 
This ordinance and the vmious pmis, sections, and clauses are hereby declared severable. If any 
clause, sentence, or paragraph or part of this ordinance shall, for any reason, be adjudged or 
decreed to be invalid by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment or decree shall not 
effect, impair, or invalidate the remainder of this ordinance, but such judgment or decree shall be 
confined in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, or part thereof, directly involved in the 
controversy in which such judgment or decrees shall have been entered. 

Section 10. Repealer. 

3 



That all ordinances or parts of ordinances, of the City of Pontiac in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

Section 11. Publication. 
The Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation prior to its effective 
date. 

Section 12. Effective Date. 
This Ordinance shall be effective ten days after date of adoption. 

I hereby certify this ordinance was brought for a first reading at a meeting of the City Council of 
the City of Pontiac on the ___ day of _______ , 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I further hereby ce1iify this ordinance was adopted at a second reading of the ordinance by the City 
Council of the City of Pontiac on the ___ day of _______ , 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I further hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the Ordinance as passed by the City 
Council and was published verbatim in a publication of general circulation on the ___ day of 
------' 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

4 



#9 
ORDINANCE 



ORDINANCE NO. 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 42, "COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT", TO 
ADD ARTICLE VII, ENTITLED "COMMUNITY BENEFIT AGREEMENTS". 

Section 1. Short Title; Purpose. 

(a) This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the "Pontiac Community Benefit 
Ordinance". 

(b) This Ordinance shall require developers of certain types of developments, herein referred 
to as "Qualified Developments", to enter into agreements, herein refened to as 
"Community Benefit Agreements", that identify potential negative aspects of 
developments and identify proportional community benefits to the City of Pontiac to rectify 
those negative aspects as a condition for development subsidies and other considerations 
by the City of Pontiac. 

Section 2. Definitions 
As used in the Chapter 42, Article VII, the following words and phrases shall mean the following: 

(a) Community Benefit Agreement: An Agreement between the City of Pontiac and 
Developer providing mutual consideration intended to rectify mutually acknowledged 
potential negative aspects associated with the proposed Qualified Development. 

(b) Developer: The person, film, partnership, company, corporation, cooperative, or any 
other entity that is the recipient of a Development Subsidy. 

( c) Development Subsidies: Any economic incentives of value granted on a discretionary 
basis by the City of Pontiac to attract or retain a Qualified Development or jobs associated 
therewith; may include federal, state, or local economic incentives; and include but ·are not 
limited to economic incentives associated with, as amended: the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Financing Act, Commercial Development Act, Commercial Rehabilitation 
Act, Corridor Improvement Authority Act, Historical neighborhood Tax Increment 
Financing Act, Local Development Financing Act, Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial 
Development Districts Act, Principal Shopping Districts and Business Improvement 
Districts Act. Additionally, the lease or transfer of a city-owned building or property shall 
constitute a Development Subsidy. 

( d) Qualified Development: those developments being granted Development Subsidies by the 
City of Pontiac with a total economic incentive, as determined in the sole discretion of the 
City of Pontiac, of greater than $50,000.00. 

1 



Section 3. Community Benefits 
A Community Benefit agreed upon by the Developer of the Qualified Development and the City 
of Pontiac is a benefit confetTed upon the community of the City of Pontiac intended to ameliorate 
the potential negative aspects imposed upon the City of Pontiac by the Qualified Development. 
Although Community Benefits may differ based upon the Qualified Development, and this is not 
intended to be an exhaustive list, the City of Pontiac recognizes amenities, benefits, or 
commitments for the following purposes as Community Benefits: 

Designated Projects, Infrastmcture, Police and Fire Services, Parks 

Section 4. Community Benefits Agreement 
The Community Benefits Agreement shall be entered into between the City of Pontiac and the 
Developer of the Qualified Development. 

The Community Benefits Agreement shall set forth the Community Benefit proposed by the 
Developer of the Qualified Development and, if applicable, the interval of such Community 
Benefit. 

Community Benefit Agreements shall be timely recorded on the deed, and shall mn with the land, 
on Qualified Developments for the duration of the Community Benefit Agreement. 

The term of a Community Benefit Agreement for a Qualified Development shall be not less that 
the length of the Development Subsidy, including any extension or renewal thereof. 

Community Benefits Agreements are not transfetTable by the Developer without approval through 
a City Council Resolution. 

Section 5. Community Benefits Agreement Required for Every Qualified Development 
All Qualified Developments are subject to a Community Benefit Agreement. All Qualified 
Developments must be approved by the Mayor and City Council, and such approval may only be 
subject to the execution of a valid Community Benefits Agreement with the Developer of that 
Qualified Development. 

Section 6. Exemptions Application 
If a Qualified Development and/or Developer believe they should be exempt from a Community 
Development Agreement, they may file an exemption application with the City Clerk. An 
Exemption requires approval of the Mayor and City Council. 

Section 7. Annual Reporting and Compliance 
A Developer shall provide a comprehensive, audited report detailing compliance with obligations 
under its Community Benefit Agreement for the prior year ( or partial year) by January 1 of each 
year. The report shall include backup documentation for all donations made or funds expended 
related to the Community Development Agreement. 

2 



Section 8, Breach of Community Benefits Agreement; Termination; Appeal 
If the City Depmiment of Economic Development finds a Qualified Development and/or its 
Developer to be in breach of its (their) Community Development Agreement, it shall send a w1itten · 
Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement to the Qualified Development and its 
Developer by certified mail. If the Breach of Community Benefits Agreement is not cured within 
fourteen (14) days after the date the Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement was sent, 
the Mayor may terminate the Agreement. 

If the Qualified Development and/or Developer believe that the termination was made in en-or, it 
(they) may Appeal in writing to the City Council within thirty (30) days after the date the Notice 
of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement was sent. The City Council, by Resolution, shall 
only overturn a decision of the Mayor if it finds the decision was arbitrary or capricious. The 
dete1mination of the City Council may only be reviewed by the Court of competent jmisdiction 
within the state of Michigan. 

Termination of the Community Benefits Agreement through this process shall result in the 
suspension of any economic incentives granted to a Qualified Development; pending any 
administrative, legislative, or judicial appeal of that termination. Upon the exhaustion of fmiher 
appeals creating a final determination that the te1mination was proper, the economic incentive 
granted to a Qualified Development shall be permanently revoked, subject to any fmiher statutory 
appeal process for those licenses or economic incentives. 

Section 9. Severability. 
This ordinance and the various parts, sections, and clauses are hereby declared severable. If any 
clause, sentence, or paragraph or part of this ordinance shall, for any reason, be adjudged or 
decreed to be invalid by any Comi of competent jurisdiction, such judgment or decree shall not 
effect, impair, or invalidate the remainder of this ordinance, but such judgment or decree shall be 
confined in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, or part thereof, directly involved in the 
controversy in which such judgment or decrees shall have been entered. 

Section 10. Repealer. 
That all ordinances or pmis of ordinances, of the City of Pontiac in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

Section 11. Publication. 
The Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation prior to its effective 
date. 

Section 12. Effective Date. 
This Ordinance shall be effective ten days after date of adoption. 

I hereby ce1iify this ordinance was brought for a first reading at a meeting of the City Council of 

3 



the City of Pontiac on the ___ day of _______ , 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I futiher hereby certify this ordinance was adopted at a second reading of the ordinance by the City 
Council of the City of Pontiac on the ___ day of _______ ,, 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I further hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the Ordinance as passed by the City 
Council and was published verbatim in a publication of general circulation on the ___ day of 

------' 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

4 



#10 

ORDINANCE 



ORDINANCE NO. 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 42, "COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT", TO ADD 
ARTICLE VII, ENTITLED "PROVISIONING CENTER COMMUNITY BENEFITS 
AGREEMENTS". 

Section 1. Short Title; Purpose. 

(a) This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the "Pontiac Provisioning Center 
Community Benefits Ordinance". 

(b) This Ordinance shall allow developers of provisioning centers, herein referred to as "Qualified 
Developments", to enter into agreements, herein referred to as "Community Benefits 
Agreements", that identify potential negative aspects of such developments and identify 
proportional community benefits to the City of Pontiac to rectify those negative aspects. The 
pledges of community benefits that would be incorporated into Community Benefits 
Agreements will be used in part to assist the City Clerk with the scoring and ranking of 
provisioning center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B). 

Section 2. Definitions 
As used in the Chapter 42, Article VII, the following words and phrases shall mean the following: 

(a) Community Benefits Agreement: An agreement between the City of Pontiac and Developer 
providing mutual consideration intended to rectify mutually acknowledged potential negative 
aspects associated with the proposed Qualified Development. 

(b) Developer: Any person, firm, partnership, company, corporation, cooperative, or any other 
entity (other than the City of Pontiac) that is a party to a Community Benefits Agreement. 

( c) Qualified Development: Persons or entities submitting an application for a provisioning center 
permit during the 21-day period for provisioning center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 
2357(B). 

Section 3. Community Benefits; Pledged Community Benefits 
A community benefit agreed upon by the Developer of the Qualified Development and the City of 
Pontiac is a benefit conferred upon the community of the City of Pontiac intended to ameliorate the 
potential negative aspects imposed upon the City of Pontiac by the Qualified Development. Although 
community benefits may differ based upon the Qualified Development, and this is not intended to be 
an exhaustive list, the City of Pontiac recognizes amenities, benefits, or commitments for the following 
pnrposes as community benefits: 

(a) Roads; Infrastructure; Road Repair; Potholes; Road Matching 

1 



(b) Parks; Park Safety (cameras); Law Enforcement 

(c) High School Pool; Hawthorne Park (Water Park); Neighborhood Revitalization Plan 

( d) Job Training and Employment; Transitional Programs (previously incarcerated) 

( e) Library and Literacy;· Health Initiative Education 

(f) Business Development Fund (to assist City of Pontiac residents with funding for businesses and 
with starting and growing businesses) 

As part of its scoring and ranking of provisioning center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 
2357(B), the City Clerk may consider those community benefits pledged to the City of Pontiac as part 
of such application. Any such pledges would be incorporated into a binding Community Benefits 
Agreement with the City of Pontiac. 

It is preferred, and the City Clerk may require, that applicants show that there is a reasonable amount 
of supp01i in the community for an applicant's pledged community benefits. It is the applicant's 
responsibility to show community support for its pledged community benefits. 

In using pledged community benefits as pati of its scoring and ranking of provisioning center 
applications pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B), the City Clerk will evaluate the commitment, quality, 
duration, community support and amount of the pledged community benefits. If an applicant does not 
pledge community benefits, such applicant will receive a zero (0) score in certain key segments of the 
provisioning center application scoring. 

If an applicant has pledged community benefits as pati of its provisioning center application, before 
receiving a provisioning center permit, such applicant must enter into a Community Benefits 
Agreement with the City incorporating such pledged community benefits. The negotiation and 
completion of such Community Benefits Agreements may occur after the 21-day submission period 
for provisioning center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B). The Mayor may negotiate 
such Community Benefits Agreements (incorporating the pledged community benefits therein) on 
behalf of the City of Pontiac. All final Community Benefits Agreements must be approved by the City 
Council to be effective. 

Section 4. Community Benefits Agreement 
The Community Benefits Agreement would be entered into between the City of Pontiac and the 
Developer of the Qualified Development. 

The Community Benefits Agreement would set forth the community benefit proposed by the Developer 
of the Qualified Development and, if applicable, the interval of such community benefit. 

Community Benefits Agreements shall be timely recorded on the deed for the real property applicable 
to the Qualified Development, and shall run with the land, on Qualified Developments for the duration 
of the Community Benefits Agreement. 

2 



The term of a Community Benefits Agreement shall be not less than the term of the pe1mit to operate 
under City Ordinance 2357(B), including any extension or renewal thereof. 

If a Developer is in breach or violation of a Community Benefits Agreement, such breach or violation 
shall constitute a breach of applicable law for purposes of City Ordinance 2357(B). If such breach or 
violation occurs, the City may exercise all rights and remedies against such Developer available under 
applicable law (subject to any notice and/or hearing rights of such Developer), including any rights and 
remedies pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B) (including in relation to the suspension, revocation or 
renewal of a provisioning center pe1mit), including Section 15 of City Ordinance 2357(B). 

Community Benefits Agreements are not transferrable by the Developer without approval through a 
City Council Resolution. 

Section 5. Community Benefits Agreement Approval 
AH Community Benefits Agreements must be approved by the City Council to be effective. 

Section 6. Exemptions Application 
If a Qualified Development and/or Developer believe they should be exempt from a Community 
Development Agreement, they may file an exemption application with the City Clerk ("Exemption"). 
An Exemption requires approval of the City Council and may be approved or denied by the City 
Council in its sole discretion. 

Section 7. Annual Reporting and Compliance 
A Developer shall provide a comprehensive, audited rep01i detailing compliance with obligations under 
its Community Benefits Agreement for the prior year ( or partial year) by January 1 of each year. 
Fu1iher, prior to any extension or renewal of a pe1mit to operate under City Ordinance 2357(B), a 
Developer shall provide a comprehensive, audited repo1i detailing compliance with obligations under 
its Community Benefits Agreement. Each report shall include backup documentation for all donations 
made or funds expended related to the Community Development Agreement. 

Section 8. Breach of Community Benefits Agreement; Termination; Appeal 
If the City Clerk finds a Qualified Development and/or its Developer to be in breach of its (their) 
Community Development Agreement (including if discovered as pmi of the City Clerk's review of the 
Qualified Development and/or Developer for purposes of a permit renewal), it may send a written 
Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement to the Developer by ce1iified mail. If the Breach 
of Community Benefits Agreement is not cured within fourteen (14) days after the date the Notice of 
Breach of Community Benefits Agreement was sent, the City Clerk, after a hearing ( as necessary), may 
suspend or te1minate the Community Development Agreement. 

If the Developer believes that the suspension or termination was made in e1Tor, the Developer may 
appeal such decision in accordance with its appeals rights under City Ordinance 2357(B). 

Termination of the Community Benefits Agreement through this process shall result in the suspension 
of the underlying City Ordinance 2357(B) provisioning center permit; subject to any permitted 

3 



administrative, legislative or judicial appeal of that termination. Upon the exhaustion of any appeals 
through the City of Pontiac creating a final dete1mination that the termination of the Community 
Benefits Agreement was proper, the City Ordinance 2357(B) provisioning center permit shall be 
pennanently revoked, subject to any fmiher statutory appeal process for such permit outside of the City 
of Pontiac. 

Section 9, Severability. 
This Ordinance and the vmious parts, sections, and clauses are hereby declared severable. If any clause, 
sentence, or paragraph or pmi of this Ordinance shall, for any reason, be adjudged or decreed to be 
invalid by any Comi of competent jurisdiction, such judgment or decree shall not effect, impair, or 
invalidate the remainder of this Ordinance, but such judgment or decree shall be confined in its 
operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, or pmi thereof, directly involved in the controversy in 
which such judgment or decrees shall have been entered. 

Section 10. Repealer. 
That all ordinances or pmis of ordinances, of the City· of Pontiac in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed, as permitted by law. 

Section 11. Publication. 
The Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation prior to its effective date. 

Section 12. Effective Date. 
This Ordinance shall be effective ten days after date of adoption. 

I hereby certify this ordinance was brought for a first reading at a meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Pontiac on the ___ day of _______ , 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I further hereby certify this ordinance was adopted at a second reading of the ordinance by the City 
Council of the City of Pontiac on the ___ day of _______ , 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I further hereby ce1tify that the foregoing is a true copy of the Ordinance as passed by the City Council 
and was published verbatim in a publication of general circulation on the ___ day of 
-------' 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

34091421.3\158235-00001 

4 



#11 
RESOLUTION 



Pontiac City Council Resolution 

WHEREAS, on July 2, 2019, the Pontiac City Council passed a resolution to authorize the Mayor to 
submit and execute the "KaBoom! Play Everywhere Challenge" grant agreement in the amount of 
$56,500.00 for the Good Fun & Sound Abounds Downtown Project; and, 

WHEREAS, Hidden River Park consists of parcel numbers 64-14-29-476018, 64-04-29-476-019, 64-
14-29-476-031; and, 

WHEREAS, Hidden River Park has not been designated as a "park," is not included in the City of 
Pontiac's Master Plan, Recreation Facilities, City Owned Parks and is not listed on the City of Pontiac's 
website; and, 

WHEREAS, Michigan's Definition of "Public Playground Equipment" as defined in the "Playground 
Equipment Safety Act of 1997": Appa'ratus, including, but not limited to slides, climbers, seesaws, and 
swings; and, 

WHEREAS, the objective of the donation grant from KaBOOM! is to introduce elements of play in 
unconventional spaces and acquire play and outdoor musical equipment for Hidden River Park; and, 

WHEREAS, eligibility of the grant donation does not require the operation of a public playground or 
park. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council hereby designates Hidden River 
Park as an entertainment space and not as a "park." 



#12 

RESOLUTION 



TO: 

FRO 

DAT 

RE: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor, at the request of 
John V. Balint, City Engineer 

August 8, 2019 

Easement 31 N. Saginaw 

Pias a Property, LLC,has requested that the City grant easements for the building located 
at 31 N. Saginaw. The actual easement location (see attached exhibit) is on Lawrence 
Stre and consists of an area adjacent to the bullding with dimensions approximately 5-
feet y 11-feet. The request comes as Piassa Properties is requesting additional egress 
that xisted in the past. There is an existing domway that is partially below current grade 
requi ing a stairwell to access. The easement is for the removal of the existing pavement 
al th face of the building and the replacement of the stairwell to the door. 

The ngineering Division has the reviewed and approved the attached documents 
prep red by Kem-Tee Surveyors and Engineers and does not see any concern with the 
grant ng of this easement. In addition,· these easement documents have been reviewed 
and pproved by the City's consulting engineer and by the City's attorney. 

It is t e recommendation of the Department of Public Works, Engineering Division that the 
attac ed easement be signed by the City. 

NO THEREFORE, 
BE I RESOLVED, 

NB 

attac ments 

The City of Pontiac has reviewed the documents provided by the 
Piassa Properties, LLC, and; 

The Department of Public Works, Engineering Division finds that 
there are no concerns with the City granting the requested 
easement, and; 

The Pontiac City Council authorized the Mayor or Deputy Mayor 
to sign the subject easement. 

-~---·--- · .. :....,:;.-· --·"---



EASEMENT 

, his Easement (the "Easemenq is made this __ day of~~~-~~-• 2019, by 
P AISS PROPERTY, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, with an address of 31 N. 
Sagina Street, Pontiac, Michigan 48342 ("Grantor") and the City of Pontiac, a Michigan 
municip l corporation, whose address is 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan 48342 
("Grant e'l 

Recitals: 

Grantor is the owner of a certah1 parcel of improved real property located in the 
City of Pontiac, Oakland County, State of Michigan, more particularly described 
on the attached Exhibit 11A" (the "Grantor Propertt1

). 

Grantee has requested, in connection with Grantor's contemplated improvement of 
the Grantor Property, which includes the construction of a new sidewalk entrance 
along La\wence Street (the southern side of the Granter Property) to grant the 
Grantee a sidewalk and ingress/egress easement along that portion of the Grantor 
Property located adjacent to the new sidewalk entrance along Lawrence Street, 
which is more particularly depicted on the attached Exhibit "B", attached hereto 
and made a part hereof (the "Sidewalk Easement"), 

o,v, THEREFO;RE, in consideration of the premises and the covenants and promises 
describe in this Easement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
adequac • of which are acknowledged, Granter grants as follows: 

Grant of Easement. Grantor grants, creates and declares a perpetual, non
exclusi easement for the benefit of the Grantee in, on, over and across those areas of the Gran tor 
Propert) depicted on Exhibit "B,, for the purpose of pedestrian access to, from and between the 
Grantor ropcrty, and the existing public sidewalk located immediately adjacent to the Grantor 
Pro pert) , The Easement granted shall he for the benefit of the general public for public pedestrian 
use. 

:Manner of ,vork. All constmction and maintenance work pcrfonned by or on 
behalf o Grantor in or upon the Sidewalk Easement shall be performed in a good and workmanlike 
manner. Granter, and its successors and assigns in interest, ,v:i.U be responsible for general repair 
and m · 1tenance of the Sidewalk Easement. The sidewalk and entrance shall be constructed of 
concret or other similar approved materials or other appropriate all-weather smface. 

Mortgage Subordination, Any mortgage affecting any portion of any easement 
areas er atcd by this Easement shall at all times be subject and subordinate to the terms of this 
Sidewal ; Easement and any party foreclosing any such mortgage or acquiring title by deed in lieu 
offorec sure shall acquire title subject to all of the terms and provisions of this Easement. 

Covenants Running with the Land. The easements, coven.ants, conditions and 
promise described in this Easement shall be covenants running with the land and shall be binding 
upon shall inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of Grantor and any and all 
subsequ nt owners of the Gran.tor Property. 

Insunmce. The Grantor, and its successors and assigns in interest: (i) shall maintain 
d insurance coverage as may be necessary to· restore any damage to meet its obligations 

under th s Easement; (ii) sha11 obtain commercial general liability insurance, including personal 
" liability 'nsurance coverage and contractual liability insurance with a combined single l_imit of 

liability fnot less than $1,000,000 for both bodily and personal injury or death and for property 

Page 1 of? 



damage arising out of any one occurrence; and (iii) covenants and agrees to defend and protect, 
indemn', and hold harmless the Grantee from and against all claims, including any action or 
proceed gs brought on those claims and all costs, losses, expenses, and liability (including 
reasona, le attorneys' fees and costs of litigation) arising from or as a result ofthe injury to or death 
of any p rson or damage to the property of any person or party which shall occur on the Sidewalk 
Easeme t. 

Eminent Domain. No taking under the power of eminent domain and no deed or 
grant in connection with or in contemplation of the widening of any public roadway or right-of
way sh be deemed or construed to be a violation of any of the provisions of this instrument or 
any oft e rights herein granted or conferred, or termination hereof, provided that in the event of a 
deed in ieu of condemnation which shall convey any portion of the casements declared hereunder, 
the part • benefiting from such easements shall have first consented in writing thereto, which 
consent hall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, Each party benefiting from 
such ea ements shall have the right to join in and defend any condemnation action which shall 
encamp s any portion of the easements granted hereunder benefiting said party. This Easement 
shall re ain in full force and effect with respect to those portions of the easement declared 
hereund r, which remain unaffected by such eminent domain proceeding or voluntary grant, 
unless ti e actual effect of such taking or grant is to nullif)', undem1ine or unreasonably impede the 
express urposes of this Easement. 

I\fiscellaneous. 

A. This Easement embodies the entire agreement and undery,tanding of the 
parties :elating to its subject matter and supersedes all prior representations, agreements, and 
underst 1dings, oral or "Titten, relating to such subject matter. 

B. Titls Easement may not be amended or modified in any way except by an 
instrum nt in writing executed by Grantor, Grantee or their respective successors and assigns in 
interest. 

C. Failure by any party to insist upon or enforce any of its respective rights 
shall no constitute a waiver of those rights. Either party may waive the benefit of any provision 
or cond tion for its benefit contained in this Easement. No oral tnodifkation hereof shall be 
binding pon the parties, and any modifications shall be in vrriting and signed by the parties. 

D. Every obligation of this Easement shall run with the land and shall be 
binding 1pon the party making or assuming such obligation and such parties, successors and

d shall inure to the benefit of all other parties and their successors and assigns. Upon 
any sal or transfer, including any transfer by operation of law, the seller or transferor shall be 
relieved from all subsequent obligations and liabilities arising under this Easement, any transferee 
of any ' shall automatically be deemed, by acceptance of the title to such parcel, or portion 
thereof, o have assumed all obligations under this Easement arising on or after the date of transfer, 
and to h ve agreed to execute any and all instruments and do anything and all things reasonably 
requi to carry out the intention of its provisions; but nothing contained in this Easement shall 
be dee d to relieve the transferor of such parcel from its obligations which arose prior to such 

E. Except as may be expressly provided to the contrary, each paragraph, part, 
term or provisions of this Easement shall be considered severable, and if for any reason any 
paragra h, part, term or provision herein is detennined to be invalid or contrary to or in conflict 
with an existing or future 1aw or regulation by a court or governmental agency having valid 
jurisdict on, such determination shall not impair the operation of or have any other effect on other 
paragra hs, parts, terms, or provisions of this Easement as may remain otherwise intelligible, and 
the latte shall continue to be given full force and effect and bind the parties hereto, and said invalid 
paragra hs, parts, teims or provisions shall not be deemed t6 be a part of this Easement. 

F. This Easement shall be governed by and constrncted under the laws of the 
State of ichigan. Any action brought to enforce or interpret this Easement shall be brought in a 
court o appropriate jurisdiction in Oakland County, Michigan, Should any provision of this 
Easeme1 t require judicial interpretation, it is agreed that the court interpreting or considering same 
shall no apply the presumption that the terms hereof shall be more strictly constmed against a 

Page 2 ofS 



party b reason of the rule or conclusion that a docwnent should be construed more strictly against 
the part ' who itself or through its agent prepared the same. It is agreed and stipulated that all 
parties ereto have equally participated in the preparation of this Easement and that legal counsel 
,vas con ulted by each party before the execution of this Easement. 

G. Captions, titles to sections, and paragraph headings used are for 
conVeni nee of reference and shall not be deemed to limit or alter any provision. 

Granter has executed this Easement as of the day and year first above written. 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
OAKL ND COUNTY 

GRANTOR: 

PAlSSA PROPERTY, LLC, 
a Michigan limited liability company 

By: 
Name: Matthew Russell 
Its: Manager 

Signed 
Michig 
Michig 

1d sworn to before me by Matthew Russell, Manager, of P AlSSA PROPERTY, LLC, a 
limited liability company on behalf of said company in ______ County, 

,on _____ ,2019. 

Notary ublic, State of Michigan, County of _______ _ 
My co 1ss10n expires ___________ _ 
Acting n the County of __________ _ 

Prepare by and ,vhcn recorded return to: 
C. Mich el Snyder (1'65341) 
Michael Snyder, P.C. 
6689 Or hard Lake Road #166 
West Bl omfield, MI 48322 
248.268 4300 

Page3 ofS 



EXHIBIT "A" 

Propertv Description 

roperty situated in the City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, State ofivfichigan, described 
as folio s: 

The Sot h 22 feet of Lot 90 of ORIGINAL PLAT OF THE CITY OF PONTIAC, accordi11g to the 
plat the of recorded in Liber I of Plats, Page I of Oakland County Records. 

Commo ly known as: 31 N. Saginaw Street, Pontiac, MI 48342 

TAX ID# 64-14-29-433-015 

Page 4 of5 



EXHIBIT "B'' 

Page 5 ofS 



ROPER TY DESCRIPTION: 
EXHIBIT 

PARCa OF LANO sm.JAlED IN TI-fE CITY OF PONTIAC, CO:JNTY OF OAKLAND, STATE Of 
ICH~AN. BEING DESCRIBED AS: 

E SOUTH 22 mr o:=- LOT 90 OF O"tlG'M~.L PLAT Of THE CHY OF PONTIAC, ACCOR.DiNG 
O lH£ PlAT 11-lERf.OF RECORDED IN llilffi 1 OF PLATS, PACE 1 ot OAl<LANO COUNTY 
£CORDS. 

ASEMENT DESCRIPTION: 
0 

O'HANG 

o· 

l,G.IK\WOrca.iFA\5 
Easlpolllte Dwolt Ann AIW Grafld 8/Jrn; 
~:.;mm1 (J!JJ15,i(jj71 {1Jf)$$-l.&<S (&cy«i(.{}X1 

F}X:(:,?$)n2.00 FAt:(5t.e}m4&45 FA't(lJ.l}me& FIX(!31(J69L~ 
wwvv.kemtecagroupofcompunics.com 

C£RTiflED TO: PAISSA PROPERT'l'/C'rNERG£ 

FiElD SURVEY: KB CK OATE: MAY 08, 2019 

DRAl'IN BY: ..OM SHEET: 1 Of 1 
SCALE: 1· = 20· JOB NO.: 17-00474 



· #13 and #14 
RESOLUTIONS · 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

FROM; Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor, at the request of 
John V. Balint, DPW Director/City Engineer 

DATE; August 8, 2019 

RE: MDOT Local Pavement Warranty Program 

In 2015 the State Legislature created a requirement that each local road agency in Michigan 

adopt a Local Pavement Warranty Program. This Statewide program was developed over 

the past 30 months by the Local Agency Pavement Warranty Task Force which was made 

up of representatives of the Michigan Municipal League, County Road Association, MDOT, 

Federal Highway Administration -Michigan, Michigan Local Technical Assistance Program 

(L TAP), municipal road agencies, legal counsels and industry representatives. The 

resulting Road Warranty Policy is required to be adopted by all local road agencies before 

September 18, 2019. This policy must be adopted as two separate resolutions: 

1. Resolution to adopt a Local Pavement Warranty Program - This is to adopt the 

warranty program and its accompanying documents. 

2. Resolution to Implement a local Pavement Warranty Program - This defines the 

agency's intent to apply the warranty program consistent with the local agency 

pavement warranty guidelines and report annually on each project that includes $2 

----------,million-or-more-in--paving•related-components--and-includes-and--state-or-federa1-------~ 

funds. 

After review by the Department of Public Works, we find these resolution acceptable and 
plan to move forward with requiring a warranty for all future projects as required by the 
program. 



RESOLUTION TO ADOPT A LOCAL PAVEMENT \V ARRANTY 
PROGRAl\1 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Legislature (MCL 247.663) requires each city or village to 
adopt a Local Agency Pavement Watranty Program that was approved by the Michigan 
Department of Transportation in 2018; 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Local Agency Pavement Warranty Program was developed by 
the Local Agency Pavement Warranty Task Force for use by all 533 cities mid villages in 
the format approved by the Michigan Depattment of Transportation in 2018; 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Department of Transportation has reviewed and approved the 
Michigan Local Agency Pavement Warranty Program consisting of Special Provisions· 
(Boilerplate, Concrete, HMA, Location, Pass-Through Wmranty Bond); a Warranty Bond 
Fo1m and Contract Form; and Guidelines for Local Agency Pavement Warranty Programs; 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Pontiac hereby adopts the 
Michigan Local Agency Pavement Warranty Program and accompanying documents in 
accordance to the requirements ofMCL 247.663; 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this resolution is made a part of the minutes of Pontiac 
City Com1cil meeting on_( date)_. 

Approved on (date) by: 

(Signatures and names of city/village officials) 



RESOLUTION TO IMPLEMENT A LOCAL PAVEMENT 
WARRANT¥ PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, The Michigan Legislature created a requirement (MCL 247.663) as part of 
the Transportation Funding Package of 2015 that requires each city _and village to adopt a 
Local Agency Pavement Wananty Program that was approved by the Michigan 
Department of Transportation in 2018; 
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac adopted the Michigan Local Agency Pavement Wananty 
Program on_( date)_; 
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac agrees to consider a local pavement wananty on each 
project that inclndes $2 million or more in paving-related items and includes any state or 
federal funds; -
WHEREAS, the Local Agency Pavement Warranty Program law requires each city and 

_ village to report annually on each project that includes $2 million or more in paving-related 
items and includes any state or federal funds, whether or not a warranty was utilized in the 
project; 
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac agrees to implement the Michigan Local Agency 
Pavement Warranty Program consistent with the Guidelines for Local Agency Pavement 
Wananty Program document that was approved by the Michigan Department of 
Transportation in 2018; and which City of Pontiac adopted Implementation Policy defines 
the City of Pontiac's intent of its pavement warranty program; 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Pontiac hereby agrees to implement 
the Local Agency Pavement Warranty Program and annually report in accordance with the 
law. 



GUIDELINES FOR 
LOCAL AGENCY PAVEMENT 

WARRANTY PROGRAM 

CRA Engineering Committee 
Local Agency Pavement Warranty Task Force 

Revised 8-13-2018 

1 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

To ic 
Cover 
Table of Contents 
Preface - Intent of the Local Agency Warranty Program 
Pavement Warranty Reporting and General Warranty Project Selection 
Warranty Contract Process 
General Guidelines of Local Road Agency Warranties 
Warranty Documents 
Warranty Process 
Rights and Responsibilities of the Local Agency 
Rights and Responsibilities of the Contractor 
Supplemental Lien Bonds and Liability Insurance 
Warranty Inspections 
Correction of Defects 
Emergency Repairs 

Appendix A - Flow Charts 
Warranty Determination Process 
Warranty Process 
Warranty Inspection Subprocess 
Resolve Subprocess 

Appendix B - Inspection Guidelines 
HMA New Construction/Reconstruction 

HMA Construction over Aggregate Base without 
Base or Drainage Improvement 

HMAOverlay 
New/Reconstructed Jointed Plain Concrete Pavement 

Pae 
1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
7 
8 
8 
9 
9 
9 
10 

11 
12 
13 
14 
15 

16 
17 

20 
23 
26 

Appendix C - Inspection Forms (under development) 29 
---------,H"'MMMJ,eGtJo~FOFm-------------------30----------

Concrete Inspection Form 31 

Appendix D - Model Pavement Warranty Contract and Bond Forms 
(under development) 

Local Agency Pass-Through Warranty Bonds 
Local Agency Pavement Warranty Bond Form 
Local Agency Pavement Warranty Contract 

Appendix E - Reporting Forms {under development) 
Pavement Warranty Reporting 

Appendix F - Education and Training (under development) 
Education of Local Road Agencies on 

Local Pavement Warranty Program 

2 

32 

33 
34 
35 

36 
36 

37 

37 



PREFACE- Intent of the Local Agency Warranty Program 

The Legislature (P.A. 175 of 2015) requires each local road agency to adopt a Local Pavement 
Warranty Program acceptable to the Michigan Department of Transportation. Warranties have 
the potential to improve the quality of road projects, benefitting the drivers, taxpayers and road 
agencies of Michigan 

The intent of the Local Agency Pavement Warranty Program is to provide a warranty program 
that all local agencies can use for all hot mix asphalt and plain jointed concrete paving projects 
on public roads and streets. This pavement warranty program was created by the Local Agency 
Pavement Warranty Task Force, to establish a common pavement warranty program for all local 
agencies in Michigan. The goals of this Local Agency Pavement Warranty program is to 
standardize the review, to provide oversight of pavement warranty projects, and to make this 
program more transparent and uniform for private sector contractors. 

This Local Agency Pavement Warranty Program is available for all local road agencies if they 
choose to use it. Local road agencies vary dramatically in size and sophistication; therefore the 
Local Road Warranty Task Force developed a warranty program to address the capabilities of 
the rural, the mid-sized urban and the large urban agencies. This approach provides a warranty 
program that meets the intent of Public Act 175 of 2015 (MCL 247.662 and 247.663), and 
provides all local road agencies with a pavement warranty program that provides value to the 
public. 

The Local Road Warranty Task.Force recognizes there may be substantial benefits and public 
confidence resulting from a comprehensive pavement warranty program. However, the existing 
pavement structure, drainage and planned improvements for each project will need to be 
evaluated on an individual basis to critically assess a justification or basis for a pavement 
warranty. Road agencies should anticipate increased project costs related to higher bid prices 
and costs for the warranty administration such as: pavement monitoring, defect documentation, 
official notifications, joint field inspections; defect remediation and dispute resolution. 

The intent of this GUIDELINES FOR LOCAL AGENCY PAVEMENT WARRANTY PROGRAM, 
is to provide an overview and guidance on implementing a pavement warranty project. This 

_____ _,,,_,idelinais_intendeflforJocaLagency.usaancUlnolintendadJo.be_a_contracldocumen~---------

3 



GUIDELINES FOR LOCAL AGENCY PAVEMENT WARRANTY PROGRAM 

Pavement Warranty Reporting and General Warranty Project Selection 

Acceding to PA 175 of 2015, all local road agencies must submit an annual report to the stale 
for all projects where the pavement-related bid items exceeded$ 2 million,.regardless of 
whether or not the agency included a pavement warranty on the project. Each local road 
agency must submit and maintain its records to comply with the reporting requirements included 
in Appendix E. 

The Task Force determined that the Legislature's intent J'or local pavement warranties is to 
provide assurances to elected officials and taxpayers in the use of the new funds arriving for 
road and bridge infrastructure. Assurances which include that local road projects would be held 
to a higher standard in the future. 

At the same time, there are logical explanations why a local road agency may choose to not 
require a warranty such as unjustifiably higher costs for a warrantied project that may or may 
not be affordable to the community and may or may not be justified by the scope of the project; 
recognition of a limit to the contractor's ability to bond for every project; some projects are 
simple preservation or resurfacing over an existing imperfect road base wherein the contractor 
cannot control such pre-existing conditions; and many other engineering factors that indicate a 
pavement warranty would not serve the taxpayer's best interests. Whether or not a warranty is 
selected on a project with $2 million in pavement related items, this must be reported to the 
Legislature on an annual, state fiscal year basis. 

The Legislature had the wisdom to specify that warranties would be left to the discretion and 
justification of the local road agency and its road engineering expertise. Agencies can waive a 
pavement warranty with a written justification. The agency's written justification identifies 
reasons such as project appropriateness, scope and type of project improvements, why this is in 
the best interest of the local agency, project cost justification, and effectiveness of the warranty 
provisions. It is highly recommended for all local road agencies with paving projects where the 
engineer's opinion of cost exceeds $ 1.8 million in pavement related Items that serious 
consideration should be given to include the pavement warranty special provisions in the project 
proposal prior to advertisement. 

The Task Force does not believe the Legislature intended every local new construction, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, and overlay road project to be warranted, and thus included the $2 
million threshold. Because pavement is the road component most likely to fail - and the area 
most aggravating to the motoring public - the Task Force believed the Local Pavement 
Warranty Program was intended to focus on pavement-related Items. The Task Force has 
relied on customary and basic engineering principles in defining pavement-related items that are 
recommended for consideration of a warranty. As a result of the Local Agency Warranty Task 
Force believes the Michigan Legislature intended a local road agency to use its best judgment 
in requiring a warranty, consistent with the scope of the intended project and the ability to 
enforce it. 

This Local Agency Pavement Warranty Program considers the vast array of project types and 
sizes. Local road agency projects often involve short stretches of pavement resurfacing to 
address a surface condition or safety concern. These types of projects are accomplished with 
very limited budgets, often with funding from non-MTF sources. In addition, often these types of 
projects do not address the subgrade, existing aggregate base or drainage systems; which all 
are major factors in determining the longevity of a pavement surface. If the road segment may 

4 



be subjected to a significant amount of overloads (higher than average daily truck counts and/ 
or heavier than normal axle loading) during the anticipated warranty term, the road may not be a 
good candidate for pavement warranties. Therefore, the Local Agency Pavement Warranty 
Program is recommended for road segments designated as "all-season road' which are 
designed for year-round normal loading. 

While the law indicates where possible a pavement warranty shall be secure when the paving 
project exceeds $2 million, the Task Force recognizes project bids are often 10 percent over the 
engineer's opinion of cost, and that a warranty requirement cannot be retroactively applied to a 
road project after the bids are opened. Thus, the Task Force has recommended the more 
conservative $1.8 million engineer's opinion of cost for pavement related items, as the point 
when the local agency decides if the warranty special provisions are included in the bid 
documents, rather than the $2 million stated in the .law. 

The Task Force believes the Michigan Legislature was speaking in the context of new Michigan 
Transportation Funds for roads, which are exclusively state revenue sources, when It included 
the Local Agency Pavement Warranty Program alongside the new funding legislation in the 
2015 Transportation Package. It also seems clear the Legislature was speaking not just to the 
new transportation funds, but also to the other road funds under its control, which includes the 
federal funds flowing through MOOT to the local road agencies. 

The Local Agency Pavement Warranty Program also recognizes that if the only source of 
revenue for a local road agency paving or reconstruction projects is entirely locally derived 
revenue (non- Act 51 or Federal Funds) such as local general fund, millage revenue, special 
assessment districts or other locally raised revenue; then these projects will not be subject to 
the Local Agency Pavement Warranty Program reporting requirements. 

It's important to note that this Local Agency Pavement Warranty Program may also be used by 
that local road agency on any paving project regardless if the $2 million dollar threshold for 
pavement related items has been reached or not. This approach ensures that Local Pavement 
Warranties can be used on any project with any funding source, including Michigan 
Transportation Funds, and can utilize the same requirements to provide greater understanding 
and transparency to contractors, stakeholders and the public. 

Warranty Contract Process 

For those construction projects advertised and let through the MOOT Local Agency Programs, 
the construction contract is between the prime contractor and MOOT. The prime contractors' 
surety company names MOOT as the obligee in the performance bond in the original contract. 
For Local Agency Pavement Warranty projects, an additional warranty contract and pavement 
warranty bond will be required prior to award, see Appendix D. The bid proposal shall include a 
contract consistent with the model contract and bond form shown in Appendix 0. These 
documents will serve as the contract and warranty bond between the local road agency and the 
paving contractor for the warranty work. The warranty bond will be provided by the paving 
contractor in the name of the local road agency. 

The MOOT Local Agency Agreemeni will reference the local road agency's responsibility to 
administer the warranty portion of the contract. Upon the acceptance of the construction work, 
the prime contractor's contract and performance bond with MDOT will be released and no 
longer in effect. At this point the warranty contract and warranty bond are triggered to begin the 
new contract for the warranted work during the warranty term. 

5 



The local road agency will be solely responsible for administering the warranty contract, 
inspection of warranted work during the warranty period, approving remediation work and 
seeking resolution through the warranty bond if the contractor is unresponsive in performing 
corrective work and declaring acceptance of all warranted/ corrective work al the end of the 
warranty period. 

General Guidelines of Local Road Agency Warranties 

These General Guidelines are recommended for all local road agencies administering pavement 
warranties for public road and street construction contracts. The responsibility and authority for 
administering pavement warranties rest with the road owner and/or the local road agency that 
conducted the construction administration phase of the project. 

To determine the pavement-related cost for a hot mixed asphalt pavement warranty project, the 
Local Agency is required to prepare an opinion of cost for all of the pavement-related items 
which include: the pavement, curb, shoulders, aggregate base, subbase and underdrain pay 
items. To determine the pavement-related cost for concrete pavements, the local road agency 
engineer is required to prepare an opinion of cost for all of the pavement-related items which 
include: pavement, curb, shoulders, joint sealing, dowel bars, load transfer devices, aggregate 
base, subbase and underdrain. If the total estimated cost of these pavement-related items 
exceeds $1.8 million in the opinion of the Engineer, the local road agency should review the 
existing pavement variables, stated in the "Pavement Warranty Reporting and General Warranty 
Project Selection" section of this document, to determine if the pavement warranty special 
provisions should be included in the bid documents. 

The contractor is responsible for correcting defects attributable to elements within the 
contractor's control. Each warranty specification includes condition parameters and distress 
thresholds to provide a basis for evaluating the warranted work. Each distress parameter 
includes threshold limits that, if exceeded during the warranty period, would trigger notifying the 
contractor to participate in a joint field investigation. Depending on the outcome of the 
investigation the contractor may be required to prepare a remediation plan to correct distresses 
that are attributable to its materials and/or workmanship or there may be a call for further 
investigation. If the agency and the contractor cannot agree, either side can call for a Conflict 
Resolution Team to resolve the dispute as described in the Local Road Agency Special 
Provision for Hot Mix Asphalt and Concrete Pavement Warranty. 

Once a remediation plan is agreed-to by the local road agency and the contractor, the corrective 
action shall be performed. The corrective actions and/or repairs shall be performed to correct 
deficiencies in the warranted work in order to achieve acceptance at the end of the warranty 
period. If the contractor fails to perform the remediation work within specified timeframes, the 
local road agency shall notify the surety company to perform the work. Further, if a defect is 
declared as an imminent safety problem by the agency, the local agency may complete the 
work and seek reimbursement from the contractor or submit a claim against the warranty bond. 

All required corrective action must be performed by the contractor at no cost to tile owner. The 
condition parameter thresholds and warranty requirements may vary depending on the date the 
specification was developed; type of warranty; and the application to the construction work. It is 
important, therefore, to refer to the specific warranty_ special provision in the contract when 
administering warranties. 

The warranty administration phase should follow the documentation procedures outlined in 
Appendix A, B, C, D and E of these guidelines. The warranty administration can be performed 
by qualified local agency staff members or under a consultant service contract. 

6 



Warranty Documents 

The Local Agency Pavement Warranty consists of the warranty contract and warranty bond as 
well as the appropriate special provisions: 

• Local Road Agency Special Provision for Hot Mix Asphalt and Concrete Pavement 
Warranty 

• Local Road Agency Special Provision for Warranty Work Requirements for Hot Mix 
Asphalt Pavement 

• Local Road Agency Special Provision for Warranty Work Requirements for Jointed Plain 
Concrete Pavement 

• Local Road Agency Special Provision for Pavement Warranty Information 

The Local Road Agency Special Provision for Hot Mix Asphalt and Concrete Pavement 
· WarJanty establishes the common terms and definitions applied to pavement projects requiring 
a warranty. The Local Road Agency Special Provision for Warranty Work Requirements for Hot 
Mix Asphalt Pavements warrants the Local Road Agency against specific defects in HMA 
pavements. The Local Road Agency Special Provision for Warranty Work Requirements for 
Jointed Plain Concrete Pavement warrants the Local Road Agency against specific defects in 
concrete pavements. Local Road Agency Special Provision for Pavement Warranty Information 
provides the beginning and ending locations for warranted work and the applicable warranty 
work requirements special provision. 

Under the Local Agency Pavement Warranty special provisions the Prime Contractor is 
responsible for correcting defects in the pavement caused by elements within the contractor's 
control (i.e., the materials supplied, the workmanship, etc.), during the warranty period. The 
Pavement Warranty Contract Provisions and Warranty Bond may pass through lo 
subcontractors, and with this the responsibility to correct warranty defects, at the direction of the 
Prime Contractor and upon written notice to the agency prior to the start of lhe work. 

The contractor assumes no responsibility for defects that are design related unless the paving 
contract is design-build. When a defect is attributable to the materials and/or workmanship 
and/or the design, the responsibility for correcting the defect (or defects) will be shared by the 
agency and the contractor. The contractor is responsible for the percentage of fault attributable 
to the workmanship and/or materials, and the agency is responsible for the percentage of fault 
attributable to the design. Note: The agency may elect to require the contractor to provide the 

______ p_a_v_e_m_e_n~1-a-e-s1·gn(sfin the contract documents and speclticalions. In thlS case, the Contractor 
shall also be responsible for the percentage of fault attributable to the pavement design. 

Warranty Process 

The process flow charts as shown in Appendix A describe the steps involved in the warranty 
administration process. The warranty term begins with the acceptance of the warranted work 
during construction of the project. . Warranty Administration involves periodic condition 
inspections of the mainline pavement areas throughout the warranty term; joint field inspections; 
documentation of findings, official notifications; joint determination of defects; initiation of 
corrective action, inspection & documentation of the corrective action taken, filing those 
inspection reports as necessary, and if necessary a conflict resolution process. If at any time, a 
safety Issue or significant defect is observed or reported, prior to a scheduled inspection, an 
interim inspection will be i.nitiated by the agency. If emergency repairs are determined to be 
necessary the agency can perform these repairs without altering the contractor's responsibilities 
under the warranty contract. 

7 



A joint field review between the local road agency and the warranty contractor may be held to 
verify and confirm of findings documented during the various inspections. MOOT should be 
included in any official communication dealing with the warranty if the construction project had 
MOOT oversight. The findings of the final inspection at the end of the warranty term are 
distributed to the owner, (and MOOT if construction had MOOT oversight), the warranty 
contractor and the Surety Company. 

The appeal process, when needed, involves assembling a conflict resolution team {CRT) to 
conduct investigations as needed to determine distress cause & effect and establish 
concurrence between the local agency and the warranty contractor regarding warranty 
compliance issues. More on the CRT can be found in the section j, Correction of Defects of the 
Local Road Agency Special Provision for Hot Mix Asphalt and Concrete Pavement Warranty. 

The final step of the process, after the project or warranty work has been deemed acceptable is 
closing out the warranty project through notification of the contractor, the bonding company and 
Local agency's Finance and /or Administration Division. 

Rights and Responsibilities of the Local Agency 

The agency administering the project should inform the appropriate local road agency 
maintenance staff about sections of roadway incorporated in a warranty contract. The local road 
agency has the right to perform, or have performed, routine and emergency reactive 
maintenance during the warranty period. Major planned maintenance projects conducted during 
a warranty period need to be evaluated in terms of possible impact to the ongoing warranty 
coverage. 

If corrective work is required to bring the project back into compliance with the requirements 
found in the warranty special provisions; the local agency in charge of the construction project 
must approve the schedule, materials and methods of construction repair. If the contractor is 
unable to comply with this provision, or fails to comply with ii to the local agency's satisfaction, 
the local agency reserves the right to arrange for the work to be completed at the contractor's 
expense. If this action by the local agency is required, it will in no way relieve the contractor 
from meeting the warranty requirements stated in the project documents. 

---------t-lw-rlghts--tlfld--responsibilities-are-ft1rther·detailed-in-Section-e;-Rightso1flcl-Responsibilitie~o'-------
the Agency in the Local Agency Special Provision for Hot Mix Asphalt and Concrete Pavement 
Warranty. 

Rights and Responsibilities of the Contractor 

The contractor must provide a written work plan for any necessary corrective warranty work. A 
request for a work permit must be submitted through the local road agency's permit process and 
work should be coordinated with the construction inspection agency if different from the local 
agency issuing the permit. All corrective warranty work should be completed within the warranty 
term. If scheduling conflicts necessitate corrective work being completed outside of the warranty 
term, the local road agency shall be notified as soon as the contractor is aware of the conflict. 

The rights and responsibilities of the contractor are further detailed in Section f. Rights and 
Responsibilities of the Contractor in the Local Agency Special Provision for Hot Mix asphalt and 
Concrete Pavement Warranty. 

8 



Supplemental Lien Bonds and Liability Insurance 

In addition to the warranty bond that is in place, if corrective work is necessary the contractor 
must furnish supplemental lien bond to the local agency covering the corrective work. The 
Engineer is responsible for estimating the amount of the supplemental lien bond required. The 
amount should be approximately equal to the dollar amount of the corrective work. The 
contractor must also have liability insurance in place prior to performing corrective work during 
the warranty period.' The contractor should not be allowed on-site to perform corrective work 
during the warranty period until the supplemental lien bond is in place and the proper 
insurances verified. Depending on the nature and scope of the corrective work, the local agency 
may waive this supplemental lien bond, but not the liability insurance. 

Warranty Inspections 

Warranty inspections are limited to only mainline pavement areas. There are two types of 
inspections conducted during the warranty period. The cursory inspection is a simplified 
inspection to quickly identify segments in the project that may have distresses that exceed 
threshold values. This cursory inspection normally does not require a lane closure and is 
conducted from the roadway shoulder estimating distress lengths and widths. The detailed 
inspection requires direct measuring and reporting of all observed distress in each segment. 
Traffic control may be required to complete the detailed inspection. 

The minimum inspection frequency for the various warranty provisions are specified in the 
applicable warranty inspection guidelines, see Appendix B. The minimum number of inspections 
is dependent upon the warranty duration. The local road agency may elect fo perform additional 
inspections over & above the recommended minimum interim inspections. The suggested time 
frames in the inspection guidelines allow local road agencies to notify the contractor regarding 
warranty compliance. Interim inspections may be delayed if weather makes it difficult to inspect 
the road or creates an unsafe condition. Final inspections shall be completed in a timely manner 
to ensure that there is enough time to document any thresholds that exceed the condition 
thresholds and notify the contractor prior to the expiration of the warranty. 

The designation of lanes during the warranty inspection shall be detailed adequately so that it is 
clear to all involved in the warranty process which lane is being referenced. If necessary, a 

------skeldt-shm;ld-be-melt1ded.-lt-is-imp0rtant-t0-use-the-same.Jan&numbefin~esignatiefl-fer-ale-------
inspections conducted throughout the warranty period. 

If defects are found in any inspection, they should be carefully and accurately documented, 
even if the severity or number does not meet the threshold to require corrective work. These 
notes shall be kept in the inspection files and reviewed prior to all future inspections of the work. 
The Inspectors of the work should pay specific attention to areas previously noted, record those 
defects, and list any changes in those defects differing from the last inspection. 

Correction of Defects 

If inspections during the warranty term show a defect has exceeded the allowable threshold as 
defined in either the Hot Mixed Asphalt or Concrete Warranty specification, the contractor shall 
be notified of the finding. The agency should call for a joint field investigation to determine the 
cause of the defect, and to discuss the best possible remediation of the problem. If additional 
forensic investigation is desired, the scope of the investigation, party or consultant to conduct 

9 



the investigation, and the cost split shall be agreed to by the engineer and contractor prior to 
scheduling the investigation. 

If the contractor and engineer are in agreement, the Engineer shall send notice to contractor in 
writing the defect(s), location(s), recommended remediation and a request for a schedule to 
complete the work. The contractor will reply back to the Engineer, copying the local agency 
(and MOOT if MOOT had original construction oversight) with a schedule to complete the work. 
The local agency will issue a permit to the contractor to complete the warranty work according 
to the Local Agency's Right-of-way permit policy. The contractor will complete the work under 
the inspection of the Engineer. 

If the contractor and engineer disagree, then a Conflict Resolution Team (CRT) may be 
convened. · The CRT will be made of: 

" One (1) member selected, and compensated by the agency. 
• One (1) member selected and compensated by the contractor. 
e One (1) member mutually selected by the Agency and the contractor. 

Compensation for the third party member will be equally shared by the agency 
and the contractor. 

At least two members of the CRT must vote in favor of a motion to make a decision. If the CRT 
decides to conduct a forensic investigation, the CRT will determine the scope of work and select 
the party to conduct the investigation. All costs related to the forensic investigation will be 
shared proportionately between the contractor and the agency based on the determined cause 
of the warranty defect condition. 

Emergency Repairs 

When the agency detennines that emergency repairs of the warranted work are necessary for 
public safety, the agency or its agent may take immediate and sufficient repair action to address 
the imminent danger and to safeguard the traveling public. Prior to emergency repairs of 
warranted work, the agency will document the basis for the emergency action. In addition, the 
agency will preserve all documentation of the defective condition, including failed materials 
samples if applicable. 

Once the imminent danger to the public has been addressed, the local road agency shall notify 
-----------1l'le--00A!FasloF-to-explaiA-lhe-siluatiefl,ielenlify-tl1e-wer-k-tempemrfly-dene-by-lhe-ageney,and~tft---------

what further actions need to happen to return the warranted work and pavement to threshold 
compliance. A joint inspection may be called to investigate the situation. 

The emergency repairs of warranted work by the contractor must be authorized by the agency's 
engineer. 

Should the contractor be unable to perform the emergency repair to the agency's satisfaction 
and/or within the time frame required by the agency, the agency will perform, or have performed 
any emergency repairs deemed necessary. Any such emergency repairs undertaken will not 
relieve the contractor from meeting the warranty requirements. Any costs associated with the 
emergency repairs will be paid by the contractor when due to a cause from defective materials 
and/or workmanship. 

10 



APPENDIX A 

Flow Charts 

11 



'Pavement structure ;;s ddined b'f MOOT Stalld.:.rd 
Spectfki!lkms fndt1d<'>. HI/A er conc~ti! pi>'i!rnent,. 
,;;,;rb5, ~u~ a,ggre<pte 01 9tanularb~se, sot.base 
;)nd undefdrairt 

11f a !,;ic,;l agfficy w;,,.Ve; a v.-;:orrarity, .-n eipto11~tbn \-\iii 
need to be repo.-ted 

-I 

-I 
12 

Warranty Determination Process 

-

-- -j 



! 

13 

Warranty Process 

**This is the process if MDOT has oversight and/or 
MOOT let bid. 

If project is locally let, with no MOOT 
oversight, the local agency shall determine the 
process. 



Warranty Inspection Subprocess 

-~ 
I 
' 

l -1 

! -........ ,. ........................................ _ ................. ' )> 

14 

! -1 

! -! 

--



Resolve Subprocess 

-l 

! 
Ill 

! 

15 



APPENDIX B 

Inspection Guidelines 

16 



LOCAL AGENCY 
WARRANTY INSPECTION GUIDELINES 

HMA NEW CONSTRUCTION/ RECONSTRUCTION 

Warranty period: 5 Year 

Inspection Period Begins: Interim - 6 months after Initial Acceptance 
Final - 56 months after initial Acceptance 
(Local Agency may do additional inspections) 

Notes: 

Procedure: 

1. Segments defined as 528 foot (1/10 mile). 
2. Each lane will be evaluated separately. 
3. The threshold level for each distress type is determined separately. 

For both INTERIM & FINAL inspections 
1. Perform overview inspection. Based on results of overview inspection, 

recommend the project for either: 
a. Acceptable - no corrective work needed. If this is the final 

inspection recommend acceptance of the work, or 
b. Detailed Inspection - more detailed inspection and I or 

measurements are needed 

2. Perform detailed Inspection if required. Based on the results of 
detailed inspection, either: 

a. Acceptable - no corrective work needed. If this is the final 
inspection recommend acceptance of the work, or 

b. Warranty work is needed - Provide contactor written notice of the 
distresses and locations needing corrective work. 

Condition Parameter Measurement: 
Performance parameters will be measured as described for each of the 
following distress types in mainline pavement areas: 

1. Transverse Cracking - Total number of transverse cracks in a segment. 
Each individual crack must exceed 5 feet in length to be included in the 
total. 

2. Longitudinal Cracking - Total lfnear feet of longitudinal cracks in a 
-'----------------se,gmeR!c-EaelHnaivklool-eraek-musl-ei«::-ee€!-£-feel-in-length-te-b,Pe---------

included in the total. 
3. De-bonding- Total longitudinal length, in feet, of de-bonding in a 

segment. Potholes are to be classified as de-bonding. Measure individual 
de-bonding locations in the longitudinal direction, regardless of width of 
the distress location and sum these lengths for the segment. 

4. Raveling - Total longitudinal length, in feet, of raveling in a segment. 
Measure individual raveling locations in the longitudinal direction, 
regardless of width of the distress location and sum these lengths for the 
segment 

5. Flushing - Total longitudinal length, in feet, offtushing in a segment. 
Measure individual flushing locations in the longitudinal direction, 
regardless of width of the distress location and sum these lengths for the 
segment. 

6. Rutting - The average rut depth, in inches, in a segment. Each wheel 
path shall be evaluated separately. If rutting is found, the pavement 
surface will be measured beginning at the POB and every 132 feet 
thereafter to determine average rut depth to quantify rutting for a 

17 



particular segment. Rut measurements will be done using a straight rigid 
device that is a minimum of 7 feet long and of sufficient stiffness that it 
will not deflect from its own weight, or a wire under sufficient tension to 
prevent sag when extended 7 feet. Measurements will be taken by 
placing this "straightedge" across the pavement surface perpendicular to 
the direction of travel. The straightedge shall contact the surface on at 
least two bearing points with one located on either side of the rut The 
straightedge is properly located when sliding the straightedge along its 
axis does not change the location of the contact points. Rutdepth is then 
measured at the point of greatest perpendicular distance from the bottom 
of the straightedge to the pavement surface. 

7. Alligator Cracking - Total area, in square feet, of alligator cracking in a 
segment. Measure individual alligator cracked areas and sum the areas 
for the segment. 

Overview Inspection Procedure: 
1. Review any notes from previous inspections. 

2. Perform a "windshield' survey of the entire location length. Based solely 
on visual examination and estimated measurements, approximate the 
individual distress quantities for the questionable segment(s) of each 
distress type and record on the inspection form. Details which should be 
noted for the inspection include, but are not limited the following: 

a. The lane or ramp where the distress was noted and the 
associated direction. 

b. Approximate distress location (i.e. 1 /4 mile north of the POB, or at 
the intersection of 1st St in SW quadrant, or near drive for house 
#123 .. ) 

c. The distress quantity, in general terms (i.e. minor amounts of 
longitudinal cracking; mid lane flushing). 

d. Areas where temporary maintenance makes it difficult to 
determine the type of distress, (i.e. presence of cold patching 
material). 

3. Estimate if any of the following distress threshold conditions are 
exceeded 

a. Transverse Cracking exceeds 3 total in the segment length (3 
cracks within 528 feet) for any single segments. 

b. Longitudinal Cracking exceeds 10 percent of the segment length 
(53 feet within 528 feet) for any single segments. 

c. Debonding exceeds 5 percent (5%) of the segment length (26 
feet within 528 longitudinal feet) for any 1 segment. 

d. Raveling exceeds 8 percent (8%) of the segment length (42 feet 
within 528 longitudinal feet) for any 1 segment. 

e. Flushing exceeds 5 percent (5%) of the segment length (26 feet 
within 528 longitudinal feet) for any 1 segment. 

f. Average rut depth exceeds 0.375 (3/8) inches for any 1 segment. 
g. Any amount of alligator cracking. 

4. If any condition above is estimated to be true: 
a. Perform Detailed Inspection; and 

18 



b. Provide a description of the magnitude and location(s) of the 
distress condition(s) observed which justify the Detailed 
Inspection. 

s. If all conditions above are false: 
a. Recommend work is acceptable. 
b. If this is an interim or other non•final inspection, put notes in file. 
c. If this is final inspection recommend final acceptance. 

Detailed Inspection Procedure: 
· 1. Determine the questionable segments suspected of exceeding threshold 

limits for each individual distress type based on the overview inspection 
notes. 

2. Document the lane, direction and distance from POB, of each 
questionable segment identified in Step 1. 

3. For each questionable segment, measure and record the amount of each 
individual distress type and record on the inspection form. 

a. Transverse Cracking 
b. Longitudinal Cracking 
c. De•bonding 
d. Raveling 
e. Flushing 
f. Rutting 
g. Alligator Cracking 

4. Determine if any of the threshold limits for transverse cracking, 
longitudinal cracking, de.bonding, raveling, flushing, or alligator cracking, 
listed under Overview Inspection, are exceeded. 

5. Evaluate segments where the average rut depth appears to exceed 0.25 
inches as follows. 

a. Measure the average rutting at all questionable segments to 
verify that the threshold was exceeded. 

6. Warranty work is required at those segments for which any of the 
~--------------'1hreshold-timits-for-irnt1Sverseeracking,-toogiittdiwJ-erael<:ing,d<>---------

bonding, raveling, flushing, rutting, or alligator cracking are exceeded. 
Provide the contractor with results of the inspection indicating segments 
where warranty work is required. 

19 



LOCAL AGENCY 
WARRANTY INSPECTION GUIDELINES 

HMA CONSTRUCTION OVER AGGREGATE BASE 
WITHOUT BASE OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT 

Warranty period: 3 Year 

Inspection Period Begins: Interim • 6 months after Initial Acceptance 
Final • 32 months after initial Acceptance 
(Local Agency may do additional inspections) 

Notes: 

Procedure: 

1. Segments defined as 528 foot (1/10 mile). 
2. Each lane will be evaluated separately 
3. The threshold level for each distress type is determined separately. 

For both INTERIM & FINAL inspections 
1. Perform overview inspection. Based on results of cursory inspection, 

recommend the project for either: 
a. Acceptable - no corrective work needed. If this is the final 

inspection recommend acceptance of the work, or 
b. Detailed inspection - more detailed inspection and / or 

measurements are needed 

2. Perform detailed inspection if required. Based on the results of 
detailed inspection, either: 

a. Acceptable - no corrective work needed. If this is the final 
inspection recommend acceptance of the work, or 

b. Warranty work is needed - Provide contactor written notice of the 
distresses and locations needing corrective work. 

Condition Parameter Measurement: 
Performance parameters will be measured as described for each of the 
following distress types in mainline pavement areas: 

1. Transverse Cracking• Total number of transverse cracks in a segment. 
Each individual crack must exceed 5 feet in length to be included in the 
total. 

ongttadina1-Crackirrg-=4'otaHinearfuet-of·longitadinah:racksi 
segment. Each individual crack must exceed 5 feet in length to be 
included In the total. 

3. De-bonding- Total longitudinal length, in feet, of de-bonding in a 
segment. Potholes are to be classified as de-bonding. Measure individual 
de-bonding locations in the longitudinal direction, regardless of width of 
the distress location and sum these lengths for the segment. 

4. Raveling• Total longitudinal length, in feet, of raveling in a segment. 
Measure individual raveling locationsin the longitudinal direction, 
regardless of width of the distress location and sum-these lengths for the 
segment. 

5. Flushing - Total longitudinal length, in feet, of flushing in a segment. 
Measure individual flushing locations in the longitudinal direction, 
regardless of width of the distress location and sum these lengths for the 
segment. 

6. Rutting - The average rut depth, in inches, in a segment. Each wheel 
path shall be evaluated separately. If rutting is found, the pavement 
surface will be measured beginning at the POB and every 132 feet 

20 



thereafter to determine average rut depth to quantify rutting for a 
particular segment. Rut measurements will be done using a straight rigid 
device that is a minimum of 7 feet long and of sufficient stiffness that it 
will not deflect from its own weight, or a wire under sufficient tension to 
prevent sag when extended 7 feet. Measurements will be taken by 
placing this "straightedge" across the pavement surface perpendicular to 
the direction of travel. The straightedge shall contact the surface on at 
least two bearing points with one located on either side of the rut. The 
straightedge is properly located when sliding the straightedge along its 
axis does not change the location of the contact points. Rut depth is then 
measured at the point of greatest perpendicular distance from the bottom 
of the straightedge to the pavement surface. 

7. Alligator Cracking - Total area, in square feet, of alligator cracking in a 
segment. Measure individual alligator cracked areas and sum the areas 
for the segment. 

Overview Inspection Procedure: 
1. Review any notes from previous inspections. 

2. Perform a "windshield" survey of the entire location length. Based solely 
on visual examination and estimated measurements, approximate the 
individual distress quantities for questionable segment(s) of each distress 
type and record on the inspection form. Details which should be noted for 
the inspection include, but are not limited the following: 

a. The lane or ramp where the distress was noted and the 
associated direction. 

b. Approximate distress location (i.e. 1/4 mile north of the POB, or at 
the intersection of 1st St in SW quadrant, or near drive for house 
#123 .. ) 

c. The distress quantity, in general terms (i.e. minor amounts of 
· longitudinal cracking; mid lane flushing}. 

d. Areas where temporary maintenance makes it difficult to 
determine the type of distress, (i.e. presence of cold patching 
material}. 

3. Estimate if any of the following distress threshold conditions are 
exceeded 

a. Transverse Cracking exceeds 3 total in the segment length (3 
cracks within 528 feet} for any 2 segments. All reflective cracking 
shall be ignored as these will not count against the allowable 
amount. 

b. Longitudinal Cracking exceeds 25 percent of the segment length 
(132 feet within 528 feet) for any 2 segments. All reflective 
cracking shall be ignored as these will not count against the 
allowable amount. 

c. De bonding exceeds 5 percent (5%) of the segment length (26 
feet within 528 longitudinal feet) for any 1 segment.. 

d. Raveling exceeds 8 percent (8%} of the segment length (42 feet 
within 528 longitudinal feet) for any 1 segment. 

e. Flushing exceeds 5 percent (5%) of the segment length (26 feet 
within 528 longitudinal feet} for any 1 segment. 

f. Average rut depth exceeds 0.375 (3/8) inches for any 1 segment. 

21 



g. Any amount of alligator cracking. 

4. If any condition above is estimated to be true: 
a. Perform Detailed Inspection; and 
b. Provide a description of the magnitude and location(s) of the 

distress condition(s) observed which justify the Detailed 
Inspection. 

s. If all conditions above are false, 
a. Recommend work is· acceptable. 
b. If this is an interim or other non-final inspection, put notes in file. 
c. If this is final inspection recommend final acceptance. 

Detailed Inspection Procedure: 
1. Determine the questionable segments suspected of exceeding threshold 

limits for each individual distress type based on the overview inspection 
notes. · 

2. Document the lane, direction and distance from POB, of each 
questionable segment identified in Step 1. 

3. For each questionable segment, measure and record the amount of each 
individual distress type and record on the inspection form. 

a. Trans verse Cracking 
b. Longitudinal Cracking 
C. De-bonding 
d. Raveling 
e. Flushing 
f. Rutting 
g. Alligator Cracking 

4. Determine if any of the threshold limits for transverse cracking, 
longitudinal cracking, de-bonding, raveling, flushing, or alligator cracking, 
listed under Overview Inspection, are exceeded. 

5. Evaluate segments where the average rut depth appears to exceed 0.25 
~--------------~·n~c~hesasfoml~o~w~s~-------------------------

a. Measure the average rutting at all questionable segments to 
verify that the threshold was exceeded. 

6. Warranty work is required at those segments for which any of the threshold 
limits for transverse cracking, longitudinal cracking, de-bonding, raveling, 
flushing, rutting, or alligator cracking are exceeded. Provide the 
contractor with results of the inspection indicating segments where 
warranty work is required. 

22 



LOCAL AGENCY 
WARRANTY INSPECTION GUIDELINES 

HMAOVERLAY 

Warranty period: 1 Year 

Inspection Period Begins: Final - 10 months after Initial Acceptance 

Notes: 

Procedure: 

(Local Agency may do additional inspections such as at 6 months 
after initial acceptance, after spring break up, etc.) 

1. Segments defined as 528 foot (1/10 mile). 
2. Each lane will be evaluated separately. 
3. The threshold level for each distress type is determined separately. 

1. Preform overview inspection. Based on results of cursory inspection, 
recommend the project for either: 

a. Acceptable - no corrective work needed. If this is the final 
inspection recommend acceptance of the work, or 

b. Detailed inspection - more detailed inspection and / or 
measurements are needed 

2. Perfonn detailed inspection if required. Based on the results of detailed 
inspection, either: 

a. Acceptable - no corrective work needed. If this is the final 
inspection recommend acceptance of the work, or 

b. Warranty work is needed - Provide contactor written notice of the 
distresses and locations needing corrective work. 

Condition Parameter Measurement: 
Performance parameters will be measured as described for each of the 
following distress types in mainline pavement areas: 

1. Transverse Cracking - Total number of transverse cracks in a segment. 
Only count cracks that are not "reflective" from a prior crack or joint. 
Count all transverse cracks that cannot be positively identified as 
"reflective" or are questionable. Each individual crack must exceed 5 feet 
in length lo be included in the total. Ignore transverse cracking for all 

----------------s1·A1gle-Bemse-eveFlays,er-iH~e-tolal-lhiekAess-ekfl1c111ii,le--oo1c1FS€>--------
overlays is 2" or less. 

2. Longitudinal Cracking - Total linear feet of longitudinal cracks in a 
segment. Only count cracks that are not "reflective" from a prior crack or 
joint. Count all longitudinal cracks that cannot be positively identified as 
"reflective" or are questionable. Each individual crack must exceed 5 feet 
In length to be included in the total. Ignore transverse cracking for all 
single course overlays, or if the total thickness of multiple course 
overlays is 2' or less. 

3. De-bonding- Total longitudinal length, in feet, of de;bonding in a 
segment. Potholes are lo be classified as de-bonding. Measure individual 
de-bonding locations in the longitudinal direction, regardless of width of 
the distress location and sum these lengths for the segment. 

4. Raveling - Total longitudinal length, in feet, of raveling in a segment. 
Measure individual raveling locations in the longitudinal direction, 
regardless of width of the distress location and sum these lengths for the 
segment. 

23 



5. Flushing - Total longitudinal length, in feet, offlushing in a segment. 
Measure individual flushing locations in the longitudinal direction, 
regardless of width of the distress location and sum these lengths for the 
segment. 

6. Rutting - The average rut depth, in inches, in a segment. Each wheel 
path shall be evaluated separately. If rutting is found, the pavement 
surface will be measured beginning at the POB and every 132 feet 
thereafter to determine average rut depth to quantify rutting for a 
particular segment. Rut measurements will be done using a straight rigid 
device that is a minimum of 7 feet long and of sufficient stiffness that ii 
will not deflect from its own weight, or a wire under sufficient tension to 
prevent sag when extended 7 feet. Measurements will be taken by 
placing this 'straightedge" across the pavement surface perpendicular to 
the direction of travel. The straightedge shall contact the surface on at 
least two bearing points with one located on either side of the rut. The 
straightedge is properly located when sliding the straightedge along its 
axis does not change the location of the contact points. Rut depth is then 
measured at the point of greatest perpendicular distance from the bottom 
of the straightedge to the pavement surface. 

7. Alligator Cracking - Total area, in square feet, of alligator cracking in a 
segment. Measure individual alligator cracked areas and sum the areas 
for the segment. 

Overview Inspection Procedure: 
1. Review any notes from previous inspections. 

2. Perform a 'windshield" survey of the entire location length. Based solely 
on visual examination and estimated measurements, approximate the 
individual distress quantities for the questionable segment(s) of each 
distress type and record on the inspection form. Details which should be 
noted for the inspection include, but are not limited the following: 

a. The lane or ramp where the distress was noted and the 
associated direction. 

b. Approximate distress location (i.e. 114 mile north of the POB, or at 
the intersection of 1st St in SW quadrant, or near drive for house 
#123 .. ) 

------------------'"'he-distress-quantity;irrgam,ral terms (1.e. minor amounts of 
longitudinal cracking; mid lane flushing). 

d. Areas where temporary maintenance makes ii difficult to 
determine the type of distress, (i.e. presence of cold patching 
material). 

3. Estimate if any of the following distress threshold conditions are 
exceeded 

a. Transverse Cracking exceeds 3 total in the segment length (3 
cracks within 528 feet) for any 3 segments. All reflective cracking 
shall be ignored as these will not count against the allowable 
amount. 

b. Longitudinal Cracking exceeds 25 percent of the segment length 
(132 feet within 528 feet) for any 3 segments. Ignore all reflective 
cracking. All reflective cracking shall be ignored as these will not 
count against the allowable amount. 

24 



c. Debonding exceeds 5 percent (5%) of the segment length (26 
feet within 528 longitudinal feet) for any 1 segment. 

d. Raveling exceeds 8 percent (8%) of the segment length (42 feet 
within 528 longitudinal feet) for any 1 segment. 

e. Flushing exceeds 5 percent (5%) of the segment length (26 feet 
within 528 longitudinal feet) for any 1 segment. 

f. Average rut depth exceeds 0.375 (3/8) inches for any 1 segment. 
g. Any amount of alligator cracking. 

4. If any condition above (in item 2) is estimated to be true: 
a. Perform Detailed Inspection; and 
b. Provide a description of the magnitude and location(s) of the distress 

condition(s) observed which justify the Detailed Inspection. 

5. If all conditions above are false, 
a. Recommend work is acceptable. 
b. If this is an interim or other non-final inspection, put notes in file 
c. If this is final inspection recommend final acceptance. 

Detailed Inspection Procedure: 
1. Determine the questionable segments suspected of exceeding threshold 

limits for each individual distress type based on the overview inspection 
notes. 

2. Document the lane, direction and distance from POB, of each 
questionable segment identified in Step 1. 

3. For each questionable segment, measure and record the amount of each 
individual distress type and record on the inspection form. 

a. Transverse Cracking 
b. Longitudinal Cracking 
c. De-bonding 
d. Raveling 
e. Flushing 
f. Rutting 
g. Alligator Cracking 

-------------~4:-Betermine-if-any·oMhe-threshold·limits·for·transverse-crackinn---------
longitudinal cracking, de-bonding, raveling, flushing, or alligator cracking, 
listed under Overview Inspection, are exceeded. 

5. Evaluate segments where the average rut depth appears to exceed 0.25 
inches as follows. 

a. Measure the average rutting at all questionable segments to 
verify that the threshold was exceeded. 

6. Warranty work is required at those segments for which any of the 
threshold limits for transverse cracking, longitudinal cracking, de
bonding, raveling, flushing, rutting, or alligator cracking are exceeded. 
Provide the contractor with results of the inspection indicating segments 
where warranty work is required. 

25 



LOCAL AGENCY 
WARRANTY INSPECTION GUIDELINES 

NEW/RECONSTRUCTED JOINTED PLAIN CONCRETE PAVEMENT 

Warranty period: 5 Years 

Inspection Period Begins: Interim -30 months after.Initial Acceptance 
Final - 56 months after initial Acceptance 
(Local Agency may do additional inspections) 

Notes: 

Procedure: 

1. Segment - 528 feet in a specific driving lane. For inspection a segment 
begins at the point where the joint sealant failure or pavement distress 
begins to appear and extends for 528 feet from that point. 

2. Slab • The pavement outlined between consecutive transverse joints and 
longitudinal joints or a longitudinal joint and the outer pavement edge. 
Segments consist of one or more slabs. 

3. Driving Lanes - Each of the following is considered a Driving Lane. 
a. Each individual mainline lane. 
b. The sum of all ramp lanes and associated 

acceleration/deceleration lanes. 
c. The sum of all auxiliary lanes, such as passing lanes and turn 

lanes. 
4. Condition Parameters - Each condition parameter has a threshold level 

applied to each segment and a maximum number of defective segments 
before corrective action is required. A segment is defective if the 
threshold level is exceeded. 

5. Longitudinal Joint Designation -All inspections relate to the driving 
lane as defined in the warranty special provision. For tallying joint sealant 
failure and pavement distress (spaliing), consider the entire perimeter of 
the slab in all cases. The condition parameter of the full joint associated 
with the slab being evaluated is considered even though two adjacent 
slabs may share the same interior longitudinal joint. 

6. The contractor will not be required to take corrective measures as a 
result of the interim inspection unless the Engineer determines 
emergency repairs are needed for public safety. Any faults or distresses 
noted will be logged and verified with the final inspection. 

For both INTERIM & FINAL inspections 
1. Perform overview inspection. Based on results of overview inspection, 

recommend the project for either: 
a. Acceptable - no corrective work needed. If this is the final 

inspection recommend acceptance of the work, or 
b. Detailed inspection - more detailed inspection and I or 

measurements are needed 

2. Perform detailed inspection if required. Based on the results of 
detailed inspection, either: 
a. Acceptable - no corrective work needed. If this is the final 

inspection recommend acceptance of the work, or 
b. Warranty work is needed - Provide contactor written notice of the 

distresses and locations needing corrective work. 

26 



Overview Inspection Procedure: 
1. Review any notes from previous inspections of the work. 

2. Pertorm a "windshield" survey of the entire project length. Inspect all 
driving lanes. Based solely on visual examination and estimated 
measurements, approximate the individual distress quantities for the 
questionable segment(s) of each distress type and record on the 
inspection form. Details which should be noted for the inspection include, 
but are not limited the following: 

a. The lane or ramp where the distress was noted and the associated 
direction. 

b. Approximate distress location (i.e. 1/4 mile north of the POB, or at the 
intersection of 1st St in SW quadrant, or near drive for house #123 .. ) 

c. Estimate the distress quantity. Also include a description of distress 
in general terms (i.e. minor amounts of longitudinal cracking; every 
joint has loss of sealant). 

d. Areas where temporary maintenance makes it difficult to determine 
the type of distress, (i.e. presence of cold patching material). 

3. If this is an interim or other non-final inspection, Put notes in file and 
STOP HERE. 

4. If this is the final inspection, estimate if any of the following distress 
threshold conditions are exceeded 

a. Transverse Cracking exceeds 2 total for any 1 segment. (2 cracks 
within 528 feet). 

b. Longitudinal Cracking exceeds 5 percent (5%) of the segment length 
(26 feet within 528 feet) for any 1 segment. 

c. Map Cracking exceeds 10 percent (10%) of the segment area (632 
square feel within 528 longitudinal feet assuming 12 foot lane width) 
for any 1 segment. 

d. Spalling exceeds 10 percent (10%) of each slab. Can be non-
contiguous. Include all 4 sides of the slab. · 

e. Scaling exceeds 15 percent (15%) of the slab area. 
f. Corner cracking exceeds 1 for any 1 segment. 
g. Joint Sealant failure exceeds 10 percent (10%) total joint length in a 

se ment. Include both longitudinal & transverse i.::.oi"'n"'ts'------------~ 
h. Any shattered slabs. 

5. If any condition above is true: 
a. Pertonn Detailed Inspection; and 
b. Provide a description of the magnitude and location(s) of the distress 

condition(s) observed which justify the Detailed Inspection. 

6. If all conditions above are false and this is the final inspection, recommend 
Final Acceptance. 

Detailed Inspection Procedure: This will be done at FINAL inspection when distresses are 
estimated to be at threshold levels, and at INTERIM inspections as directed by the engineer. 

1. Determine the questionable segments suspected of exceeding threshold 
limits for each individual distress type based on the overview inspection 
notes. 

27 



2. Document the lane, direction and distance from POB, of each 
questionable segment identified in Step 1. 

3. For each questionable segment, measure and record the amount of each 
individual distress type and record on the inspection form. 

a. Transverse Cracking 
b. Longitudinal Cracking 
c. Map Cracking 
d. Spaliing 
e. Flushing 
f. Scaling 
g. Joint sealant failure 
h. Shattered slabs 

4. Determine if any of the threshold limits for the various distresses are 
exceeded. 

5. Warranty work is required at those segments for which any of the threshold 
limits are exceeded. Provide the contractor with results of the inspection 
indicating segments where warranty work is required. 

28 



APPENDIX C 

Inspection Forms 

Under Development· 
The inspections forms have not been developed to-date; the Task Force Education Committee is 
working with LT AP to create inspection forms compatible with the RoadSoft program to enable 
tracking the warranty inspection forms to the actual location along a road segment 

29 



INSPECTION FORM FOR HMA WARRRANTY WORK 

lnspect_~_d By: .. ------------------
Date: __________ _ 

Interim Final -.-.-?eec;_i_al 

· Type o~ Co~structi<2n: __ New HMA Construction/ Reconstruction 

<..COn-,-on 
Para meta...-

__ 1:iMA over Ag. Base without other imrovements 

_ HMA Overlay 

•·•=,.~ c.._,, .. STR,.,~TION 1 o .. ..,,, ..... A ·- ---- _,, ____ 
.~ 

RECON$1RfJCTION WITHOUT SASE OR MULTIPLE COURSE 
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS OVERLAY(a} 

lllfUSOOiO .... ax. . resno,a .... ax . ,nresno,d , .... ax . 
Lhnlt.s Per Oefuciive Limll3 Par Do'foctive Limits Pel" Defective 
Se-gment Segments Segn1ent Se{,#me-ntso Segment Segments 
(Segment Per Driving {Segment Per Driving (Segment Per Driving 

Length= 528 Lane-MIia Length =528 Lane-Mlle Length=528 Leine-MHe 
feet feet feet 

= 1110 rnlle) = 1/10 n1Ue) = 1/'10 mite) 
W•ufanty oy,ouu-s ..:,years 1 yaar 

neriod 
lransverse 3 1 3 2 <b> 3 3 (bl 

Cro.cklna 
open,.;01nts 1 ~ ,v o, ,=,egment 1 25%, nr St,,gment 2 (b) ~5%·or--- ----~~ 

& Long. length length Segment 
c.acklnn l~~<>g_m--~- -- -,---Do-bonding 5'}~ of Segmenl 1 5'% or"Segm,;mt 1 

length length Segment 
length --Raveling .,-,., o, S"eomenl 1 a·% of segment 1 8,¾0f 1 

le,,gth length segment 
Jer.oth 

1--1u.sn1ng .., «> of ~egment 1 5%, of Segment 1 5%of 1 
length length Seg,nent 

Rutt,ng {c, r,,ve. rut depth 1 (C) Ave. rut depth 1 (c) Ave'~tepifi- --·1 (c.dY----
d. ,e, 3/'8 Inch 318 inch - 3/8 lncl"I 

Alligator Any.amount O(none Any amount 0 (none Any amount u{none 
cmcklnn (fl auowa-dt allowed) allowed' 

Distresses Found? --.. YesJDescribe below, attach additonal sheets If needed) No 

Distresses Found: (Desc!ib_e type~ severity & l~cat_ion_) 

Corrective action needed? Yes No Needs further evaluation 

Signed (INSPECTOR): ________________________ _ 

Checked by (ENGINEER): _____________________ _ 

30 



INSPECTION FORM FOR CONCRETE WARRRANTY WORK 

_Inspected By: _________________ ~.D~•~te~:~~--------

Type of_inspetion: Interim Final 

Typ~ _o_f_Constructlon: :_Plain Concrete 

Reinforced Concrete 

Condition Parameter or Threshold Limits Per 
Defect Segment 

(Length = 528 feetj 
Transverse Crack 2 
Longitudinal Crack 5% of segment length 
Map Cracking 10% of segment area 
Edge Spalling 10% each slab (b) 

< 2 slabs 
Surface Scaling 15% of the slab area 

< 1 slab 
ComerCrackinQ 1 
Joint Sealant Failure 10% jointlength (c) 

< 2 slabs 
Shattered Slab 0 (d) 

__ Spe~ial 

Max. Defective Segments 
Per Driving Lane-Mile (a) 

1 
1 
1 
1 

1 

1 
1 

0 

- - -----

Distresses Found? __ Yes (Des_cflbe below, attach additonal sheets if needed} __ No 

~J-~ti___e_~~~s Found: {Describe type 1 severity & location) 

Corrective action needed? Yes No Needs further evaluation 

Si$ned {INSPECTOR):~. ______________________ _ 

Checked by {ENGINEER): _____________________ _ 

31 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 



APPENDIX D 

Model Pavement Warranty 
Contract and Bond Forms 

32 



LM 

MICHIGAN 
LOCAL AGENCY 

SPECIAL PROVISION 
FOR 

PASS-THROUGH WARRANTY BONDS 

1 of 1 9/5/2017 

a. Description. This special provision establishes the conditions under which and method 
for a contractor to assign responsibility for the warranty obligations and the providing of a warranty 
bond to a warranty contractor(s). Second tier subcontractor assignments are prohibited. 

b. Requirements. Ensure the Warranty Contract(s) and warranty bond(s) are on forms 
provided by the Local Agency. Ensure the bonds meet the requirements of Michigan law and of 
the Local Agency and include other items such as the powers of Attorney and Endorsement as 
specified by the Local Agency. 

c. Method. The assignment must be made to the warranty contractor(s) that will perform 
the work covered by the warranty. If for any reason after signing the Warranty Contract and 
providing the Warranty Bond, the warranty contractor does not perform the work, the warranty 
contractor will remain obligated for the warranty obligations and the warranty bond obligations will 
remain in effect unless the Local Agency consents in writing to substituting a different contractor to 
assume those warranty obligations and accepts a substitute warranty bond. 

The assignment of warranty work must be designated with and at the time of electronic bid 
submittal. To become a warranty contractor responsible for the warranty obligations of the contract, 
and providing a warranty bond, the warranty contractor must complete and submit to the Local 
Agency a Warranty Contract and a Warranty Bond for each warranty it will be responsible for. 
Ensure the Warranty Contract is signed by an authorized signer of the warranty contractor, as 
identified in its prequalification application. 

Submit the Warranty Contract and Warranty Bond to the Local Agency prior to award of the 
construction contract to the prime contractor for the work to which the warranty applies. Ensure the 
warranty contractor is prequalified in the work classification for the type of work to be warranted. 
The Warranty Bond must guarantee performance of all warranty obligations for the covered work, 

------t·, rraccordance-wit!Tihe-Warranty-C----ontract--Afrprovisions-ot-the-prime-contract-.vill-beapplicabl------
to the warranty contractor in regard to the warranty work, except as otherwise expressly provided 
in the Warranty Contract. 

Under no circumstances does the assignment of the warranty work and the execution of a 
Warranty Contract create any obligations to the Local Agency beyond the obligations undertaken 
in the prime contract. The purpose of the Local Agency accepting the assignment of warranty 
obligations is to allow a warranty contractor to stand In place of the prime contractor for purposes 
of the warranty work without increasing any obligation or liability that the Local Agency would have 
had if the prime contractor had not assigned the warranty work. · 

d. Measurement and Payment. This work will not be paid for separately, but will be included 
in costs for other pay items. 

33 



<local agency name> 
LOCAL AGENCY 

PASS-THROUGH WARRANTY BOND 
Bond Number: _____________ _ 

KNOWN ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS 

That we,, __________________ (hereinafter called the "Principal" and 
____________________ (hereinafter called "Surety") a corporation duly 
organized under the laws of the State of _______ a.nd duly licensed to transact business in the 
State of Michigan, are held and firmly bound unto the <local agency name> 
(hereinafter called the "Obligee"), in the sum of$ __________ _ 
dollars for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we, the said Principal and the 
said Surety, bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, admirtfstrators, successors and assigns, jointly 
and severally, firmly by these presents, 

WHEREAS, the said Principal has heretofore entered into a contract with the Obligee, 
under Contract ID ____ and; 

WHEREAS, the said Principal is required to guarantee the: 

installed under said contract, against defects in materials or workmanship which may develop 
during the period of_years beginning the date of the Acceptance Date of Warranted Work by the 
Obligee. 

In no event shall losses paid under this bond aggregate more than the amount of the bond, 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if said Principal 
shall faithfully carry out and perform the said guarantee, and shall, on due notice, repair and make 
good at its own expense any and all defects in materials or workmanship in the said work which may 
develop during the period specified above or shall pay over, make good and reimburse to the said 
Obligee all loss and damage which said Obligee may sustain by reason of failure or default of said 
Principal so to do, then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

PROVIDED HOWEVER, that in the event of any default on the part of said Principal, a written 
statement of the particular facts showing such default and the date thereof shall be delivered to 
the Surety by registered mail, promptly in any event within ten (10) days after the Obligee or his 
representative shall learn of such default and that no claim, suit or action by reason of any default 
of the Principal shall be brought hereunder after the expiration of thirty (30) days from the end of 
the warranty period as herein set forth. 

?igned by: day of ______ _ 20 ____ _ 

Contractor 

B 

Sure 

B 

34 



PASS THROUGH WARRANTY CONTRACT 

This contract ID number _____ is executed on the date signed below by the ___________ of 
·the <local agency name:::: between the Warranty Contractor, Prime Contractor and the Local Agency in conjunction 
with the execution of this contract ID number, between the Local Agency and 
the Prime Contractor..:. 

{Warranty Contractor) 

(Prime Contractor) 

The work lncluded within this Warranty Contract is, described here: 

The Warranty Contractor represents that it has entered into a subcontract with the Prime Contractor to perform 
Warranted Work for the project, but that any failure to have properly done so, or any breach or failure In the performance 
of that subcontract, shall not diminish or otherwise affect the obligations of the Warranty Contractor to the Local Agency 
under this warranty contract. Nor shall the obllgatio11s of the Warranty Contractor to the Local Agency under this warranty 
contract be diminished or affected if the Prime Contractor or some other person performs some or all of the Warranted 
Work or warranty obligations for the project, unless the Local Agency consents to, and executes, a written amendment to 
this warranty contract. 

Insofar as they pertain to the warranty rights and obligations, the terms of the contract are hereby incorporated by 
reference into this warranty contract and, for purposes of this warranty contract, references in the contract to the 
contractor shall be deemed to refer to the Warranty Contractor. 

The Warranty Contractor hereby agrees to fulfill and perform, without qualification or exception, all of the warranty 
obligations under the terms of the contract, as If they were the Prime Contractor. Until acceptance of the Warranted 
Work, the Prime Contractor will be responsible to the Department for ensuring completion of the Warranted Work and to 
the Local Agency for fulfilling the terms of the warranty for that work. Upon acceptance of the Warranted Work, the 
Warranty Contractor shall have full responsibility for the warranty obligations and the Prime Contractor will be relieved of 
further obligation for performing those warranty obligations. 

The Warranty Contractor agrees that Its obligations to the Local Agency under this warranty contract are the same as if 
the Warranty Contractor was the Prime Contractor; the Warranty Contractor can assert no rights, defenses or 
qualifications to the warranty obligations under the contract that would have been unavailable to the Prime Contractor, if 
the Prime Contractor had retained contractual responsibility for the warranty. The Warranty Contractor may assert the 

-----same-r-ight-s--under-the-terms--ofthe-warranty-as-coatcthaveireen asserted Dy the Prime Contractor~ ,t the Pnme Contractor 
had retained contractual responsibility for the warranty. 

This warranty contract may be executed prior to execution of the contract with the Prime Contractor, provided that if 
the Local Agency fails to execute the contract with the Prime Contractor this warranty contract shall be null and void. 

B : B: 

Title: Title: 

B: 

Typed name: ____________ _ 

local Agency: ____________ _ 

Date: _________________ _ 

35 



APPENDIX E 

Reporting Forms 

Under Development 
Local Road Agencies Warranty Program Reporting 

We have partnered with the Transportation Asset Management Council to modify the 
Investment Reporting Tool to provide an open and transparent reporting method for each local 
transportation agency. The reporting fields will be enabled as soon as the Local Agency 
Pavement Warranty Program is approved by MOOT 

We have also partnered with the Michigan Technological University - CTT to modify the 
Roadsoft Program to provide a common data entry method for each local road agency. The 
Roadsoft warranty data fields will be imported into the T AMC ITR module to provide a statewide 
presentation of the warranty projects that exceed the $ 2,000,000 threshold. 

36 



APPENDIX F 

Education and Training 

Under Development 
Education of Local Road Agencies on Local Pavement Warranty Program 

Since the passage of the 2015 Transportation Package, the CRA has been informing its 
members of the coming warranty requirement; the Engineering Updates provided by the CRA
MML Engineering Specialist have also described the imminent Local Pavement Warranty 
Program. The CRA provided updates about the Local Pavement Warrant Program at its nine 
regional Council meetings during fall-winter 2017-2018; at its County Engineers Workshop in 
February 2018; at its Highway Conference in March 2018, and at its Road Commissioners 
Conference in April 2018. The CRA is also developing this Guidance Document on Local 
Pavement Warranties to serve as the training manual for. The CRA has scheduled and 
dedicated a large portion of its annual 2017 Law Symposium to a session on Implementing the 
New Local Pavement Warranties on December 5, 2017; speakers include the legal counsel 
from the Road Commission for Oakland County and CRA-MML Engineering Specialist Steve 
Puuri. The CRA-MML Engineering Specialist Steve Puuri and two bond counsel 
representatives provided an update at the Michigan Concrete Association. 

In addition, the Local Pavement Warranty Task Force has created an Education Committee that 
has been developing model agency adoption resolutions and training materials. The Task 
Force has partnered with the Local Technical Assistance Program lo develop and conduct 
training program for decision makers and project staff. The Education Committee Is poised to 

____ __,cu·s_tdhute_aci_option_andJraining_materials_up.on_appro:11aloUheJ.ocaLAgencyJ"a11eme•'---------
Warranty Program by MOOT. Finally, the Task Force has developed this Guidance Document to 
assist local agency decision makers and project staff with implementing their Local Agency 
Pavement Warranty program. 

37 



>-
t-

>-2 
u<C a:: :Za::~ 
<( a:: 
_J t- l!) 
<( 2 0 uwa:: 
0 ~ c.. 
....J LU 

> 
<( 
c.. 

- _u -.. ' .I . •. ·'' ii' 

V') 
,::,L 

!.;;_ 

~ 
u ·--

.!:l 
::J 

CL 
4-
0 
.µ 
C 
Q) 

E 
.µ 
I,,_ 

ro 
Cl. 
Q) 

0 
u 
ro ·-.µ 
C 

~ 
4-
0 
>, 
.µ 
·-u 

l 

1' 

I 
I 

' 



cal Agency Paven1ent 
rranty Program 

s part of the Transportation Fundinq Package of 2015, the Michigan 
gislature created a requirement (rVICL 247.662 , 247.663) that each 
cal road agency in Michigan adopt a Local Pavement Warranty 
rogram acceptable to the Michigan Department of Transportation 

DOT). 

he resulting Michigan Local Agency Pavement Warranty Program is the 
atewide accepted format that local agencies can use for hot mix 
phalt (HMA) and P,lain jointed concrete paving projects on public 
ads and streets, 1f they opt to utilize a warranty on a project. 

his Warranty Program must be adopted by every community no 
ter than Septeml5er 18, 2019, and every community must consider 

arranty on each project utilizing any state or federal funding 
at also includes $2 million or more in paving-related components. 

ommunities must annually report on projects with $2 million or 
ore in paving-related items, regardless of whether they 
plemented a warranty or not. 

he overall goal of the Michigan Local Pavement Warranty Program is to 
ave one standardized method for applying pavement warranties on 
cal agency projects, which provides a consistent. quantifi9ble and 
ansparent program that pavement contractors can recognize and 
plement 

. .. 

• 



Progra Cont1ent 

·he Loca I Pavement Warranty Progr~m, as approved by MOOT, consist s of the 
ollowing documents: 

pecial Provisions C: Jih~roL3t e, -- ·· r· --- , ..... . 

· -··· -··· - , -- ·· -·. - ·· and :ontraci 



V) 
V) 
(J) 
u 
0 
~ 

C 
0 ·-..µ 
ro 
C 

•-

E 
Cl.) 
.µ 
Cl) 

0 
~ ..µ 
C 
(\j 
!.-
!.-
m 
$ 

' l 
i 
t 
i 
f 
3 I 

--• -~•- -a-

a 
I 

-a-

-a-



Warranty Process 

e 
! 

~~- ............ , ---·-

I 

-.,__ 

.....-, .... .,._._... ... __ .......,..,_ 

- ·c-.....__, .......... 

M...,lt.a-r •d Mn1N .. "" 
w-ty ,.,._,,""~~-

a -

WMDnty Process 

B.Q¥0&1 

~ 

.. ThtS is the process if MOOT h:Js ovcrsinht :1nd/or 

MDOT let b<l. 

If project is loc~lly let. with no MOOT 

ovc~ght., the loc:,1 .Jgcncy sh::111 determine t he 

process. 



V') 
(./) 

OJ u 
0 
~ 

CL 

C 
0 ·-..µ 
u 
Q) 

u, 
C -



. --- ··- -·~-----~ 

Progranh Content 

1he Program was developed over the last 30 
nonths by the Local AQency Pavement Warranty 
,ask Force including representatives of the 
~ichigan Municipal League, County Road 
\ssociation, MOOT, Fe eral Highway 
\dministration-Michigan, Michigan's Local 
1echnical Assistance Pr1ogram (LTAP), municipal 
·oad agencies, legal cqunsels and industry 
·epresentatives. 



Timeline for WarrBnty Policy Adoption 

ocal Pavement Warranty Program deyeloped by the Task Force must be adopted 
,y your community on or before SeP,tember 18, 2019. 

o adopt the Pavement Warranty Prodram, each community should adopt two 
eparate Resolutions. 

'.esolution to Adopt a Local Pavemeft Warranty Program is needed to adopt the 
ocal Agency Pavement Warranty Pro

1
ram and its accompanying documents. 

'.esolution to Implement a Local Pa ement Warranty Program that defines the 
gency's intent to apply the warranty program consistent with the Local Agency 
'avement Warranty Guidelines and r port annually on each project that includes 
2 million or more in paving-related omponents and includes any state or federal 
unds. 

·he goals of the Local Agency Pavem~nt Warranty Program are to meet the 
~gislative mandate to implement it, as well as to standardize review and 
versight of pavement warranty projects, and to have a program that is 
ransparent and uniform for private-sector contractors. 



=· ·ture Warranty ~ducation Programs 

-he Warranty Task Force has obtained a FHWA grant of 
;74,000, which its Educatibn Subcommittee will use to 
vork with the Michigan LoJ:a1 Technical Assistance Program 
LTAP) to conduct educatid

1

n and training sessions. Training 
viii be designed for electe

1
d/appointed officials, 

1dministrators, as well as f anagers/directors, engineers 
ind engineering technicia s in both onsite sessions and 
>nline webinars during 20 9. The League will work with 
_TAP to publicize these sessions. 



you have any c. ·Jestilons about the Local 
vement Warra~nty P1 ogram, please contact 
hn LaMacchia at (5 7) 908-0303 or 
macchia@mml.org. 



• 

-• 

0 
>
~ 



#15 
RESOLUTION 



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Jane Bais-DiSessa, Depu\y Mayor, at the request of 
John V. Balint, City Engineer 

August 8, 2019 

PK Contracting Contract for Long Line Striping 

The Oakland County Road Commission bid road striping in the spring of 2019. Due to the 
Road Commission being another government agency, the City has the ability to assume 
the contract pricing for our uses. The Department of Public Works is requesting to enter 
into a contract with PK Contracting. The pricing for long line striping as-bid through the 
Road Commission are as follows: 

1. Sprayable Thermoplastic, 4 inch, White - $0.103 
2. Sprayable Thermoplastic, 4 inch, Yellow - $0.103 
3. Layout (As-Required) - $1,500.00 

The Engineering Division has the reviewed and approved the attached documents 
supplied by the Road Commission for Oakland County as well as a City-prepared contract 
for the work. 

It is the recommendation of the Department of Public Works, Engineering Division that the 
City enter into the attached contract with PK Contracting. 

WHEREAS, 

NOW, THEREFORE, 
BE IT RESOLVED, 

JVB 

attachments 

The City of Pontiac has reviewed the documents provided by the 
Oakland County Road Commission, and; 

The Pontiac City Council authorized the Mayor or Deputy Mayor 
to sign the attached contract with PK Contracting for Road 
Striping. 

. .. ! 



~~ ~~jl; ~ ~~ ~~m-Jtr.~.3i.-Wi,.~~:ww.,w~~~~~~~-9slm~'1l~~ 
~~~"ml~~,,,,~~~13§~~][~"{;'~~~~ Br&~ ~ ~ ~ 

To Whom It May Concern, 

MAIi\! OFFICE 
1965 Borrntt Drive 
Troy, Ml 48084-5:)72 
PHONE 248C30H130 
F,x 248-362-4969 

West Ml Office 
8139 Douglas Ave 
Kalama100, Ml 49009. 
PHONE 269-385·3112 
FAX 269·385-;i264 

I North Ml. Office 
6344 Blue Road !M-55) 

I Lake City, Ml 49651 
i PHONE 231·839•4430 
! FA, 231·839,4737 

Central Ml Office 
3900 S. US-27 
Sl. Johns, Ml 48879 
PHONE 989·292-4400 
fM 989-292-4401 

P .K. Contracting, Inc. will ho1.1or its pricing set up with Oakland County for 
the Jongitudinal Spray Thermoplastic markings for the City of Po1.1tiac. Please see below 
current pricing under contract with Oakland County. Due to markings being heavily 
faded within the city, we request that a sum of$1,500.00 be paid for each day thatwill 
require layout. 

l. Sprayable Thermoplastic, 4 inch, White - $.103 / LFT 
2. Sprayable Therrnoplastic, 4 inch, Yellow - $.103 I LFT 
3. Sprayable Thermoplastic, 6 inch; White - $.15 I LFT 
4. Sprayable Theniroplastic, 6 h1cb, Yellow• $.15 / LFT 

~/L 
Nicholas C. Shea 
Chief Estimator 

PARTNER BY CHOICE. SAFETY BY DESIGN. 

PK CONTRACTING IS AN RQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLO'r'ER 

Pl<CONTffACllNG,COM 



Quality Life through Good Roads "We Care" 

d # i #ROAD 
COHH/SS/ON 

4i1-ti•tit3tittl•Jirl•lll1:4ii"T 
Inter-Departmental Memorandum 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
Right of Way Division 

DATE: May21,2019 

To: Thomas G. Blust, P.E. / 
Director of Engineering 

FROM: · Michael Smith ~-
Right of Way and Contracts Manager 

SUBJECT: CONTRACTS AND BONOS 

This contractor has complied with our requirements for the following listed project in regard to 
the Bonds and Insurance Certificates. The Contract is now ready for the effective date and 
Managing Director's signature. 

Project Number: 94119 

Project Name: 2019 County-Wide Pavement Striping Program 

Awarded to: PK Contracting, Inc. 

Contract Price; $1,826,050.00 

Cc;mstn,iction S!art Date: June 3, 2019 

Date Bid Received: April 16, 2019 

Date Board Accepted Bid: May 9, 2019 

Attachment 
M$/nc 



Quality Life through Good Roads "We Care" 

, .. # #ROAD 
COHH/SS/ON 

4U•Ji•tit3tilh•Jlri•J»it'li? 
Inter-Departmental Memorandum 

Elll'-JNiiRJIIIG l;)fiPARTMil\lT 
Right of Way Division 

DATE: May 21, 2019 

To: Shannon Miller / 
Clerks Office 

FROM: Michael Smith rvz_/' 
Right of Way and Contracts Manager 

SUBJECT: RELEASE OF BID CHECK 

Project Number. 

Project Name: 

Return bid check to: 

Amount of.Bid Check: 

94119 

2019 County-Wide Pavement Striping Program 

PK Contracting, Inc. 
1965 Barrett, Troy, Ml 48084 

$50,000.00 

The signed contract and bonds for the project listed above have been submitted. 

MS/nc 

ll 

1: 



ll-Oatd of Road Commlsslon1J1S 

Ronald J. Fowkes 
Ccmmissione, 

Gregory C. Jam/an 
Commlssione,-

Andrea LaLonde 
Commissioner 

Dennis G. Kolar, P.E. 
Man&ging Dlroc!D, 

Gary Plotrowlcz, P.E., P.T.O.f. 

DepvtyMMagi)g -Coon/y lf,glJWay Engineer 

Engineering Department 
31001 Lahser Road 

Boverly Hills, Ml 48025 

248-2000 

FAX 
248~618 

www.rcocweb.org 

May 21, 2019 

P .K. Contracting, Inc. 
1965 Barrett 
Troy, Ml 48084 

Re: Return of Contract Documents: # 94119, 2019 County-Wide Pavement 
Striping Program 

P .K. Contracting, Inc.: 

The Road Commission for Oakland County executed the contract for the above 
subject project on May 21,2019. 

One copy each of the executed contract, bond and a copy of the insurance 
documents are returned herewith for your records and file. 

You may proceed with the proposed work in accordance with the Progress 
-Schedule as noted in the proposal for this project. Please contact our 
.Construction Division at (248) 858-4855 when you are ready to begin work. 

Sincerely, 

omas &. Blust, P .E. 
Director of Engineering 

TGB/jlk 
Enclosure 

c: <::lerks 
Sharolyn Arnold/Cheryl Co:x: 
Risk Management 

· Jeff O'Brien 
Finance 

11 
•,; 



BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 
ofthe 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
MICHIGAN 

CONTRACT 

FOR 

2019 County-Wide Pavement Striping Program 

Road Commission for Oakland County Project: 

Project# 94119, 2019 County-Wide Pavement Striping Program 

P.K. Contacting, Inc. 
1965 Barrett 

Troy, Mr 48084 



TIDS AGREEMENT, Made this o2 \ '§_r day of rY\a , AD 20 £, 
by and between the Board of County Road Commissioners of the Co~y of Oakland, State of 

Michigan, a Public Body Corporate, herein after referred to as the Board, and P.K. Contracting, 

Inc a Michigan corporation, of 1965 Barrett, Troy, MI 48084, hereinafter referred to as 

Contractor. 

1. WORK DEFINED: the Contractor, for and in consideration of the payment or payments 

· hereinafter specified, hereby agrees to furnish all necessary machinery, tools, apparatus and other 

means of construction, do all the work, furnish all the materials except as herein otherwise 

specified, and to complete, in strict accordance with the plans, specifications and the Proposal 

therefor, and to the satisfaction of the Board of County Road Commissioners of the County of 

Oakland, the work described herein, it being understood and agreed that said plans, specifications 

and proposal are to be considered a part hereof. 

2019 County-Wide Pavement Striping Program 

2. HOLD HARMLESS PROVISION 
The Contrffl:tor shall hold harmless, represent, de fond with counsel ac«ptable to, and indemnify the Board of County Road Commis.sioners of 
the County of Oaklrutd (the "Board.,), the County of Oakland; the Office of the Oakland County Water Resourci:s Commissioner, any and all 
drainage distrlct(s) and local unit(s) of government affected by the Project, the Michigan Department of Transportation , the- Mich.igan 
Transportation Commission, and their respective officers, agents and employees; against any and all claims, charges, corn.plaints, damages or 
causes of action for (a) damages to public or private property, (b) injuries to perwn or persons, or (c) any and all other clalms ~barges, 
complaints, damages or causes of action arising out of the performance or non-performance oflhe contracted work and its related activities, both 
known and unknown, whether during the progress or afier th<:: comp le lion thereof. 

3. NON•PISCRIMINATION CI.AUSB FOR ROAD COMMISS£QN FOR OAKLAN_D COUNTY CONTRACTS 
A. In acwrdance with Aet No. 453, Public Acts of 1976, as amended the oonttactor hereby agree:i not to discriminate against oo. employ(:e or 

t 
( 

i 
I 
I 

I 

applicant tor employment w1ui resped to hire, tenure, terms coodnfons, or pnvlleges oi employment; OI a 1rn!lttt directly ot indilecd:y 1elat·,d-------~ 
to employment, because of race, color, religion, national origin, s.ge, sex, height, weight, or marital status. Further, in accordance with Act 
No. 220. Public Acts of 1976 as amended, the Contractor hereby agrees not to discriminate agaii:tst an employee or applicant for employment 
with respe,cl to hire,. ~nure. terms, conditions, QC privileges. of emplo)meot, or a m11tter dir«:tly or indirectly relakd to cmplo)'menf, because 
of a handicap that k unrelated to the individual's ability to perfortn dte duties of a particular job ot position. A breat;h of the above covenants 
shall be regarded as a material breadl of this r;ontract. 

B. Tite Contractor hereby agrees that any and all subcontracts to this contract, whereby a portion of the \\'Ork set forth in tl1is contract b to be 
pmormed, shall contain a covenant the same as hereinbefore m: forth in this Section 3. 

c. The Contractor will take affirmalive action to insure that applicants 8.{e employed, and Utilt employees- are treated during employment, without 
regard to their nu:e, color, religion, national origin, age, sex., height. weight, ,maribl status or a handicap that is unrelated to the individual's 
ability to perfonn the duties of a particular job or position. Stltb action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, 
up~ing. demotion or transfer. recruitment advertisin~ layoff 0< termination; rat.es of pay or other forms of contpens!ltioo; and selectioo for · trainin& "iricilid.fug apprent1ces11ip: · · -· · · · -· · · · · · · · · · · · -- · ·· · ··· · · · · · · · .. · · · · · .. -· · · · · ·· .. · · · · · · .. · · .. · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · ·· · · ·· -

D. The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements fur employees placed by or on behalf of the contiactor. state that all qualified 
applicanlS will receive consideration for Wlployment without n;gard to race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height. weight. marital 
status or handicap that is unrelnted to the individual's ability to perfonn the duties of a particular job or positioo. 

E. The Conlmctor wm comply with all relevant published rules, regulations. directives, and orders of the Michigan Civil Rights Commission, 
which may be in effect prtor to the taking of bids fot any iodivi6ual staw project. 

f. The Contractor will include, or incorponrte by reference, the provisions of the foregoing paragraphs (A) th1ough (E) in every suboontract or 
pUKhase order unless exempted by the rule$, (eg\llalions or orders of the Michigan Civil Rights Commission, and will pr~vide in every 
subconttact or purchase order that said provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor 0( seller. 

4. IN CONSIDERATION WHEREOF, Said Board agrees to pay said Contractor for all work done, the following unit prices: 



Contract ID: 
Location: 
Description: 

Project Number: 
Estimate Number: 
Project Typo: 
Location: 

Description: 

94119 

Road Commission for Oakland County 
Bid Tabulation 

2019 County Wide Striping Program 
A project for the installation of Sprayable Thennoplastic Pavement Striping on Various Roads in 
Oakland County 

94119 
1 
Miscellaneous 
Oakland County 

2019 County Wide Striping Program 

Proje<:t Engineer: 
Dato Created: 

Fed/State#: 
Fed Item: 
Control Section: 

Greg West 
3/1812019 

Contract# 94119 (2019 Count}' Wide Striping Program} 
MERL: 2018.11.1 

Page 1 of2 

4/30/2019 9;23:28 AM 

Ii 

l 



Bidder: P.K. Contracting, Inc. 

Line Pay Item Description Quantity Units Bid Price Total 

0001 8110011 ca11 Back. Mobm,ailan 10 Ea $500,000 $5,000.00 

0002 8110154--PavtMrkg, Sprayablethennopl, 4 inch, 7,700,000 Ft 
Yellow 

$.103 $793,100.00 

~000=3~8~1~10~1=55-~Pavt Mrl<·-g-,=sp-,a-y-able ihennopl, 6 inch, Wh'"ltc-e----=-6,7500=,ooo=---cF"'t-----.$.-_ 1"570------.$'"97'"5'",occoo •. OO= 

0004 8110157 Pavt Mrl<g, Sprayable Thennopl, 8 inch. White-- 5,000 Ft $.220 $1,100.00 

0005 8110232 - Pavt Mrl<g, Waterborne, 4 inch, Yellow 150,000 Ft ··-------- -$-_0_7_0 ____ $_10-,-50-0-.00-

0006 8110233 · Pav! Mrl<g, Waterborne, 6 inch, White 80,000 Ft 
--- --···· $.070 __ __ $5,600.00 

$3,250.00 

$2,500.00 

0007 8110450 Reeessing Pavt Mrl<g, Longit 

0008 8117001 _ Pavt Mrl<g, Waterborne, Curb, 8 inch, 
Yellow 

0009 8117050 _ Witness, Log, $1,000 

5,000 Ft $.650 

$.500 -

------~------~----=~----==~~ 10 Ea $1,000.000 $10,000.00 
'iio10·-s120210 Pavt Mrkg, Longit, 6 inch or Less Width, R-em ____ siooii--F-t --------- $.400 $20,000.00 

Contract# 94 l 19 (2019 County Wide Striping Program) 
MERL:2018.11.1 

Bid Total: $1,826,050.00 

Page2 of2 

4/30/2019 9:23:26 AM 

I 



If no nnit prices are set forth herein, in reference to any extra work ordered by the Board or 
its authorized representative, the Board agrees to pay for such work on the basis agreed upon before 
such extra work is begun. 

_5. PROGRESS SCHEDULE: it is further nnderstood and agreed that time is of the essence of th.is 
contract, and that the work shall be so conducted and supervised by the contractor as to insure its 
completion .in accordance with the following conditions: Attached Progress Schedule or Progress 
Clause: 



ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 

PROGRESS CLAUSE 

RCOC/DESIGN: XX Page 1 of 3 RCOC12PC ORG: 3/07/2019 
REV: 3/21/2019 

a. General 

Submit a complete, detailed and signed MDOT Form 1130, Progress Schedule, to the Engineer 
within seven (7) calendar days after Award and prior to starting work per current MDOT 12SP-
101 contained in this proposal. The Engineer for this project is as follows: 

Gregory West 
Road Commission for Oakland County 
2420 Pontiac Lake Road 
Waterford, Ml 48328 
248-858-4812 
gwest@rcoc.org 

The Progress Schedule shall include, as a minimum, the controlling work items for the completion 
of the project and the planned dates that these work items will be controlling operations. When 
specified in the bidding proposal, the date the project is to be opened to traffic as well as the final 
project completion date shall also be included in the project schedule. If the Bidding Proposal 
specifies other controlling dales, these shall also be included in the Progress Schedule. 

After award and prior to the start of work, the Contractor must attend a preconstruclion meeting 
with the Engineer. The schedule for this meeting will be determined by the Engineer after 
submittal of MOOT Form 1130. The Engineer will arrange the day, time and place for the 
preconstruction meeting. The named subcontractor(s) for designated and/or Specialty Items, as 
shown in the proposal, are recommended to be at the preconstruction meeting if such ~ems 
materially affect the work schedule. 

Start work within 1 0 days of Award. In no case, shall any work be commenced pnor to receipt of 
formal Notice of Award by the Department. 

The Contractor shall be expected to mobilize sufficient labor and equipment to complete the 
project within the specified time frames. 

The Contractor may be required to meet with Department representatives for a post-construction 
review meeting, as directed by the Engineer. The Engineer will schedule the meeting. 

. . . . ... . ... . . . ... ....... . ................................. ··- -··. 

Failure on the part of the Contractor to carry out the provisions of this Progress Clause may be 
considered sufficient cause to prevent bidding on future projects. 

b. Expedited Schedule 
This project is on an expedited schedule. This project is on an expedited schedule based on 
a 6 day or 7 day work week. The Contractor is expected to mobilize sufficient labor resources and 
equipment and to work the required overtime to maintain the expedited schedule. The contractor 

2019 COUNTY WIDE STRIPING PROGRAM #941 t 9 7of42 



RCOC/DESIGN: XX Page 2 of 3 RCOC12PC ORG: 1/18/2019 
REV: 3/21/2019 

shall include any costs associated with maintaining the expedited schedule in the Bid Items for 
work, as it will not be paid separately. 

Unless specific pay items are provided in the contract, any extra costs incurred by the Contractor 
due to cold-weather protection, winter grading, sufficient manpower and equipment necessaryto 
maintain the expedited schedule, and/or meet the final completion date, and any overtime will not 
be paid for separately, but will be included in payment of other contract itenis. 

c. Milestones 

1. County wide striping 

shall be completed on or before July 31, 2019. 

2. Call back striping, 

shall be completed within 10 days of notification . 

. 3. Entire Project Including Delayed Acceptance Items. 

The entire project sh'!lll be completed on or before April 15, 2020 

d. Liquidated damages for failure to meet milestones 
Failure on the part of the Contractor to meet each of the above Milestones by the date specified 
shall result in the assessment of Liquidated Damages against the Contractor as provided in 
Section 108.10, Liquidated Damages, of the MOOT 2012 Standard Specifications for 
Construction. 

Liquidated damages will be assessed separately, simultaneously and concurrently for failure to 
meet Milestone dates as specified above. Liquidated Damages will continue lo be assessed for 
each calendar day or portion of a day that thl6 work remains incomplete even it these days extend 
beyond the normal Seasonal Suspension period of October 15, 2019 

Assessment of Liquidated Damages and/or contract adjustments applies to hourly/daily 
restrictions included in the Maintaining Traffic Special Provision. 

e. Work day, hour, and other work restrictions imposed by local communities 
....... The work hours described may be modified or changed by the Engineer due to Holidays, Special · 

Events, or Traffic Volumes. 

A Contractors operations shall be limited by local municipality work time, noise, and dust 
ordinance unless approved by the local municipality and the Engineer in writing. 

8. No work or lane closures, unless approved by the Engineer, shall be performed during: 

2019: Memorial Day (from 3:00 pm Friday, May 24th -6:00 am Tuesday, May 28th), 4th 

of July {from 3:00 pm Wednesday, July 3"'- 6:00 am Friday, July 5th) or Labor Day 
(from 3:00 pm Friday, August 30th - 6:00 am Tuesday, September 3"'). 

2019 COUNTY WIDE STRIPING PROGRAMt/94119 8of42 

I 
i 
I 



2020: Memorial Day (from 3:00 pm Friday, May 2200 - 6:00 am Tuesday, May 26th), 4th of 
July (from 3:00 pm Thursday, July 200 - 6:00 am Monday, July 6th) or Labor Day (from 
3:00 pm Friday, September 4th - 6:00 am Tuesday, September 8th). 

2021: Memorial Day (from 3:00 pm Friday, May 28th - 6:00 am Tuesday, June 1•t), 4th of 
July (from 3:00 pm Friday, July 2nd - 6:00 am Tuesday, July 6th) or Labor Day (from 3:00 
pm Friday, September 3'"- 6:00 am Tuesday, September 7th). 

C. Additional lane or ramp closures other than those already in place will not be allowed 
during the following events unless otherwise approved by the Engineer: 

(1) Woodward Dream Cruise (http://www.woodwarddreamcruise.com/}, Third 
Weekend in August, on woodward Ave throughout Oakland County. 

(1) (2) Arts Beats and Eats (http://artsbeatseats.com/) August 31 through September 3, 
2018, City of Royal Oak. 

(2) (3) Arts and Apples Festival (https://www.pccart.org/festivall), September 7, 8, and 9, 
2018, City of Rochester. 

(3) (4) Oakland County Fair, (https://www.oakfair.org/), Week after July 4th of every 
year. July 6 through 15, 2018, Springfield Oaks Park, Springfield Twp. 

(4) (5) Brooksie Way, (https:/fwww.thebrooksieway.com/), September 22, 2018, City of 
Rochester Hills. 

(5) (6) Founders Festival, (http://foundersfestival.com/), July 19,20, and 22, 2018, City of 
Farmington. 

(6) (7) Milford Memories, (https://www.milfordmemorles.com/), August 10, 11, and 12, 
2018, City of Milford. 

(7) (8) Berkley Days, (http://www.berkleydays.com}, May 17, 18, 19, and 20, 2018, City 
of Berkley. 

(8) (9) Holly Dickens Festival 2018 (https:1/hollydickensfestival.orgflndex.html), 
Spans three weekends between Thanksgiving and Christmas. 

(9) (10) Michigan Renaissance Festival 

·· ·· ··· ·· ·· ··· ··· (10) ···Holly Township/Groveland Township 

(11) Weekends and Labor Day-August 18th through September 30th 2018 
(Dates vary year to year) 

(12) Festival Contact: Cathy Parker (248) 240-6248 

{13) (11) Other events name, dates and limes. (go here for more ... 
https://oaklandcountyblog.com/things-to-do/outdoor-art-fairs-in-oakland-county 

2019 COUN1YWtOE STRIPING PROGRAM #94119 42 of 42 

il 
% 
-:•: 

t~ 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, tl1e parties hereto have set tlieir hands tlie day and year first above 
written .. 

BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF 
OAKLAND, MICIDGAN 

Dennis G. Kolar, P.E., Managing Director 

P,K. CONTRACTING, INC. 

By:_~(/1A L.S. 

Sandra J. Bitner, Agent 

(Print or Type Name and Title) 



Bond No. 107059106 

RCOC PROJECT# 94119 
2019 County-Wide Pavement Striping Program· 

PERFORMANCE BOND 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That we, P.K. Contracting, Inc., 1965 Barrett, 

Ttoy, MI 48084, as principnl, and TravetersCawajfyaoosuretyecmpanyofAmerica , duly authorized to transact 

business in the State of Michigan, a, surety, are held and fi,mly bound unto the Board of County Road 

Commissioners of the County of Oakland, State of Michigan, in tho penal sum of one mlUion eight 

hqndrcd twenl)cslx thoqs•nd fifty dollars and 001100 ($1,816,050,00), lawful money of the United States, 

to be paid to the said Board of County Road C-0mmissioners or to its certain nttotney or assigns, to whfoh 

payment. well and truly to be made, we bind ourseJves, our heirs. executors, ·administrators and assigns, 

jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

Sealed with our seals and dated this __ c..16,,,_\h"------- day of __ ___,,M:::;a,_y _____ ~ 

A.D.20_!1._, 

The condition of this obligation is such that if the above named principal shall and will, well and 

faithfully, nnd folly, do, execute and perfonn the contract to which this bond is attached, according to the 

terms and conditions thereof, including extensions oftimo, (notice ofwhfch is hereby waived by the surety)t 

then this obligntion is to be void, othen-vise to reinaio in full force and effect. 

Trave!ers CMUaltyand Surety CompanyotAmenca Surety 

~ ?5 }-r--
!ts Susan L. Small, Attorney-In-Fact 

Note: If the Principal is a co-partne,~hip, each member_n,ust sig,)_thci_oJ>Ol!dLlfthe. principalis • · --·· ·· 
· · corpo,ation; evidertce·oflhe authority ofofficer signing must be attached or be on file with the Board of 

County Road Commissioners. When someone other than an officer or owner ls signing) a notarized · · 
CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY must be attached. The Surely Company shall attach, or have on file with 
the Board of County Road Commissioners, a valid power of attorney of person or persons executing bond 
for the Company. 

---------~----· 

I 

I 



Bond No. 107059106 

RCOC PROJECT# 94119 
2019 County-Wide Pavement Striping Program 

PAYMENT BOND 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That we, P.K. Contracting, Inc., 1965 Barrett, 

Troy, MI 48084, as principal, and TfBvelere.CasuattyandSw-etyCompa~yotAmefic:a duly authorized to transact 

business in the State of Michigan, as surety, are held and finnly bound unto the Board of. County Road 

Commissioners of the Counzy of Oakland, State of Michigan, In the sum of one mlllion eight hundred 

lwoaty-$iX thousand fifty dollars and 00/100 (Sl,826,050,00), lawful money of the United States to be poid 

to the said Board of County Road Commissioners) or to ils assigns, or to any person, finn or corporation 

who may furnish labor, material, st1pplies for equiptnent1 for coustructioaJ and equipment on n rental basis, 

on account of and actually used in the perfonnance of the contract hereinafter mentioned, to which payment 

will and truly to ~ made-, we brnd ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators and assigns and each and 

every one of them finnly by these presents. 

Sealed witli our seals and dated this __ 1"6"th"---__ day of ___ M=ay'--~' A.D. 20___!l_ 

The condition Or this obligation is such that if there shall be paid1 as the same may become due and 

payable, all indebtedness which may arise from said principal to a sub.contractor or to any person1 finn or 

corporation on accou11t of any labor, materia~ supplies for equipment, for constmction, and rental of 

equipment, furnished and actually used in the perfol'fl)an¢¢ of the contract to which this bond is attached, 

including extensions of time, (notice of which is heteby waived by th• surety), then this obligation is to be 

void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect. 

Name, Address & Telephone Number 
of Local Agent 

VTC Insurance Group 

1175 West long Lake Road, Suite 200 

Troy, Ml 48098 

248-1328-3377 

P.K. CONTRACTING, INC. 

~:~~~ 
Tra~ Casua1t1 and Surety Company of America _ Surety Bye < .2 u=-2; 

Us. Susan L. Smau, Attorney~ln-Fact 

.-



• 
TRAVELERft 

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America 
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company 
St Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company 

POWER OF ATTORNEY 
KNOW_ All MEN ~y THESE PRESENTS: That Tt.ivefecs Casuafty and Surety Company of America, Travefers Ca$ua.fty and surety Company, and St. 
:,aul Fire_ and Manne Insurance Company are cotpocatlons duly organized under the laws or the State of Connecilcut (herein cof1ectivefy call'ed the 
Compa11res"), and that the Companies do hereby ma~, constitute and appoint SUs.'ln L Stn.1II ofTROY 

Mlch!~an , their tru€: _and lawful Atto~ey•ln•Fact to sign, execute, seal and acknowfedge any and ii-If bonds, recognizances, 
conditional undertakings and ~!her wntmgs obfag.i.toiy lO the nature thereof on behalf of the Companies in their business of guaranteeing the 
fldefrty of persons, guarenleemg the perloanance of contracts and executing or guaranteeing bonds and undettakings required or permitted in any 
actions or proceedings allowed by law. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Companles have causM this Instrument to be signed, and their corporate seeds to be here lo affixed, this 3rd day of f.ebruary, 
2017. 

State of Conn~cut 

City of Hartford ss. 
By: 

On ttiis the 3rd day of February, 2017, before me personally appeared l=l:obert L Raney, Yrho acknowiedged himself to be the Senior Vice President of 
Trt1velers casualty and Svrety Company of America, Travelers Casualty and Surely Company, and SL Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company, and 
that he, as such, betng authorized so lo do, exerot:ed the fore91>ing lnsl!\lment for the purposes therein contained by si9<1ing on behatf of the corporations 
by himself as a duly authorized officer. · 

tn w11ness Whereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 

My Commisslon explres the 3oth day of June., 2-021 • Marfa C. Tetreault, Notary Public 

This Power of Attorney ls granted under 90d by the authority of the following resotutions adopted by the Boards of Dlrt'!ctors of Travelers casuaky and 
Surety Company <if America, Travelers Casuatty and Surety Company, and St. Paul Fire and MaOlle Insurance Company, \'dlidi resolutions are now In 
full force and effect, read'rng as foVows:· 

RESOLVED, that the Chaimwn, the President, any Vice Chairmatt, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President, any Vice Presklent, any 
Second Vice Ptesklen~ the Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Corporate Secre~ry or any As~lstant Secretary ma.y appoint Attorneys-In-Fact and 
Agents to act for and on behalf of the Company and may give sucil appointee such authority as his or her' cerUficate of authority may presctibe to sign wfth 
the Company's name and seal With the Company's seal bonds, recognizances, contracts of Indemnity, and other writings obligatory in the nature of a 
bond, recognizance, or conditional undertaking, -and any of said officers or the Board of Directors at any time may remove any such appointeo- and revoke 
the j:rower given him or her. and it Is 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chairman, the Preskfenl. any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vice Presfdenl any &inlor Vice President or any Vice 
President may delegate all or any part of the foregoing authority to one or more officers Qr employees of this Company, provided that eacil such delegation 
ls ln writing and a copy thl!reffi is filed in the office or the Secrelaty;...a · • 

FURTHER RESOJ.. VED, ttrnl l:lfly bond, recognizance, contract of indemnity, or wrttlng obligatory in the nature of a bond, recogniz~nce, or conditional 
undertaking shaB be valid and binding upon the Company'o'.nen (a} signed by the President, any Vice Cha inn an, any Executive Vice President, any Seniot 
Vlc.e PreskferTl or any Vrce President, any Second Vice President, the Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Corporate Secretary or any Assistant 
Secretary and duly attested and sealed with the Company's seal by a Secretary or Asslstant Secretaiy; or (b) duly executed (under seal, if required) by 
one or more Attomeys-.ln--Fad and Agents pu~u.int to the power prescribed in his or her ccrtifieate or their certiflcale$ of authority or by one or more 
Company mf1eers purauanl t() a written defegaUon Of authority; and It ls 

FURTHER RESOLVED, thjl{: the signature of each of the following officers: President, any Executive Vice President.. any Senior Vice President, any Vice 
President, any Assistant Vice President, any Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, and the seal of the Company' may be affixed by l'a,cs«niJe: to any f'ay.•er 
of Attorney or to any certificate ralatlng thereto appointing Resident Vice Presidents, ResldentAs$btant Se~taries or Attorneys.in-Fact. for purposes only 
of executing and attesting bonds and undertakings and other writings obli9alo,y £n the na!Ure thereof, and any such Power or Attorney or certtfieate bearing 
such_facslmRe slgnature_or_facsirnilE!'.~~<11-~ha_O_Qff __ y.~.fi.d.and .binding .upon.the Company.and any.such power so executed and certified D:tsuch-facsimile·· 

· Slg08hife ·a-ild.faCSQliie ·seal shal be valid and binding on the Company in the future with respect to any bond or under..tanding to v.-hlch it is attached. 

I, Kevin E. Hughes, the underaigned, Assistant Seaelary of Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America, Travelers Casuarty and Surety 
Company, and St. Paul Fwe and Marine Insurance Company, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a bl.le and correct copy of the P~r of 
Attorney exeaited by said Companies, Which remains In tuft fOJre and effect. 

Dated th~ 16th day of May • 2019 

ee0 
To verify the authentidty cf th/$ Power"' Attoiney, please call w at l..S00--421."3880. 

Please rerer to the above-named Attomey~ln~Fact and the details of the bond to which the power Is attached. 



- -· --

AE':!Jiu' CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I D>.TE{MWODll'YYY} 

05/15/2D19 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, 1,XTENO OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSIDUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 
IMPORTANT: If lt11 cortffiC11.fo hokier Is an ADDmONAL INSURED, th" pollcy(les) muat be endorstd, ff SUBROGATlON JS WAIVED, subject to 
tha tenns and conditions or the policy, certain pollcle.s may roqulre an andorsemont. A statom~ant on this cert!Hcatv don not confer rights to the 
Cltlrtiflcate holdGr in lieu or euoh endorument(a). 

PRODUCER 1-:1:48-828-3377 ~9trrf"r OAyle B0tm1r 
VTC In11unnc8 Group ~.£ ~. 24.8-828-3377 I a~ Nol, 2-te .. 828-3741 

1175 weat tong Lake Road :=-ES.!: gbotQertvta1oa.ce$; 
Suitu 200 IH&UD..-<>181 A.FfORtll:liG COVERAGE ,we, 
Troy, HI 48098 INSVRERA: PHOENIX INS CO 25623 
IH3UREO IHst.lRERB: TRAVXLUS .PROP CAS CO OF AKBR 2SG7i 
P.X. Contraoting, Inc. 

l»SV!lliRC:: 'l'P.AV!1,DS lHI) CO 01' C'l 25682 

1~65 B1u:-ratt IHSORER O: CllA.RTQ. OAX FlRE IJfS co 25615 

INSURER E: GREAT AMER IMS co 16691 

T,t;"ov, lfI '4c$08" .. .!il1:i; llfSWl:RF: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 56194384 REVISION NUMBER• 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BE!;N ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY f'ERfOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF MY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUS) OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDl:O BY THE POUCIES DESCR!BEO HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AU.. THE !ERM$, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN !MY HAVE BEEN REDUCED 8Y PAID ClAIMS, 

l~_SR lYPE OF IHSURANCE L 
UR· POLICY NUMB""' • Ef> CY EXP LIMITS 

A X ~EROOl.CENERAJ.. U\BllJTY X X C0324I>l222 12/31/18 12/31/19 i;ACHOCC!..'RRENCE $1,000,000 
~ 

~ C~AOE 0 OCCUR '"" 
~ 

WSJ-SIJ:a r.e-el $ 300,000 

X 
~ 

x,c,11 rnc1udod ME:O EQ>l-"-~•OM ,_,_"Al S: 10,000 

- PfRSONAL!MNlN.,\IRY $1,000,000 Fl SGGREGATE LIMIT"""-"'•'"" GENERAl.AGGREOATE S 2,000,000 

POUCY0~ Otoe PROOIJCTS~COMPIOP AGG $ :z,000,000 

Olttet: ' B AUT"OMOBILE UASfUTY X X 8103241•32:!2 12/31/18 12/31/19 co 
&,;ujantl ' $1,000,000 -

X WfAVTO 500tl Y IWURY (Pe.r pe,»,) s - >J.J.ovmEO ~ SCHEDULED 800UIU.IURY {P.-~) ' ~ S\JTOS ~ AUTOS 
X X NOl<-O"NSJ PROPE~nOA.~ s - HIREDA\.ffOS - AUTOS 

' 
C X UMBREl..l.AUAB- MOCCtJR Ctr"P:324P3222 12/31/18 12/Jl:./l'J EACH occvruteNCE $ 20,000,000 -

El(Cf:BS UA.n CLAIMS-YAO~ AOOREGAlli f 2·0,000,000 

OED I { 11,,:.TfNl'tr"INS • 
n WORKERS COMPENSATION X OHjS-l0671 12/)1/13 12/31/19 Xlki~I I Eft· 

ANO EMPLOYER!r I.JASIUTY .. 
...... r"vrRlt;TORIPAATNEPJEXECVTIVE 

~ NIA 
E.L EACH ACC!OE/ff $ l, 000, OtlO 

CFFICERJMEMBER EXG!.UDE111 
~toiyfnliHJ E.L DlSe:ASI:. EA. EMPt.OYEE $ 1,000,000 

~~.&4~~AATI0NS M!,m li.t. OIS~~~POUCYUMJT f 1,000,000 

D Laaaed/Rented RIJUipm~nt 66'0l8llX91l3 :J.:l/31/18 U/31/U Limit lS0,000 

• Frof/Poll Liahiltty PCl!l184.902 07 /12/18 07/12/19 L""1t 1,000,000 

DESCRIPTION Of OPl!AATlOH-51 LOCA.TlOHS I VEHICLES (ACORO 1G1, Addltloo~ RH\-&11(a Sdi...Mao, mayba '1tachtd V IIIOB lp.K-1111 ,wqulnd) 

mi.er• ~•quired by ,n;itt•n ~ontract, th• followin~ i• addt 1 1 {~.-ur•~ for OBX\~ral Li-.bil!ty (OL) as raapacts ongoing • 
completed opere~ions on a pr:f..11111.:ry & acn-contrlbutory hasia and addt'1 ins with re1peot• to Auto.iobil• liability, 
GL, Auto 1c wc:r:kara Comp policies inC!luda Wllivar of t1v.brogation on haha.lf <>f tho follQwing as required by written 
cQntra.ct. and--wbe:ra .a.Hawed· -by·· law.· tJru:>'""lb./:b:oHa ··"lia.biHty· ·cov~:ta!fai · fo11·ows "foriii · over· or.·, --xuto···fi ·gznp;1Qfii:tii ··~"{abil.'itf ·· 
U; Project:. #,411', 2019 Couuty H"idu PllVmt&nt Striping- Pt'Q!Jl:"~ 
Addtional Iuuurodi Road COlll:liositlD for Oakland t:ounty 

CERTIFICATE HOLOER 

Roa.d C<>lllmi•eion of Oakland County 

31001 L•h"~~ Ro•d 

Beverly Hilla, MI 48025 

' 
ACORD 25 (2014101) 
gbotna.r 
su,oa, 

CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THl!ABOVE! OESChl.BED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATlCJN DATE !HEREOF, NOTICE WfLL 81; DEUV~REO IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POU CY PROVISIO!'fS. 

AU'THORIZEO REPRESENT A TIVf. 

USA 
tU-1. d/,JA._.. 

@ 1988--2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved, 

Ttu1 ACORO name and logo af'9 registered ma;-k9'.of ACORD 

' 

; 

···-· 



.... ·---·--

Ac'6Rb• INSURANCE BINDER I °""'(!mOOM'\'Y) ~ 5/20/2019 

THIS BINOER IS A TEMPORARY INSURANCE CONTRACT, SUBJECT TO THE CONDmONS 8_HOWN ON PAGE 2 OFTHIS FORM. 
AGS<CY 

VTC Inaurance Group 
Troy Office 
1175 w. Long take Ste. 200 

COMP»N I BmOER. 
Travelers 
_________ ------· ___ ._.

1
!B1952069567 

___ P.fil.. Ef'ff~ _ ~ ~- ·+-•u- ••. DATE ~TION TIME 

x Al.(: • ;xl12:01AM 
;---" .I I !-=-f 

'rroy KI 48098-4960 5/20/2019 , 12,01__J ___ j_P_~ . .!. . .2f20/2020 I L~ 
µ!"'i..l.,IQJ'""'""""" .. "·,c.....1 '2~•l!SL 'S1>2'!18!.·:'3!.;3!:7t7L_~_T1 J!rF~'~"!!!•m•··c!C2!2~•~• >!.'•,_,·,c!•c:·.c'3:!.7!< •!..... __ .. ~ -1 THIS SINOF.R 1s issueo To 00-1:No COVEAAG.E m rHE AOC/1/f. NA.Meo COM?AN¥ 
~CODe,;,~~~------------Ll~,,,-•~CCP<°"~'------·--•--l~=-~PER'..'::~EXP<R::'...:~ING'.:::POUCY'._'.'.'.:C::.~'-~0<:P~:_cB~I~ND~E~R:..a. ___________ --J 
~agi[i";,ii]°"NCYQ!!IJ_ill.J!_ll>l:...!Oti0ti0ti0~1,:i4c!,7_!!0c_ ________________ _j DeSCRIPTIONOf'Of>fRATJOffSJVEHICLES/PR(.fff{lY~LoedonJ 

IP,ISURa)ANIHWLIHGADDRESS Project #94119 - 2019 County Hide Striping prog;i:avi 

Road Commission for Oakh.nd Cow:it.y Job Cost, $1,826,050 
2420 Pontiao Lake Road 

lfaterforO. , Mr 48328 

COVERAGE$ 

"""°" l'GU1lAN<:E ·-,_ CAUSES OF LOSS 

~ 
6ASlC 0 BROAD O snc 

~ 

Ga-lEAAl. l.1,1,llUTY 
-

' . 
: COMMERCW..GEIERA!..llABUN 

'- [J Cl.AIMS l,Wl< W OCW< 

..x OWners • Cont:i:actora 
L ... Protective Liabilitx 

RETRO OA.TE fOR OJJMS IJ.AOE: 

~Cl.EUASILJTY 

I AfNAUfO ·-
1-- AlL OV.ttEO ALITOS 

,..._ 5GHEDUU:OAUros 

'-- ti!R.EOAI.JroS 

~ 
NON-O'NIEO AUTOS 

--

contractor: P. K. Contracting, lnc, 
1965 Barrett 
Troy, MI 48084 

LIMIT$ 
COYatA.Ge I fORf,tS ---~ '"""'°""'-' I =~ AMOOllT --· 

' I 
I i I 

' 
: eACHOCCl.lA~!cNCE . ' 1,000c..Q_QQ. 

oAiAAGf TO 
· REHTEOPREMlSES .. I-~-I MEDEXP{N'l'{O!"lll£_En0l} . $ 

PERSONAl&MN IN..IURY • 
,_GENEAALAGGREGATE • 2,000 _0...Q.Q. 

PRODUCTS- COMPKl? AGG ' t COMBINIDSINGLE.UMIT $ _ 

• B()OILYWURY{F'arJW$00) • $ - .. ·--.. • ··--

§~~-----
l UN!NSUREDM(?~ : $ 

I I' 
VEH!CI.E PHYSICAL DAMAGE DE.D ~ ALL VEHICLES L _J SCHE0Ul.£0VEHICLES 

I '. --t:==UE-i $ RCOU.ISION: 
OTHER THAN COL: 

'-- NNAUTO 

-
EXCESS UABUTY H UM8REUA FORM 

OTiiER THAN UMBRaLA ~~-• 

W~COMPENSATION 
ANO 

- V.,M::9.~-~-- . 

Sl'ECW. 
CONDmOOS I 
OTH<R 
COVERAGES 

NAME & ADDRESS 

ACORD 76 (2013/05) 
INS075 {(013091 

RETROOATEFOR ClAJMS ~ 

' . ' ---- --- __J 

-- ··-- --- _l..........J.., __ ·-- ·-·-·- -----. - --
- .. -

~~THANAlJTOONlY: 
... - EACH <\CC!!!filt ! -

AGG~EGATE $ 

~ EACH?CCLJl!R.ENCE . $ 

$ \AGGREGATE -·-----
i SEU'~NSIJREO RETENTION ' ' 

~ ' E.L DISEAS!; EA EMPLOYS: ' -····-· - - -- ----- ------

· 1 E.LOISEASE-POUC\'UJ,UT 
... 

s 
[=_ __ . $ 

I TAXE~-- --···-·-·' 
i ESTIUAf&l TOTAL PREMIVM • 

7 -~ MOR.TGA.GE.E 

r·1coss PAYEE 
.LOMitt. 

· AOOITtONAL INSURED 

_;_-L ---- . ---------------1 

I AlmtO!ttZ£DREPRESfflTATIVE 

i ,:M,--)"? c£ ,.,, 
Alan ChandlerN45 

Pago 1 of 2 ©1993-2013 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights n,servod. 

Tho ACQRD name and logo a~ registered marks of ACORD 

I 

. ... ··-·•-'--



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: 00001470 

CONDITIONS 
This Company binds the kind(s) of insurance stipulated on page 1 of this form. The Insurance-ls subject to the terms, condrtions and 
limitations of the policy(ies) in current use by the Company. 

This binder may be cancelle<l by the Insured by surrender of this binder or by written notice to the Company stating when cancellation 
will be eflective. This binder may be cancelle<l by the Company by notice lo the Insured In accordance with 1he policy conditions. This 
binder is canceUed when replaced by a policy. If tliis binder is not replaced by a policy, the Company is entitled to charge a premium 
for the binder according to the Rules and Rates in use by the Company. · 

Applicable in Arizona 
Binders are effective for no more than ninety (90) days. 

Applicable in California 

l'ltlen this form is used lo provide Insurance in the amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000) or more, the title of the form is changed 
from "Insurance Binder' to "Cover Note". 

Appllcable In Colorado 
VVith respect to binders Issued to renters of residential premises, home owners, condo unit owners and moblJe home owners, the 
insurer has thirty (30) business days, commencing from the effective date of coverage, to evaluate the issuance of the insurance 
policy. 

Applicable In Delaware 
The mortgagee or Obligee of any mortgage or other Instrument given for the purpose of creating a lien on real property shall accept as . 
evidence of insurance a written binder issued by an authorized .Insurer or Its agent If the binder includes or is accompanied by: the 
name and address of the borrower; the name and address of the lender as loss payee; a description of the insured real property; a 
provision that the binder may not be canceled within the term of the binder unless the lender and the Insured borrower receive written 
notice of the cancellation at least ten (10) days prior to the cancellation; except in the case of a renewal of a policy subsequent to the 
closing of the loan, a paid receipt of the full amount of the applicable premtu!ll, and the amount of insurance cove,age. 

Chapter 21 litle 25 Paragraph 2119 

Applicable In Florida 

Except for Auto Insurance coverage, no notice of cancellation or nonrenewal of a binder is required unless the duration of the binder 
exceeds 60 days. For auto insurance, the insurer must give 5 days prior notice, unless the binder is replaced by a policy or another 
binder In the same company. 

Applicable In Maryland 
e insurer has 45 boolness days, eemmenoinf) fmm the effeeti-.<e Elate af ee'.erago ta eenfirm ell§ibility fer eeverage uR 

insurance policy, 

Applicable in Michigan 

The policy may be cancolled at any time at the request of the insured. 

Applicable In Nevada 
Any person who refuses to accept a binder which provides coverage of ~ss than $1,000,000.00 when proof is required: (A) Sha~! be 
fined not more than $500.00, and· (B) is liable to the party pre~nting the binder as proof of Insurance for actual damages sustained 

.. the~from,. 
.. Applicable in bliiahoma 

All policies shall expire at 12:01 a.m. standard Ume on the expiration date stated in U>e policy. 

Applicable In Oregon 

Binders are effective for no more than ninety (90) days. A binder extension or renewal beyond such 90 days would require the written 
approval by the Director of the Department of Consumer and Business Services. -

Applicable In the Virgin Islands 

This binder is effective for only ninety (90) days. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of this binder, you sllould request an insurance 
policy or certificate (if applicable) from your agent and/or insurance company. 

ACORD 7~ {2013109) 
INS075 (l01300) 

Page 2 of2 

I 
r 
" 



CONTRACT FOR LONG LINE ROAD STRIPING 

1) Parties. The parties to this contract are the City of Pontiac, Michigan hereinafter referred to 
as the "City", and PK Contracting, Inc. hereinafter called the "Contractor". 

2) Purpose. The purpose of this contract is for the City to engage the Contractor to provide 
Long Line Road Striping to the City, as the City deems necessary. (see Scope of Services below). 

3} Scope of Services. The Contractor will provide all labor, materia Is, supplies, equipment and 
supervision to perform Long Line Road Striping in the City. The Contractor is to perform all work 
in accordance with generally accepted standards and practices. 

4} General Terms and Conditions. This contract is hereby made subject to the terms and 
conditions included in the Scope of Services (see Exhibit "A" below} and Additional Terms and 
Conditions (see Exhibit "B" below). 

5) Consideration. As consideration for the performance of the services referenced in the Scope 
of Services (see Exhibits "A" & "B" below}, the City agrees to compensate the Contractor as 
follows: 

ITEM CODE# ITEM Of WORK UNIT UNIT PRICE 

Pavt Mrkg, Sprayable Thermopl, 
8110153 4" White Ft $ 0.103 

Pavt Mrkg, Sprayable Thermopl, 
8110154 4" Yellow Ft s 0.103 

Pav! Mrkg, Waterborne, 
8110231 4" White Ft $ 

Pavt Mrkg, Waterborne, 
8110232 4" Yellow Ft $ 

Pavt Mrkg, Waterborne, Curb, 
8117050 8" Yellow Ft $ 

.. ... . ... . -··· ................ --------- --· -·--. ···-
f 

..... 

8110011 Call Back Mobilization Ea 500.00 

Pavt Mrkg, Longit, 6 or less 
8120210 width, Rem Ft $ 0.45 

N/A Layout of Markings Per/Day $ 1,500.00 

Long Line Road Striping - Contract Page1 of18 

' 

·-·---· .. 



6) Period of Performance, This contract expires December 31, 2016, with optional years two and 
or three upon the approval and signature of the parties hereto. 

7) Method of Payment. Contractor will be paid 30 days after completion of work as outlined in 
the Scope of Services after submission of a valid invoice. 

8) Applicable Law, This contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the City of Pontiac, State of Michigan and applicable federal laws, 

9) Compliance with Laws, The Contractor understands that the City Is an equal opportunity 
employer and, therefore, maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on 
race, color, creed, sex, age, national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or 
any other consideration made unlawful by federal, state, or local laws, All such discrimination is 
unlawful and the Contractor agrees during the term of the agreement that the Contractor will 
strictly adhere to this policy in its employment practices and provision of services, The 
Contractor shall comply with, and all activities under this agreement shall be subject to, all 
applicable federal, State of Michigan, and City of Pontiac laws and regulations, as now existing 
and as may be amended or modified. 

_ The Contractor is responsible for instructing and training their employees in appropriate safety 
measures, Employees will be responsible for maintaining a safe work environment while 
completing their tasks, 

a) The Contractor shall comply with the Michigan Right to Know Law (Amendments to Act 
154), which requires that all employers within the State comply with federal Hazard 
Communications Standards (C.F,R, 1910.1200) and certain additional guidelines as of 
February 25, 1987, These Standards specify that employers develop a written hazard 
communication program, which Is to be made available for workers or their designated 
representatives, 

b) The Contractor will comply with all federal, state and local regulations, including but not 
limited to all applicable OSHA/MIOSHA requirements and the Americans with 
Disabilities Act 

c) The Contractor is responsible for all applicable state and federal social security benefits 
and unemployment taxes and agrees to indemnify and protect the City against such 

__ liability,__ ----------- - - - -- -

10) Requirements contract. During the period of the contract, the Contractor shall provide all 
the services described in the contract. The Contractor understands and agrees that this is a 
requirements contract and that the City shall have no obligation to the Contractor if no services 
are required, 

Long Line Road S.triplng • Contract Page 2 of 18 

I, 



EXHIBIT "A" 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Contractor shall provide long line Road Striping. 

The Contractor will provide all labor, materials, supplies, equipment and supervision to perform 

Long Line Road Striping in the City. 

The Scope of Work shall be limited to: long line Road Striping 

The work consists of furnishing and applying permanent pavement markings according to the 
Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices, MDOT specifications and this 

supplemental specification. 

The contractor shall properly dispose of unused material and containers in compliance with the 
Federal resource Conservation Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 as amended, and Part Ill {Hazardous 
Waste Management) of Public Act 451 of 1994 {Natural Resources and Environmental Protection 

Act). 

The pavement marking equipment must meet industry standards for the type of material being 
applied. It shall be capable of applying material to the required length and width and assure 

uniform application of materials. 

The marking shall be free of uneven edges, overspray, or other readily visible defects which 
detract from the appearance or function of the pavement markings. The Contractor is 
responsible for taking appropriate care to prevent motorists from being sprayed. 

Traffic control and the Pavement Marking Convoy requirements shall be in accordance with the 
Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices and the drying time required for the type of 

material being used as specified by the material supplier. 

All employees will be required to wear safety articles as required by law at the sole cost of the 

contractor. 

l.ong Lino Road Striping - Contract Pago 3 of 18 

i 

I 



EXHIBIT "B" 

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1) Attorneys' fees and expenses. Subject to other terms and conditions of this contract, in 
the event the Contractor defaults in any obligation under this contract, the Contractor 
shall pay to the City all costs and expenses (including, without limitation, investigative 
fees, court costs, and attorneys' fees) incurred by the .City in enforcing this contract or 
otherwise reasonably related thereto. Contractor agrees that under no circumstances 
shall the City be obligated to pay any attorneys' fees or costs of legal action to the 

Contractor. 

2) Authority to contract. The Contractor warrants: (a) that it is a validly organized 
business with valid authority to enter into this contract; (b} that it is qualified to do 
business and in good standing in the State of Michigan; (c) that entry into and 
performance under this contract Is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 
financing, contractual, or other contract of any kind; and, (d} notwithstanding any other 
provision of this contract to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings or 
prospective legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect 
Its ability to perform its obligations under this contract. 

3} Confidential information. Disclosure of any confidential information by the Contractor 
or its subcontractor without the express written approval of the City shall result in the 
immediate termination of this contract. 

4) Confidentiality. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained herein, it is 
recognized that the City of Pontiac is a public City of the State of Michigan and is subject 
to the laws regarding confidentiality. if a public records request is made for any 
information provided to the City pursuant to the contract, the City shall promptly notify 
the disclosing party of such request and will respond to the request only in accordance 
with the procedures and limitations set forth in applicable law. The disclosing party shall 
promptly institute appropriate legal proceedings to protect its informa_tion. No party to 
the contract shall be liable to the other party for disclosures of information required by 
court order or required by law. 

· ·· · 5} · Contractor personnel,··The Cityshall;throughoutthe life of the contract, have the fight•·· 
of reasonable rejection and approval of staff or subcontractors assigned to the work by 
the Contractor. If the City reasonably rejects staff or subcontractors, the Contractor shall 
provide replacement staff or subcontractors satisfactory to the City in a timely manner 
and at no additional cost to the City. The day-to-day supervision and control of the 
Contractor's employees and subcontractors is the sole responsibility of the Contractor. 
Contractor personnel are subject to background checks by the Oakland County Sheriff 

Long Line Road Striping • Contract Page 4 of 18 



Department and shall comply with all requirements as outlined in the Request for 

Quote. 

6) Insurance. The Contractor, or any of their subcontractors, shall not commence work 
under this contract until they have obtained the insurance required under this 
paragraph, and shall keep such insurance in force during the entire life of this contract. 
All coverage shall be with insurance companies licensed and admitted to do business in 
the State of Michigan and acceptable to the City of Pontiac. The requirements below 
should not be interpreted to limit the liability of the Contractor. All deductibles and 
SI R's are the responsibility of the Contractor. 

a) Workers' Compensation Insurance. The Contractor shall procure and maintain 
during the life of this contract, Workers' Insurance, including Employers Liability 
Coverage, in accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Michigan with a 
minimum limit of $100,000 each accident for any employee. 

b) Commercial General Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall procure and maintain 
during the life of this contract, Commercial General Liability Insurance on an 
"Occurrence Basis" with limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence 
and/or aggregate combined single limit. Personal Injury, Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage, coverage shall include the following extensions: (A) Contractual Liability; 
(B) Products and Completed Operations; (C) Independent Contractors Coverage; (D) 
Broad Form General Liability Extensions or equivalent: (E) Deletion of all Explosion, 
Collapse and Underground (XCU) Exclusions, If applicable; (F) Per project aggregate. 

c) Motor Vehicle Liability. The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of 
this contract Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, including Michigan No-Fault 
Coverage, with limits of liability of not less than $1.000.000 per occurrence 
combined single limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage. Coverage shall include all 
owned vehicles, all non-owned vehicles, and all hired vehicles. 

d) Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability and Motor Vehicle Liability 
Insurance, as described above, shall include an endorsement stating the following 
shall be Additionally Insured: The City of Pontiac, all elected and appointed officials. 
all employees and volunteers, all boards. commissions. and/or authorities and board 
members. including employees and volunteers. It is understood and agreed by 

.. -naming.The City of Pontiac as additional lnsured,coverage .afforded is considered.to .. 
be primary and any other insurance The City of Pontiac may have in effect shall be 
considered secondary and/or excess. 

e) Cancellation Notice: All policies, as described above, shall include an endorsement 
stating that is it understood and agreed Thirty (30) days, Ten (10) days for non
payment of premiu·m, Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, 

Long Lina Road Striping. Contract Page 5 of 18 



Reduction, and/or Material Change shall be sent to City Administrator for the City of 
Pontiac. 

f) Proof of Insurance Coverage: The Contractor shall provide The City of Pontiac at the 
time that the contracts are returned by him/her for execution, a Certificate of 
Insurance as well as the required endorsements. In lieu of required endorsements, 
if applicable, a copy of the policy sections where coverage is provided for additional 
insured and cancellation notice would be acceptable. Copies or certified copies of all 
policies mentioned above shall be furnished, if so requested. 

g) Expiration of Policies: If any of the above coverage expires during term of this 
contract, the Contractor shall deliver renewal certificates and/or policies to the City 
of Pontiac at least ten (10) days prior to the expiration date. 

h) Indemnification: To the extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify and 
hold the City harmless of and from all claims, losses, liability, demands, costs, loss of 
service, expense, and compensation on account of or in any way growing out of any 
damage, including, but not limited to, bodily injury or property damage which may 
result from the Contractor's services, In addition, the Contractor shall cover all costs 
incurred by the City in defense of any litigation covered under this letter of contract, 
Including attorney fees and court costs. 

i) Insurance companies, named insureds and policy forms shall be subject to the 
approval of the Pontiac Department of Public Works. Such approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. Insurance policies shall not contain endorsements or policy 
conditions, which reduce coverage provided to the City of Pontiac. Contractor shall 
be responsible to the City of Pontiac or insurance companies insuring the City of 
Pontiac for all costs resulting from both financially unsound insurance companies 
selected by Contractor and their inadequate insurance coverage. Contractor shall 
urn,s t e ont ac Finance Department wit sat1s actory cer 1 ,ca es o insurance or 

a certified copy of the policy, if requested by the Finance Department. 

j) No payments will be made to the Contractor until the current certificates of 
insurance have been received and approved by the Finance Department. If the 
insurance as evidenced by the certificates furnished by the Contractor expires or is 
canceled during the term of the contract, services and related payments will be 

. . . suspended. Contractor .shall .. furnish the Finance Department with certification of 
insurance evidencing such coverage and endorsements at least ten (10) working 
days prior to commencement of services under this contract. Certificates shall be 
addressed to the Pontiac Finance Department, and shall provide for 30 day written 
notice to the Certificate holder of cancellation of coverage. 

7) lneligiblllty and suspension. The Contractor certifies to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, that it: (a) is not presently ineligible, suspended, proposed for ineligibility, 

Long Line Road Striping~ Cont(act Pago 6 of 18 



declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal 
department or the City or any political subdivision of the City or the State of Michigan; 
(b) has not, within a three year period preceding this proposal, been convicted of or had 
civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, 
or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; (c) has not, within a three 
year period preceding this proposal, been convicted of or had civil judgment rendered 
against it for a violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making 
false statements, or receiving stolen property; (d) is not presently indicted for or 
otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (federal, state or local) 
with commission of any of these offenses enumerated in paragraphs (b) and (cl of this 
certification; and, (e) has not, within a three year period preceding this proposal, had 
one or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

8) Disclosure of confidential information. In the event that either party to this contract 
receives notice that a third party requests divulgence of confidential or otherwise 
protected information and/or has served upon it subpoena or other validly issued 
administrative or judicial process ordering divulgence of confidential or otherwise 
protected information that party shall promptly inform the other party and thereafter 
respond in conformity with such subpoena to the extent mandated by law. This section 
shall survive the termination or completion of this contract. 

9) Exceptions to confidential information. The Contractor and the City shall not be 
obligated to treat as confidential and proprietary any information disclosed by the other 
party ("disclosing party") which: (a) is rightfully known to the recipient prior to 
negotiations leading to this contract, other than information obtained in confidence 
under prior engagements; (b) is generally known or easily ascertainable by nonparties of 
ordinary skill in the business of the customer; (c) is released by the disclosing party to 
any ot er person, irm, or en I y me u mg gove e a age c· 
restriction; (d) is independently developed by the recipient without any reliance on 
confidential information; (e) is or later becomes part of the public domain or may be 
lawfully obtained by the City or the Contractor from any nonparty; or, (f) is disclosed 
with the disclosing party's prior written consent. 

10) Default. If the Contractor: 

a) Fails to supply complete labor and supervision in sufficient time and quantity to 
meet the City's progress schedule, as it may be modified: 

b) Causes stoppage or delay of, or interference with, the project; 

c) Fails to promptly pay its employees for work on the project; 

Long Line Road Strlplng - Contract. Page 7 of 18 

I 



d) Fails to pay worker's compensation or other employee benefits, withholding or any 
other taxes; 

e) Fails to comply with the safety provisions of the Contract or with any safety order, 
regulation or requirement of any governing authority having jurisdiction over this 
project; 

f) Makes unauthorized changes in supervisory personnel; 

g) Fails in performance or observance of any of the provisions of the contract; 

h) Files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or is adjudicated insolvent; 

i) Obtains an order for relief under Section 391 of the Bankruptcy Code; 

j) Files any petition or fails to contest any petition filed seeking any reorganization or 
similar relief under any laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or other relief of 
debtors; 

k) Or seeks or consents to or is acqu_iescent in the appointment of a trustee, receiver or 
liquidator of any of its assets or property; 

I) Makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or 

m) Makes an admission, in writing, of its Inability to pay its debts as they became due; 

Then City, after giving Contractor written or oral (subsequently confirmed in writing) notice of 
such default and forty-eight (48) hours within which to cure such default, shall have the right to 
exercise any one or more of the following remedies: 

a) Require that Contractor utilize, at its own expense, additional labor, overtime labor 
(including Saturday and Sunday work) and additional shifts as necessary to 
overcome the consequences of any delay attributable to Contractor's default. 

b) Remedy the default by whatever means City may deem necessary or appropriate, 
including, but not limited to, correcting, furnishing, performing or otherwise 

-- . completing the work, or-any part thereof,.by itself or.through.others.(utilizing.where . 
appropriate any materials and equipment previously purchased for that purpose by 
Contractor) and deducting the cost thereof from any monies due or to become due 
to Contractor hereunder; 

i) After giving Contractor an additional forty-eight (48) hours written (or 
oral, subsequently confirmed in writing) notice, terminate this Contract, 
without thereby waiving or releasing any rights or remedies against 

Long l . ..ina Road Striping • Contract Page 8 of 18 

I 



ii} 

Contractor or its sureties, and, by itself or through others, take 
possession of the work, and all materials, equipment facilities, tools, 
scaffolds and appliances of Contractor relating to the work, for the 
purposes of costs and other damages under the contract and for the 
breach thereof; and 

Recover all reasonable attorneys' fees suffered or incurred by City by 
reason of, or as a result of, Contractor's default. 

11) Failure to enforce. Failure by the City at any .time to enforce the provisions of the 
contract shall not be construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to 
enforce shall not affect the validity of the contract or any part thereof or the right of the 
City to enforce any provision at any time in accordance with Its terms. 

12) Final payment. Upon satisfactory completion of the work performed under this 
contract, as a condition before final payment under this contract, or as a termination 
settlement under this contract, the Contractor shall execute and deliver to the City a 
release of all claims against the City arising under, or by virtue of, the contract, except 
claims which are specifically exempted by the Contractor to be set forth therein. Unless 
otherwise provided in this contract, by state law, or otherwise expressly agreed to by 

· the parties in this contract, final payment under the contract or settlement upon 
termination of this contract shall not constitute waiver of the City's claims against the 
Contractor under this contract. 

13) Force maieure. Each party shall be excused from performance for any period and to the 
extent that it is prevented from performing any obligation or service, in whole or in part, 
as a result of causes beyond the reasonable control and without the fault or negligence 
of such party and/or Its subcontractors. Such acts shall include without limitation acts of 
God, strikes, lockouts, nots, and acts of war, ep1dem1cs, governmental regulations 
superimposed after the fact, fire, earthquakes, floods, or other natural disasters (the 
"force majeure events"). When such a cause arises, the Contractor shall notify the City 
immediately in writing of the cause of its inability to perform, how it affects its 
performance, and the anticipated duration of the inability to perform. Delays In delivery 
or in meeting completion dates due to force majeure events shall automatically extend 
such dates for a period equal to the duration of the delay caused by such events, unless 

. the City determines ltto be in its bestinterestto. terminate.the contract.. 

14) Indemnification. To the fullest extent allowed by law, the Contractor shall indemnify, 
defend, save and hold harmless, protect, and exonerate the City, its commissioners, 
board members, officers, employees, agents, representatives, and the State of Michigan 
from and against all claims, demands, llablllties, suits, actions, damages, losses, and 
costs of every kind and nature whatsoever including, without limitation, court costs, 
investigative fees and expenses, and attorneys' fees, arising out of or caused by the 

Long Line Road Striping - Contract Page 9 of 18 

r 

I 



Contractor and/or its partners, principals, agents, employees and/or subcontractors in 
the performance of or failure to perform this contract. In the City's sole discretion, the 
Contractor may be allowed to control the defense of any such claim, suit, etc. In the 
event the Contractor defends said claim, suit, etc., the Contractor shall use legal counsel 
acceptable to the City. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for all costs and/or 
expenses associated with such defense, and the City shall be entitled to participate in 
said defense. The Contractor shall not settle any claim, suit, etc., without the City's 
concurrence, which the City shall not unreasonably withhold. 

15) Independent contractor status. The Contractor shall, at all times, be regarded as and 
shall be legally considered an independent contractor and shall at no time act as an 
agent for the City. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or construed by the City, 
the Contractor, or any third party as creating the relationship of principal and agent, 
master and servant, partners, joint ventures, employer and employee, or any similar 
such relationship between the City and the Contractor. Neither the method of 
computation of fees or other charges, nor any other provi.sion contained herein, nor any 
acts of the City or the Contractor hereunder creates, or shall be deemed to create, a 
relationship other than the independent relationship of the City and the Contractor. The 
Contractor's personnel shall not be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly 
or by implication, to be employees of the City or the State of Michigan. Neither the 
Contractor nor its employees shall, under any circumstances be considered servants, 
agents, or employees of the City and the City shall be at no time legally responsible for 
any negligence or other wrongdoing by the Contractor, Its servants, agents, or 
employees. The City shall not withhold from the contract payments to the Contractor 
any federal or state unemployment taxes, federal or state income taxes, social security 
tax, or any other amounts for benefits to the Contractor. Further, the City shall not 
provide to the Contractor any Insurance coverage or other benefits, including worker's 
compensation, normally provided by the City for its employees. 

16) No lim1tat1on of liab1hty. Nothing 1n this contract shall be interpreted as excluding or 
limiting any tort liability of the Contractor for harm caused by the intentional or reckless 
conduct of the Contractor or for damages incurred through the negligent performance 
of duties by the Contractor or the delivery of products that are defective due to 
negligent construction. 

17) Notices. All notices required or permitted to be given under this contract shall be in 
..... writing and personally delivered or sent by certified .United States.mail,.postage. prepaid, .. 

return receipt requested, to the Pontiac City Clerk's Office to whom the notice should be 
given at the address set forth below. Notice shall be deemed given when actually 
received or when refused. The parties agree to promptly notify each other In writing of 
any change of address. 

Long Line Road Striping - Contract Page 10 of 18 



For the Contractor: PK Contracting, Inc. 
1965 Barrett 
Troy, Ml 48084 

For the City: City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave. 
Pontiac, MI 48342 

18) Oral statements. No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the 
terms, conditions, or specifications stated in this contract. All modifications to the 
contract shall be made in writing by the City and agreed to by the Contractor. 

19) Ownership of documents and work papers. The City shall own all documents, files, 
reports, work papers and working documentation, electronic or otherwise, created in 
connection with the project which Is the subject of this contract, except for the 
Contractor's Internal administrative and quality assurance flies and internal project 
correspondence. The Contractor shall deliver such documents and work papers to the 
City upon termination or completion of the contract. The foregoing notwithstanding, the 
Contractor shall be entitled to retain a set of such work papers for its files. The 
Contractor shall be entitled to use such work papers only after receiving written 
permission from the City and subject to any copyright protections. 

20) Priority. The contract consists of this contract with exhibits. Any ambiguities, conflicts 
or questions of interpretation of this contract shall be resolved by first, reference to this 
contract with exhibits and, if still unresolved, by reference to the bid. Omission of any 
term or obligation from this contract shall not be deemed an omission from this 
contract if such term or obligation is provided for elsewhere In this contract. 

21) Qua 1ty contra . I he Contractor shall institute and maintain throughout the contract 
period a properly documented quality control program designed to ensure that the 
services are provided at all times and in all respects in accordance with the contract. The 
program shall include providing daily supervision and conducting frequent inspections of 
the Contractor's staff and ensuring that accurate records are maintained describing the 
disposition of all complaints. The records so created shall be open to inspection by the 
City. 

22) Record retention and access to records. Provided the Contractor Is given reasonable 
advance written notice and such inspection is made during normal business hours of the 
Contractor, the City or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, 
prompt access to any of the Contractor's books, documents, papers, and/or records 
which are maintained or produced as a result of the project for the purpose of making 
audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. All records related to this contract 
shall be retained by the Contractor for three years after final payment Is made under 

Long Line Road Striping - Contract Page 11 of18 



this contract and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or 
other action arising out of or related In any way to this project is commenced before the 
end of the three year period, the records shall be retained for one year a.fter all issues 
arising out of the action are finally resolved or until the end of the three year period, 
whichever is later. 

23) Recovery of money. Whenever, under the contract, any sum of money shall be 
recoverable from or payable by the Contractor to the City, the same amount may be 
deducted from any sum due to the Contractor under the contract or under any other 
contract between the Contractor and the City. The rights of the City are in addition and 
without prejudice to any other right the City may have to claim the amount of any loss 
or damage suffered by the City on account of the acts or omissions of the Contractor. 

24) Right to audit. The Contractor shall maintain such financial records and other records as 
may be prescribed by the City or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 
regulations. The Contractor shall retain these records for a period of three years after 
final payment, or until they are audited by the City, whichever event occurs first. These 
records shall be made available during the term of the contract and the subsequent 
three-year period for examination, transcription, and audit by the Michigan Office of the 
State Auditor, Its designees, or other authorized bodies. 

25) Right to inspect facility. The City may, at reasonable times, inspect the place of business 
of the Contractor or any subcontractor, which is related to the performance of any 
contract awarded by the City. 

26) Severability. If any part of this contract is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such 
invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the contract that can 
be given effect without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the 
provisions hereof are severable. In such event, the parties shall amend the contract as 
necessary to reflect the original intent of the parties and to bring any invalid or 
unenforceable provisions In compliance with applicable law. 

27) City property. The Contractor will be responsible for the proper custody and care of any 
City-owned property furnished for the Contractor's use in connection with the 
performance of this contract. The Contractor will reimburse the City for any loss or 
damage, normal wear and tear excepted. 

-------- ---------------------- ------------------

28) Termination for convenience clause. 

a) The City reserves the absolute right to terminate the contract in whole or in part, for 
the convenience of the City at its sole discretion on thirty (30) days written notice to 
the Contractor. The City has the right, upon its sole discretion only, to terminate the 
contract with cause by giving notice to the Contractor of such termination, 
specifying the effective date thereof, at least fourteen (14) days before the effective 

long Line Road Striping~ Contract Page 12 of 18 



date of such termination, and the Contract shall terminate in all respects as if such 
date were the date originally given for the expiration of the Contract. 

b) The Contractor shall be liable to the City for damages sustained by the City by virtue 
of any breach of the Contract by the Contractor, and any costs the City might incur 
enforcing or attempting to enforce the Contract, and the City may pursue legal 
remedies in the collection of fees to compensate for the damages sustained by the 
City. 

c) Contractor's Obligations. The Contractor shall incur no further obligations in 
connection with the terminated work and on the date set in the notice of 
termination the Contractor will stop work to the extent specified. The Contractor 
shall also terminate outstanding orders and subcontracts as they relate to the 
terminated work. The Contractor shall settle the liabilities and claims arising out of 
the termination of subcontracts and orders connected with the terminated work. 
The City may direct the Contractor to assign the Contractor's right, title, and interest 
under terminated orders or subcontracts to the State of Michigan. The Contractor 
shall still complete the work not terminated by the notice of termination and may 
incur obligations as are necessary to do so. 

29) Termination for default clause. 

a) Default. If the Contractor refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 
contract with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in 
this contract or any extension thereof, or otherwise fails to timely satisfy the 
contract provisions, or commits any other substantial breach of this contract, the 
City may notify the Contractor in writing of the delay or nonperformance and If not 
cured in ten days or any longer time specified in writing by the City, the City may 
terminate the Contractor's right to proceed with the contract or such part of the 
con rac as o w 1c t ere as een e ay or a failure to properly perform. In the 
event of terminati"on in whole or in part, the City may procure similar supplies or 
services In a manner and upon terms deemed appropriate by the City. The 
Contractor shall continue performance of the contract to the extent it is not 
terminated and shall be liable for excess costs incurred in procuring similar goods or 
services. 

b) .contractor's.Duties. -Notwithstanding-termination-ofthecontraet-and subject-to any- -- -
directions from the City, the Contractor shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary 
action to protect and preserve property in the possession of the Contractor in which 
the City has an interest. 

c) Compensation. Payment for completed services delivered and accepted by the City 
shall be at the contract price. The City may withhold from amounts due the 
Contractor such sums as the City deems to be necessary to protect the City against 

Long Line Road Striping M Contract Page 13 of18 



loss because of outstanding liens or claims of former lien holders and to reimburse 
the City for the excess costs incurred in procuring similar goods and services. 

d) Excuse for Nonperformance or Delayed Performance. Except with respect to 
defaults of subcontractors, the Contractor shall not be in default by reason of any 
failure in performance of this contract in accordance with its terms (including any 
failure by the Contractor to make progress in the prosecution of the work hereunder 
which endangers such performance) if the Contractor has notified the City within 15 
days after the cause of the delay and the failure arises out of causes such as: acts of 
God; acts of the public enemy; acts of the State of Michigan and any other 
governmental entity in its sovereign or contractual capacity; fires; floods; epidemics; 
quarantine restrictions; strikes or other labor disputes; freight embargoes; or 
unusually severe weather. If the failure to perform caused by the failure of a 
subcontractor to perform or to make progress, and if such failure arises out of 
causes similar to those set forth above, the Contractor shall not be deemed to be in 
default, unless the services to be furnished by the subcontractor were reasonably 
obtainable from other sources in sufficient time to permit the Contractor to meet 
the contract requirements. Upon request of the Contractor, the City shall ascertain 
the facts and extent of such failure, and, if such officer determines that any failure to 
perform was occasioned by any one or more of the excusable causes, and that, but 
for the excusable cause, the Contractor's progress and performance would have met 
the terms of the contract, the delivery schedule shall be revised accordingly, subject 
to the rights of the City under the clause entitled "Termination for Convenience." (As 
used in this paragraph, the term "subcontractor" means subcontractor at any tier). 

e) Erroneous Termination for Default. If, after notice of termination of the Contractor's 
right to proceed under the provisions of this clause, it is determined for any reason 
that the contract was not in default under the provisions of this clause, or that the 
delay was excusable under the provisions of Paragraph (d) (Excuse for 
Nonperformance or Delayed Performance) of this clause, the rights and obligations 
of the parties shall, if the contract contains a clause providing for termination for 
convenience by the City, be the same as if the notice of termination had been issued 
pursuant to such clause. 

f) Additional Rights and Remedies. The rights and remedies provided in this clause are 
In addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this contract. 

30) Termination upon bankruptcy. This contract may be terminated in whole or in part by 
the City upon written notice to the Contractor, if the Contractor should become the 
subject of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 
upon the execution by the Contractor of an assignment for the benefit of its creditors. In 
the event of such termination, the Contractor shall be entitled to recover just and 
equitable compensation for satisfactory work performed under this contract, but in no 
case shall said compensation exceed the total contract price. 

Long Line Road Striping - Contract Page 14 of 18 



31) Third party action notification. The Contractor shall give the City prompt notice in 
writing of any action or suit filed, and prompt notice of any claim made against the 
Contractor by any entity that may result in litigation related in any way to this contract. 

32) Unsatisfactory work. If, at any time during the contract term, the service performed or 
work done by the Contractor is considered by the City to create a condition that 
threatens the health, safety, or welfare of the citizens and/or employees of the City of 
Pontiac, the Contractor shall, on being notified by the City, immediately correct such 
deficient service or work. In the event the Contractor fails, after notice, to correct the 
deficient service or work immediately, the City shall have the right to order the 
correction of the deficiency by separate contract or with Its own resources at the 
expense of the Contractor. 

33) Waiver. No delay or omission by either party to this contract in exercising any right, 
power, or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by contract, at law, or in equity shall 
constitute an acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder 
or otherwise afforded by any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or 
remedy. No waiver by either party to this contract shall be valid unless set forth in 
writing by the party making said waiver. No waiver of or modification to any term or 
condition of this contract will void, waive, or change any other term or condition. No 
waiver by one party to this contract of a default by the other party will Imply, be 
construed as, or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

34) Taxes and Contributions. The Contractor hereby accepts and assumes exclusive liability 
for and shall indemnify, protect and save harmless the City from and against the 
payment of: 

a) Contractor agrees to contact the City of Pontiac Income Tax Division, Audit and 
Compliance Section, 47450 Woodward, Pontiac, Michigan 48342, to establish 
reporting and withholding obligations under the City of Pontiac Income Tax 
Ordinance. Contractors will require the same of all subcontractors employed to 
perform any work in the City of Pontiac. 

~];p'ageJ'!E!lj: http://v.•ww.pontiac.mi.us/departments/income tax/index.php 

W~torms"cm: http://www.pontiac.mi.us/departments/income tax/tax forms.php 

b) All contributions, taxes or premiums (Including Interest and penalties thereon) which 
may oe payaole under tne Unemployment Insurance Law ofalW State~the Federal 
Social Security Act, Federal, State, County and/or Municipal Tax Withholding Act, 
Federal, State, County and/or Municipal Tax Withholding Laws, or any other law, 
measured upon the payroll of or required to be withheld from employees by 
whomsoever employed or engaged in the work to be performed and furnished 
under this contract. 

Long Line Road Striping~ Contract Page15of18 



c) All sales, use, personal property and other taxes (including interest and penalties 
thereon) required by any Federal, State, County, Municipal or other law to be paid 
or collected by the Contractor or any of its vendors or any other person or persons 
acting for, through or under it or any of them, by reason of the performance of this 
work or the acquisition, furnishing, or use of any materials, equipment, supplies, 
labor, services or other items for or in connection with the work. 

d) All pension, welfare, vacation, annuity and other union benefit contributions 
payable, under or in connection with respect, to all persons; by whomsoever 
employed or engaged in the work to be performed and furnished under this 
Contract. 

Long Line Road Striping - Contract Page 16 of 18 

·) 

[ 
'• 



,·.·.•.'.,•, ... 

Long Line Road Striping - Contract Page 17 of 18 



,..:__,.c'.·•· 

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have affixed, on duplicate originals, their signatures on 
the date indicated below, ·after first being authorized so to do. 

P.K. Contracting, Inc. 

By: 
DATE (Title) 

City of Pontiac 

By: 
DATE (Title) 

. -··----··--- ·---------- ----

Long Line Road Striping • Contract Page 18 of 18 


	20190816174001929
	20190816174042269
	20190816174130491



